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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript continues i n  sequence from Volume 4.)  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: C a l l  the  hearing back t o  order. 

Mr. Burgess. 

MR. BURGESS: Yes, I would c a l l  Mr. Cicchet t i  t o  the 

witness stand, p l  ease. 

MARK A. CICCHETTI 

was ca l led  as a witness on behalf o f  the  O f f i ce  o f  Public 

Counsel and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fol lows: 

D I  RECT EXAM I NATION 
BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q And my f i r s t  quest' 

i n ,  Mr. Cicchet t i?  

A Yes, I have. 

on would be, have you been sworn 

Q Thank you. Would you state your name and business 

address f o r  the record, please. 

A My name i s  Mark Cicchett i  , and my business i s  

2931 Kerry Forest Parkway, Suite 202, Ta l  1 ahassee, F lor ida 

32309 

Q M r .  C icchet t i  , have you prepared and submitted 

p r e f i l e d  testimony i n  t h i s  docket, Docket Number 020071? 

A Yes . 
Q I f  the questions tha t  are posed i n  your p r e f i l e d  

testimony were posed today, would your answers be the same? 

A Yes. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q M r .  C icchet t i ,  d i d  you f i l e  an exh ib i t  attached t o  

your p re f i l ed  testimony as wel l? 

A Yes. 

MR. BURGESS: Commissioner, may we get an exh ib i t  

number f o r  tha t ,  for M r .  C i cche t t i ' s  exh ib i t?  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes. It w i l l  be Exhib i t  

MR. BURGESS: Thank you. 

(Exhib i t  16 marked for i den t i  f i  c a t i  on. ) 

MR. BURGESS: Commissioner, I would ask tha t  

16. 

Mr. C icche t t i ' s  testimony be entered i n t o  the record as Lhough 

read. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, i t  shal l  be 

inserted i n  the record. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

TESTIMONY 

OF 

MARK A. CICCHETTI 

Q. Please state your name and address and on whose behalf you are testifying in this 

proceeding. 

A. My name is Mark Anthony Cicchetti and my business address is 293 1 Kerry 

Forest Parkway, Suite 202, Tallahassee, Florida 32309. I am testifying on behalf of 

the Office of Public Counsel. 

Q. By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

A. I am a Project Manager and Manager of the Tallahassee Office for C.H. Guernsey 

& Co. Guernsey is an engineering, architectural and consulting firm that has been in 

business for 75 years. The services Guernsey provides include: cost-of-service and 

rate studies; regulatory and litigation support; economic and financial studies; 

valuation studies; power supply planning, solicitation, and procurement; fuel 

purchasing; transmission and distribution planning and facilities design; strategic 

planning; telecommunications and e-business applications; architectural design for 

headquarters and warehouse facilities; environmental assessments; security systems, 

and; web site development and internet applications. 

For ten years prior to joining C.H. Guernsey & Co., I was President of Cicchetti & 

Co., a financial research and consulting firm specializing in public utility finance, 

economics, and regulation. I also have been employed by the Florida State Board of 

Administration as Manager of Arbitrage Compliance and the Florida Public Service 

Coinmission as Chief of Finance. A detailed narrative description of my experience 

and qualifications is contained in Exhibit No. (MAC - 1). 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Have you previously testified before this Commission? 

Yes, I have testified before this Commission numerous times. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to address the leverage formula and the return on 

common equity the Commission should allow in this docket and to address the 

appropriate ratemaking treatment for the gains recognized by Utilities, Inc. of Florida 

on the sale of the Druid Isle water system and a portion of Oakland Shores water 

system and the Green Acres Campground water and wastewater systems. 

The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to rebut the testimonies of Hugh A. Gower 

and Steven M. Lubertozzi as they relate to gain on sale. 

ALLOWED RETURN 

Q. What is the leverage formula? 

A. The leverage formula is a linear equation that, using a given set of assumptions, 

estimates changes in equity cost for given changes in financial leverage (Le. the use 

of debt). The leverage formula has been in use in Florida since the late 1970’s. 

The theories underlying the leverage formula, as used in Florida, are based on the 

works of Modigliani and Miller (1958) and Miller (1977). According to Modigliani 

and Miller, the overall cost of capital remains constant despite changes in financial 

leverage. Therefore, the major premise underlying the leverage formula is that firms 

with different equity ratios will have different costs of equity even though they have 

the same business risk and the same overall cost of capital. This means that the 

increase in the required return on equity resulting from the use of leverage 

completely offsets the advantage of the increased use of lower cost debt. (See 

Modigliani and Miller, “The Cost of Capital, Corporation Finance and the Theory of 

2 
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Investment,” American Economic Review, June 1958, pp. 261-297 and Miller, “Debt 

and Taxes,” Journal of Finance, May 1977, pp. 261-275.) 

Q. Why is the leverage formula used to determine the allowed return on common 

equity for water and wastewater utilities in Florida? 

A. There are over 200 certificated water and wastewater utilities under the 

jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Coinmission (“FPSC”). Without a 

workable methodology such as the leverage formula, the costs and administrative 

burdens associated with cost of equity testimony, in potentially 200 rate cases, could 

become quite onerous. Additionally, many water and wastewater utilities are small 

operations that find it beneficial to avoid the costs associated with presenting cost of 

equity testimony. Consequently, applying a workable methodology such as the 

leverage formuIa lowers costs to all parties and serves the public interest. 

Q. What are the assumptions underlying the leverage formula? 

A. As stated in Public Service Commission Order No. PSC-02-0898-PAA-WS7 the 

four basic assumptions are: 1.) Business risk is similar for all water and wastewater 

utilities; 2) The cost of equity is a function of the equity ratio; 3) The marginal 

weighted average cost of investor capital is constant over the equity range of 40% to 

100%; and 4) The cost rate at an assumed Moody’s bond rating of baa3 plus a 50 

basis point private-placement premium and a 50 basis point small-utility premium 

represents the average marginal cost of debt to a Florida water and wastewater utility 

over an equity ratio range of 40% to 100%. 

Q. Are these assumptions reasonable? 

A. In general, yes. However, in this docket, the 50 basis point premium for small 

utilities should not be applied because Utilities, hc .  of Florida is one of the largest 

3 
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water and wastewater utilities in Florida. The 50 basis point premium for small 

utilities was incorporated in Order No. PSC-01-25 14-FOF-WS because two-thirds of 

Florida’s water and wastewater utilities range from small to very small. 

Consequently, the premium for small utilities should not be applied to Utilities, Inc., 

one of the few large water and wastewater utilities in the state. 

Q Please explain. 

A. In Order No. PSC-02-0898-PAA-WS, the Commission allowed three 

adjustments to the leverage formula to compensate for risks associated with the small 

size of the typical Florida water and wastewater utility. The three adjustments 

increased the leverage formula cost of equity by 140 basis points. The three 

adjustments are: 1) A bond yield differential of 40 basis points to compensate for the 

fact that Florida water and wastewater utilities are smaller than the companies used 

in the indexes to calculate the cost of equity; 2) A private-placement premium of 50 

basis points to recognize that investors require a premium for holding privately 

placed bonds that small firms issue as opposed to publicly issuing debt, and; 3) A 

small-utility risk premium of 50 basis points to recognize the financial stress, and 

hence risk, that small water and wastewater systems can experience. However, 

Utilities, Inc. of Florida is much larger than the average Florida water and 

wastewater utility. 

Historically, Florida water and wastewater utilities have been characterized as small 

(Class C), medium (Class B), and large (Class A) based on revenues. Typically, 

small firms have under $200,000 in revenue, medium sized firms have between 

$200,000 and $1,000,000 in revenue and large firms have over $1,000,000 in 

revenue. As of 2000, only nine water or wastewater systems had revenues over 

4 
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$1,000,000. As shown in the Company’s 2001 annual Report, Utilities, Inc. of 

Florida had revenues of over $2,050,000, more than four times the median revenue 

of the 78 intermediate sized Florida water and wastewater firms and more than 35 

times the median revenue of the 170 small Florida water and wastewater utilities 

cited in Order No. PSC-01-25 14-FOF-WS. 

Q. Was the fact that the adjusted leverage formula would be applied to large Florida 

firms as well as small Florida firms -- absent a protest by an interested party -- 

addressed at the hearing where the three adjustments for small size were proposed? 

A. Yes. Commissioner Deason questioned staff witness Lester conceming such 

application. Page 235 line 15 through Page 237 line 2 of the hearing transcript, 

which follows, is the dialogue between Commissioner Deason and staff witness 

Lester : 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I have a question concerning your 

adjustment for small companies. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Fifty basis points. And I understand in 

your analysis you chose to coinpare bond yields for triple B and BB 

plus. I don’t know what the terminology is. 

THE WITNESS: That’s BB+. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: BB+ and BBB. And you came out 

with an average of 83 basis points and then a range. And then you 

tempered that calculation somewhat, and correct me if I’m wrong, but 

I think you tempered that calculation somewhat for the fact that we 

really shouldn’t consider regulated utility companies as speculative 

5 
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grade, and so you chose 50 basis points - 

THE WITNESS: That’s correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: -as some type of quantification of the 

risk factor of a small company; correct? 

THE WITNESS: That’s correct, yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. First of all, let me ask you this. 

Do you consider all of the companies that we regulate in Florida to be 

small companies? 

THE WITNESS: No. I consider the average to be. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The average to be. 

THE WITNESS: Yeah. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. But any company in Florida can 

come in and choose the leverage formula, and if that is not protested 

by Public Counsel or someone else, then that’s what’s used regardless 

of the size of that company; correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But since the statute uses the term 

“average,” you think it’s appropriate then to allow any company to 

come in and choose that if they think it’s appropriate. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. I based my analysis on the statutory 

language, which I think is an average water and wastewater utility. 

Q. What rate of return on common equity should be allowed in this docket? 

A. Because Utilities, Inc. of Florida is significantly larger than the average water and 

wastewater utility in Florida, I recommend the Commission apply the leverage 
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formula without the third adjustment of 50 basis points for small size. Two 

adjustments for small size will remain, the 40 basis point bond-yield-differential 

adjustment to recognize the difference in size between the companies in the indexes 

used to calculate the cost of equity and Utilities, Inc. of Florida and the 50 basis 

point private-placement premium to recognize that investors require a liquidity 

premium to hold privately placed debt. It should be noted, the adjustments for small 

size are in addition to the recovery of the actual cost of debt. Although many Florida 

water and wastewater utilities are small, they are still regulated entities and have 

lower risk than similar non-regulated entities. It is not reasonable to assume, for the 

purposes of the leverage formula, that a well-managed, prudently-operated Florida 

water or wastewater utility would not meet the financial criteria necessary for an 

investment grade rating. Furthermore, bonds below investment grade are 

characterized, at best, as “uncertain as to position” by Moody’s. The ability of 

Utilities, Lnc. of Florida to pay its debts should not be considered “uncertain.” It is 

reasonable to assume the average marginal cost of debt to Utilities, Inc. of Florida 

WAW is equal to Moody’s bond rating of baa3 plus 50 basis points as a private- 

placement premium. A bond rating below baa3 is not investment grade. The 

additional third adjustment for size of 50 basis points for financial stress for small 

size is based on a bond yield below baa3. 

In defining its baa rating, Moody’s states, “Such bonds lack outstanding investment 

characteristics and in fact have speculative characteristics as well.” It would be 

unreasonable to assume that the debt of a Florida-regulated water or wastewater 

utility is below that described by Moody’s baa rating and therefore below investment 

grade. Furthermore, it would be unreasonable to assume it is uncertain that a 
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prudently operated Florida water or wastewater utility can pay its debts, particularly 

one of the largest water and wastewater utilities in Florida. Consequently, the. 

allowed return on common equity in this docket should be 10.41 % as opposed to 

10.9 1 %. The derivation of the leverage formula to arrive at the 10.41 % is shown on 

Exhibit No. (MAC-2). A return of 10.41 % will allow Utilities, Inc. of Florida 

to maintain its’ financial integrity and attract capital. 

GAIN ON SALE 

Q. What gains did Utilities, Inc. of Florida recognize on the sale of its Druid Isle 

water system, the sale of a portion of its Oakland Shores water system and the sale of 

its Green Acres Campground water and wastewater systems? 

A. Utilities, Inc. of Florida recognized a gain on sale of $61,699 for its Druid Isle 

water system and the portion of its Oakland Shores water system and a gain on sale 

of $269,661 for its Green Acres Campground water and wastewater systems. 

Q. What is the appropriate ratemaking treatment of the gains on sale of these water 

and wastewater systems? 

A. The appropriate ratemaking treatment of the gains on sale of the water and 

wastewater systems sold by Utilities, Inc. of Florida is to attribute the gains to 

ratepayers. Cost of service regulation as it is practiced in Florida, as well as most of 

the rest of the country, is a balancing of the interests of shareholders (i.ea9 the 

owners) and ratepayers and is based on the premise that shareholders are given the 

opportunity to recover their costs, including a fair return on their investment, and that 

ratepayers pay the reasonable and prudent costs associated with the provision of 

utility service. 

Q. How does appropriate application of cost-of-service regulation achieve the goal 

8 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

23 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

5 0 5  

of balancing the interests of shareholders and ratepayers? 

A. Cost-of-service regulation evolved as a way to deal with the natural monopoly 

characteristics associated with the provision of utility service. To understand how 

cost-of-service regulation benefits society one must understand market structure and 

its effect on a firm’s return on common equity. Market structure is the range of 

conditions (such as the number of firms, the economies of scale or scope, the type of 

product sold, and the demand for a product) that affects a firm’s behavior and 

performance. Market structure is best thought of as a continuum stretching between 

purely competitive markets and natural monopoly. Purely competitive markets are 

characterized by minimal economies of scale or scope - - that is, no single supplier 

has a natural cost advantage over other suppliers. In the short run, a firm can earn 

economic profits, (that is a return above its cost of capital) only if it is efficient or 

innovative. In the long run, a firm cannot earn above its cost of capital due to the 

ease of entry into, and exit from, the market. If a firm in an effectively competitive 

environment is earning above its cost of equity, new firms will try to share those 

profits. 

Another way to look at it is to recall that in economics, long-term is defined as the 

period of time necessary to change production processes. In the long-term, in an 

effectively competitive environment, a firm’s competitors will match its efficiency 

by changing their production processes. 

Natural monopoly markets, by contrast, are marked by substantial economies of 

scale or scope and decreasing average costs. This means one supplier can always 

serve the market at lower unit cost than two or more suppliers. Entry barriers are 

severe because the single most efficient provider will always be able to price below 

9 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I 

any potential entrant. Left unregulated, a natural inonopoly market will not produce 

competitive results. Assuming an industry is a natural monopoly (as are the water 

and wastewater industries), cost of service regulation benefits society by increasing 

output while reducing price and economic profits. Regulators achieve this by 

backing away from the objectives of allocative efficiency and marginal cost pricing, 

and establishing a “fair-retui-n” price. The “fair-return’’ price includes the reasonable 

and prudent costs associated with the provision of utility service including a fair 

return on invested capital. Although this does not produce a socialIy optimum price 

and output, it is an improvement over an unregulated natural monopoly. 

Because utilities must meet the peak demand for their products or services, they 

generally have significant excess capacity during periods of normal demand. This 

requires a high level of facilities investment, which means that the unit cost of 

production likely will decrease over a wide range of output. The result is a socially 

optimum price that is below average cost. Pricing here would likely result in 

bankruptcy. Therefore again, regulators set a “fair return” price that allows a utility 

to recover the reasonable and prudent costs associated with providing utility service, 

including an appropriate return on common equity. 

Q. What are the implications, under cost-of-service regulation, if the gains 

associated with the sale of utility plant are not attributed to ratepayers? 

A. Cost-of-service regulation contemplates ratepayers paying the net cost of 

providing utility service including a fair return on capital. All other things being 

equal, if the gain on sale of property is not attributed to ratepayers then the utility 

will be allowed to recover more then the cost of providing service. This is 

equivalent to consciously allowing a utility a return on common equity above the 

10 
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required return. Through depreciation, a utility realizes a return of capital and 

through a fair allowed rate of return a utility earns a return on capital. Shareholders 

are rewarded for the risks they take through the allowed return on common equity. 

The return is not guaranteed which provides an incentive for the firm to be efficient. 

The allowed return on common equity includes a premium to recognize the risks 

associated with providing utility service. To contend, all other things being equal, 

that a utility deserves to be allowed to recover more than the net cost of providing 

service plus a fair return on common equity is inconsistent with cost-of-service 

principles. 

Furthermore, it is unfair to ratepayers to allocate gains on the sale of regulated assets 

to shareholders when it is generally accepted that ratepayers should incur the cost of 

reasonably incurred losses on sales of regulated assets. 

Q. When are ratepayers required to incur the cost of losses on sales of utility assets 

under cost-of-service regulation? 

A. In recent years, when electric utilities were required to divest generation or 

transmission assets under “deregulation” it was generally accepted that ratepayers 

should bear any stranded costs (loss of value as compared to original cost) associated 

with the sale of regulated assets. The basic idea was that the utilities had made the 

investment to provide service under a regulatory compact, i.e. cost-of-service 

regulation, and that it was only fair that the ratepayers, not: the new customers, bear 

the stranded costs. In fact, to the best of my knowledge, in all states where it was 

contemplated there would be stranded costs under a plan of deregulation, whether 

actually implemented or just proposed, stranded costs were to be recovered from 

ratepayers. Consequently, under cost-of-service principles, the knife should cut both 

11 
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ways. Gains on sale and reasonable, prudently incurred losses on sale of utility 

assets (such as through forced divestiture) should be treated above the line for 

ratemaking purposes. Such treatment is consistent with sound cost-of-service 

regulation. 

Q. Please summarize your direct testimony. 

A Regarding the leverage formula and an appropriate allowed return, in Order No. 

PSC-02-0898-PAA-WS, the Commission allowed three adjustments to the leverage 

formula to compensate for risks associated with the small size of the typical Florida 

water and wastewater utility. The three adjustments increased the leverage formula 

cost of equity by 140 basis points. The three adjustments are: 1) A bond-yield 

differential of 40 basis points to compensate for the fact that Florida water and 

wastewater utilities are smaller than the companies in the indexes used to calculate 

the cost of equity; 2) A private-placement premium of 50 basis points to recognize 

that investors require a premium for holding privately placed bonds that small firms 

issue as opposed to publicly issuing debt, and; 3) A small-utility risk premium of 50 

basis points to recognize the financial stress, and hence risk, that small water and 

wastewater systems can experience. However, Utilities, Inc. of Florida is much 

larger than the average Florida water and wastewater utility. Because Utilities, Inc. 

of Florida is significantly larger than the average water and wastewater utility in 

Florida, I recommend the Commission apply the leverage formula without the third 

adjustment of 50 basis points for small size. Two adjustments for small size will 

remain, the 40 basis point bond-yield differential adjustment to recognize the 

difference in size between the companies in the indexes used to calculate the cost of 

equity and Utilities, Inc. of Florida and the 50 basis point private-placement 
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premium to recognize that investors require a liquidity premium to hold privately 

placed debt. It should be noted, the adjustments for small size are in addition to the 

recovery of the actual cost of debt. 

Regarding gains on sale, cost-of-service regulation contemplates that ratepayers pay 

the net cost of providing utility service including a fair return on capital. All other 

things being equal, if the gain on sale of property is not attributed to ratepayers than 

the utility will have been allowed to recover more than the cost of providing service. 

This would be equivalent to consciously allowing a utility a return on common 

equity above the required return. Through depreciation, a utility realizes a return of 

capital and through a fair allowed rate of return a utility earns a return on capital. 

Shareholders are rewarded for the risks they take through the allowed return on 

common equity. The return is not guaranteed which provides an incentive for the 

firm to be efficient. The allowed return on common equity includes a premium to 

recognize the risks associated with providing utility service. To contend, all other 

things being equal, that a utility deserves to be allowed to recover above the net cost 

of providing service plus a fair return on common equity is inconsistent with cost-of- 

service principles. 

REBUTTAL OF GOWER 

Q. On page 4 line 2 Mr. Gower states “Neither gains nor losses on sales of utility 

systems should be included in cost of service used for rate setting purposes.’’ Do you 

agree? 

A. No. Ratepayers should pay only the net cost of service under cost-of-service 

regulation. Furthermore, it is generally accepted that utilities that incur stranded 

costs when forced to sell assets should be kept whole through the ratemaking 

13 
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process. 

Q. On page 12 line 7, Mr. Gower states, “It is the investors whose capital is exposed 

to the risks of ownership and to whoin gains or losses--including those from property 

sales--should accrue.” Do you agree? 

A. No. As stated above, ratepayers should only bear the net cost-of-service under 

cost of service regulation and it is generally accepted that utilities should be allowed 

to recover stranded costs, Le. losses, when reasonably incurred. Furthermore, 

owners are compensated for the risks associated with the provision of utility service 

through the allowed return on common equity which includes a premium specifically 

for taking on the risks of ownership. Regarding gains on sale of property under cost- 

of-service regulation, ownership is not a relevant consideration. What is relevant is 

determination of the appropriate costs to be borne by ratepayers. For example, 

salvage value is netted against original cost to determine the amount of capital plant 

and equipment that is to be recovered through depreciation. I have never heard 

anyone argue that because shareholders are the owners of the plant and equipment 

used to provide utility service, salvage value should not be used to reduce the net 

cost of depreciation to ratepayers but instead should acciue to the owners. Likewise, 

gains on the sale of regulated property should be netted against the cost of service 

and accrue to the benefit of ratepayers. 

Q. On page 14, line 11. Mr. Gower states, “Failure to assign to investors gains or 

losses on sales of this type is not only confiscatory, unfair and improper, but also has 

adverse implications to the utilities ability to raise capital at reasonable costs.” Do 

you agree? 

A. No. It is hard to see how not assigning losses to investors is confiscatory to 
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investors and would have adverse implications to raising capital at a reasonable cost. 

Second, allowing a fair return on common equity, by definition, meets the capital 

attraction standard for raising capital at a fair price. All other things being equal, 

allowing gains on sales to be attributed 100% to shareholders allows shareholders to 

earn more than a fair return-directly the opposite of hampering the utility’s ability 

to attract capital at a reasonable cost. 

REBUTTAL OF LUBERTOZZI 

Q. On the fourth page, line 29 of Mr. Lubertozzi’s direct testimony, he states, “since 

the investors provide the capital and bear the risks, they are entitled to receive the 

return. Gains and losses on the sale of utility property are properly assigned to the 

owners of the facilities, just as in any other business enterprise. Utility investments 

are not risk free and may bear additional risks beyond the normal, predictable risks 

borne by other business enterprises.” Do you agree? 

A. No. As outlined in my rebuttal testimony to Mr. Gower’s direct testimony, under 

cost-of-service regulation, ownership is not a relevant consideration. What is 

relevant is determination of the appropriate costs to be borne by ratepayers. 

Furthermore, regulated utilities are not the same as any other business enterprise due 

to the natural monopoly nature of the utility business and the potential for undue 

discrimination as outlined in my direct testimony. As shown on page nine of the 

February 7,2002, staff recommendation in Docket No. 991890-WS, of the eight 

states that responded to the staff‘s survey that had an established policy or practice 

concerning gains on sale, only one had an established policy or practice of allocating 

100% of the gain to shareholders. Six had the established policy or practice of 

allocating 100% of the gain to ratepayers. Investors in utility stocks are compensated 
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for the risks incurred through the allowed return on common equity. Finally, it is 

generally accepted that regulated utilities are less risky than non-regulated 

companies. For example, rating agencies have recognized this fact in their 

publications and their financial benchmark criteria. 

Q. Please summarize your rebuttal testimony. 

A. Both Mr. Gower and Mr. Lubertozzi claim that because investors bear the risks 

associated with investment in utility assets, the utility should receive the gains on 

sale of utility property. However, investors are compensated for the risks they bear 

through the fair return allowed on common equity capital. Furthermore, under cost- 

of-service regulation, ownership is not a relevant consideration. What is relevant is 

determination of the appropriate costs to be borne by ratepayers. For example, 

salvage value is netted against original cost to determine the amount of capital plant 

and equipment that is to be recovered through depreciation. I have never heard 

anyone argue that because shareholders are the owners of the plant and equipment 

used to provide utility service, salvage value should not be used to reduce the net 

cost of depreciation to ratepayers but instead should accrue to the owners. Likewise, 

gains on the sale of regulated property should be netted against the cost of service 

and accrue to the benefit of ratepayers. 

Finally, Mr. Gower states, “Failure to assign to investors gains or losses on sales of 

this type is not only confiscatory, unfair and improper, but also has adverse 

implications to the utilities ability to raise capital at reasonable costs.” However, it is 

hard to see how not assigning losses to investors is confiscatory to investors and 

would have adverse implications to raising capital at a reasonable cost. Second, 

allowing a fair return on common equity, by definition, meets the capital attraction 

16 
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standard for raising capital at a fair price. All other things being equal, allowing 

gains on sales to be attributed 100% to shareholders allows shareholders to earn 

more than a fair return--directly the opposite of hampering the utility's ability to 

attract capital at a reasonable cost. 

Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 

A. Yes. 
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size should not be applied because Utilities, Inc. o f  Florida 
is one o f  the largest water and wastewater utilities in 
Florida. The 50 basis point premium for small utilities was 

' incorporated in 2001 because two- thi rds o f  F1 o r i  da ' s water and 
wastewater uti 1 ities range from small to very small . 

514 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q M r .  Cicchetti, would you provide the Commission with 
a summary o f  your testimony, please. 

A Yes. Good morning, Commissioners. The purpose o f  my 

direct testimony is t o  address the return on common equity the 
Commission should allow in this docket and to address the 
appropriate ratemaking treatment f o r  the gains recognized by 
Utilities, Inc. o f  Florida on the sale o f  the Druid Isle water 
system, a portion o f  the Oakland Shores water system, and the 
Green Acres Campground water and wastewater system. 

The company has requested the return on common equity 
in this docket be set using the leverage formula. Standard 
appl ication o f  the leverage formul a incorporates three 
adjustments to compensate for the small size o f  the average 
water and wastewater utility in Florida. The adjustments for 
small size include a 44 basis point adjustment t o  make the cost 

asis point 
- uti 1 i ty 

o f  debt equal t o  the lowest investment grade, a 50 
pri vate- pl acement premium and a 50 basi s poi nt smal 
premium which was incorporated in 2001. 

In this docket the 50 basis point  premium 
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Utilities, Inc. o f  Florida is  very large relative t o  
the average Florida water and wastewater u t i l i t y ,  and 

Zonsequently, the premium for small size should not be app 

Two adjustments o f  almost a fu l l  .percentage point  for smal 
size will remain. 

Regarding the gains on sale of the water and 

dastewater system sold by Utilities, Inc. o f  Florida, the 

ied. 

appropriate treatment i s t o  attribute the gains t o  ratepayers 
2ost -of - service regulation contempl ates ratepayers paying the 
net cost o f  providing u t i l i t y  service, including a fair return 
on cap i t a l .  All other things being equal, i f  the gain on sale 
of property i s  not attributed t o  ratepayers, then the u t i l i t y  

will be allowed t o  recover more t h a n  the cost of providing 
servi ce. 

Through depreciation a u t i 1  i t y  real izes a return of 

capital, and through a fair allowed rate o f  return a u t i l i t y  

earns a return on c a p i t a l .  All other things being equal, a 
u t i l i t y  recovering more t h a n  the net cost o f  providing service 
plus a fair  return on common equity i s  inconsistent w i t h  

cost - of - servi ce pri nci pl es . 
Final ly ,  i t  is unfair t o  ratepayers t o  allocate the 

gains on the sale o f  regulated assets t o  shareholders when i t  

i s  generally accepted t h a t  ratepayers should incur the cost o f  

reasonably incurred losses on sales o f  regulated assets. 
example, i n  recent years when electric ut i l i t ies  were required 

For 
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t o  divest generation and transmission assets under 
deregul a t ion ,  i t  was general l y  accepted t h a t  ratepayers shou 

bear any stranded costs; t h a t  i s ,  loss o f  value compared t o  
d 

original costs. The basic idea was t h a t  the uti l i t ies had made 
an investment t o  provi de servi ce under a regul atory compact, 
t h a t  i s ,  cost-of-service regulation, and t h a t  i t  was only fair 
t h a t  the ratepayers, not  the new customers, bear the stranded 
costs. 

Consequent1 y , under cost - o f  - service pri nci pl es, the 
knife should cut both ways. Gains on sale as well as 
reasonable, prudently incurred losses on the sale o f  u t i l i t y  

assets should be treated above the line f o r  regulatory 
purposes. 

Regarding the rebuttal portion o f  my testimony, both 

M r .  Gower and Mr. Lubertozzi claim t h a t  because investors bear 
the risks associated w i t h  the investment i n  u t i l i t y  assets, the 
u t i l i t y  should receive the gains on the sale of u t i l i t y  

property. However, investors are compensated for the risks 
their bear through the f a i r  return allowed on common equity 
cap i t a l .  

Addit ional ly ,  Mr. Gower, regarding gains  or  losses on 
sales, states, "Failure t o  assign t o  investors gains or  losses 
on sales o f  this type i s  not only confiscatory, unfair and 

improper, but  also has adverse implications t o  the uti l i t ies 
a b i l i t y  t o  raise capital a t  reasonable costs." However, i t  i s  
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rlard t o  see how not assigning losses t o  investors i s  

zonfi scatory t o  investors and would have adverse imp1 i c a t i  ons 

to  r a i s i n g  capi ta l  a t  a reasonable cost. 

Allowing a f a i r  re tu rn  .on common equ i ty  by d e f i n i t i o n  

beats the cap i ta l  a t t rac t i on  standards f o r  r a i s i n g  capi ta l  a t  a 

f a i r  p r i ce .  A l l  other th ings being equal, a l lowing gains on 

sales t o  be a t t r i bu ted  100 percent t o  shareholders a1 1 ows 

shareholders t o  earn more than a f a i r  re turn,  d i r e c t l y  the 

Dpposi t e  o f  hampering the u t i  1 i t i e s  abi 1 i t y  t o  a t t r a c t  capi ta l  

a t  a reasonable cost. That concludes my summary. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Mr. Cicchet t i  . We tender 

the witness. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : M r .  Friedman. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
BY MR. FRIEDMAN: 

Q Mr. Cicchet t i  , i n  preparing your opinions, d i d  you 

review p r i o r  Pub1 i c Service Commi ssi  on orders i nvol v i  ng C1 ass A 

u t i l i t i e s  as i t  re la tes  t o  the cost o f  equity? 

A In general I did,  yes. 

Q Was the leverage graph - - leverage formula used i n  

those r a t e  proceedings a t  l e a s t  since i t ' s  been adopted? 

A Are you asking me i f  the leverage formula has been 

used i n  a l l  r a te  cases for Class A u t i l i t i e s  since i t ' s  been 

adopted? 
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Q Yes, based on what you reviewed i n  preparation f o r  

;his hearing. 

A I d i d n ' t  - -  I thought you were re fe r r i ng  t o  orders 

r i t h  regard t o  gain on sa le .  

10 orders regarding the 1 everage formul a. 

I d i d n ' t  know you were r e f e r r i n g  

Q I'm sorry. I apologize. I was s t a r t i n g  a t  the 

ieginning o f  your testimony instead o f  a t  the end. 

In preparation o f  your testimony on the re tu rn  on 

?qui ty,  d i d  you review p r i o r  orders o f  the Commission f o r  Class 

\ u t i l i t i e s  and how the Commission previously addressed the 

neturn on equ i ty  issue? 

A No, I d id  not. 

Q You d i d n ' t  th ink  tha t  was relevant t o  see what the 

:ommission had done i n  the past? 

A No, I d i d  not. 

Q So you don ' t  know whether the theory t h a t  you espouse 

here has been espoused i n  any p r i o r  PSC proceeding? 

A 

Q 

points. 

Which theory are you re fe r r i ng  to?  

I'm t a l k i n g  about your e l im ina t ing  the 50 basis 

A That 's not a theory. That 's  j u s t  my recommendation 

i n  t h i s  pa r t i cu la r  case. 

Q So you d i d n ' t  - - i n  preparing t h a t  recommendation, 

you d i d n ' t  t h ink  i t  was important t o  see i f  the Commission had 

ever u t i l i z e d  or accepted that  type o f  recommendation before? 
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A No, I d i d n ' t .  I ' m  not a kind o f  person t h a t  th inks 

i f  something was done wrong i n  the past should continue t o  do 

i t. 

i s  regardless o f  what was done in. the past. 

that the Commission has ever addressed t h i s  issue w i t h  regard 

to the t h i r d  adjustment f o r  smal l  s ize t h a t  was incorporated i n  

I ' m  someone t h a t  th inks we should do what the r i g h t  t h ing  

But I'm not aware 

? O M .  

Q 
jev i  ated 

A t i  1 i ti e 

A 

So you don ' t  know whether the Commission has ever 

from the use o f  the leverage formula f o r  Class A 

? 

O f f  the top  of my head, I don ' t  know t h a t  i t ' s  always 

ieen used. 

na jo r i t y  o f  cases, but what was allowed i n  the pas t  i s  not 

Dar t i cu la r ly  relevant t o  me. 

2nd addressing tha t  issue i n  t h i s  docket t h a t ' s  relevant f o r  

t h i s  docket. 

Q 

I t h i n k  i t ' s  used i n  the major i t y  - -  by f a r  the 

I t ' s  what the cost o f  equi ty  i s  

With a l l  due respect, I ask you the questions because 

I t h ink  they ' re  relevant. 

A Well, I'm g iv ing  you my answer, and I don ' t  t h ink  

i t  ' s re1 evant. 

Q On Page 4, Line 1, you s tate t h a t  the 50 bas is  points 

vJas added because two- th i rds  o f  the water and wastewater 

u t i l i t i e s  are small t o  very small ; i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And what facts  do you base t h a t  upon? 
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dhat database d i d  you have t o  base t h a t  upon? 

A I n  the hearing i n  2001 t h a t  was one o f  the issues 

that was brought forward, as wel l  as f o r  t ha t  pa r t i cu la r  

adjustment i n  Mr. Lester 's testimony, he mentioned tha t  most or 
many o f  the  water u t i l i t i e s  i n  F lor ida were smal l  or very small 

that  had revenues below $1 m i l l i o n ,  and t h a t ' s  not the case i n  

t h i s  docket or for U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc.  o f  Flor ida.  

Q I t ' s  not your opinion, i s  it, tha t  the leverage 

formula was not intended when i t  was adopted t o  apply t o  a l l  

u t i l i t i e s ,  inc lud ing Class As, i s  it? 

A The way you structured the question I t h i n k  - -  i t  
gives me a l i t t l e  b i t  o f  a problem. The leverage formula i s  

out there for water u t i  1 i t i e s ,  water and wastewater u t i  1 i t i e s  

t o  avai l  themselves o f  i f  they want t o ;  they don ' t  have to .  

And any pa r t y  t h a t  th inks t h a t  t h a t ' s  not an appropriate re tu rn  

f o r  a pa r t i cu la r  company can p e t i t i o n  the Commission t o  address 

tha t  issue. 

Q Where do you get t h a t  l a s t  opinion you j u s t  gave, 

t ha t  i f  you don ' t  l i k e  the leverage formula, any par ty  can 

challenge i t  and ask - -  where do you get t ha t  factual opinion? 

A That 's  my understanding o f  how the Commission 

operates. 

Q From whom or what? 

A Based on my experience. I don ' t  know t h a t  any 

interested par ty  could not p e t i t i o n  the Commission about any 
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Ispect o f  a ra te  increase. 

Q So you're not d i rec t i ng  t o  a pa r t i cu la r  r u l e  or 
;tatUte t h a t  says you can do tha t?  

A 

;tates t h a t  i t  can be used. 

ised 

Well, the Commission's . ru le  on the leverage formula 

It doesn't say tha t  i t  must be 

Q But it doesn't say whose decision i t  i s  t o  suggest it 

,e used. 

A Well, j u s t  based on my experience, the Commission 

rill decide what issues are t o  be allowed i n  a case. And I 

j o n ' t  have any bel  i e f  t h a t  an in terested par ty  wouldn't be 

j iven an opportunity t o  make t h a t  case before the Commission 

for them t o  decide. 

Q Are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  the  s ta tu te  tha t  authorizes the 

:ommi ssion t o  establ i sh the 1 everage formul a? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know whether t h a t  s ta tute allows a par ty  other 

than the u t i l i t y  t o  chose t o  use something other than the 

leverage formula? I f  you don ' t  know, say so. 

A We1 1, i t ' s  - - I know what the s ta tu te  says or  what 

the r u l e  says w i th  regard t o  the leverage formula. 

know t h a t  t h a t ' s  a l l  encompassing w i t h  regard t o  who may 

p e t i t i o n  the Commission or not .  

1 don ' t  

Q So you don ' t  know whether t h a t  s ta tute t h a t  

authorizes the Commission t o  set t ha t  says tha t  only a u t i l i t y  
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3r not? 

A I t ' s  - -  having read i t  many times, i t ' s  my 

mderstanding tha t  t h a t  does not preclude an interested par ty  

from p e t i t i o n i n g  the Commission. . That 's obviously a legal  

issue, bu t  as someone t h a t ' s  deal t  w i th  i t  for over 20 years, 

i t ' s  - - I have no knowledge tha t  no one can challenge a 

u t i l i t y ' s  use o f  the leverage formula. That 's  j u s t  not my 

understanding o f  how i t  works. But for a legal  opinion, you'd 

have t o  ask a lawyer. 

Q I s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  the leverage formula when i t ' s  

adopted each year i s  intended t o  apply t o  a l l  water and 

wastewater u t i l i t i e s  i n  Flor ida notwithstanding they ' re  Class A 

o r  otherwi se? 

A Well, I have a problem w i th  your use o f  the word 

"apply." I t ' s  out there f o r  companies t o  ava i l  themselves o f  

i f  they would l i k e  t o ,  but  i t ' s  not required t h a t  they do, and 

i t ' s  not  a requirement t ha t  the Commission use only tha t  number 

t h a t ' s  derived from the leverage formula as the allowed re tu rn  

on equi ty.  

Q So i t ' s  your opinion then t h a t  the Commission cannot 

adopt t h a t  leverage formula every year and automatical ly apply 

i t  t o  every wa te r  and sewer u t i l i t y  throughout the industry? 

A Oh, they could i f  they wanted t o ,  but i t ' s  my 

understanding tha t  they don't have t o ,  and t h a t  a u t i l i t y  

doesn't have t o  use it, and tha t  a par ty  can p e t i t i o n  the 
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:ommission to use something other - - an interested party can 
letition the Commission to use something other than that. 

And that leverage formula doesn't differentiate Q 
Jetween Class A or other utilities? 

A No, it doesn't. 

Q So as it's adopted, it's intended t o  apply to Class A 

ut-ilities, is it not? 
A It's intended to apply to the average utility is what 

the wording in the rule in the statute says, I believe. 
Q So you' re saying it doesn't apply - - that leverage 

formula does not apply to Class A utilities? 
A I didn't say that. 
Q Well, I'm - -  

A I'm just saying, the leverage formula is adopted 
annually by the Commission, and a utility can choose t o  use 
that in its filing for a rate case if i t  choses t o  do so. 

A It's 
wastewater uti 

Q That 
i s  it applicab 

Q Including Class A utilities. 
A That's correct. 
Q So when the rule is adopted, it was intended t o  apply 

to Class A utilities, was it not? 
intended to apply to any uti1 ity - - water or 
ity that wants to avail itself o f  it. 

was a really simple answer. 
e to Class A utilities? 

I just asked you, 

MR. BURGESS: Commissioner, that question has been 
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asked and answered several t imes a t  t h i s  po in t .  I don ' t  mind 

the witness answering again; I j u s t  don ' t  know how many t imes 

de ' re  going t o  run through t h i s  same c i r c l e .  

MR. FRIEDMAN: He doesn't answer the question. He 

goes i n t o  a discourse instead o f  saying yes. That 's a very 

simple - - easy answer. A1 1 he had t o  say, does i t  apply t o  

Class A s ,  yes, and he goes i n t o  some discourse about i t  

applying t o  everybody i n  the industry.  

i s  simple questions. 

I mean, a l l  I ' m  asking 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : And I ' 1  1 i nstruct  the witness, 

t o  the extent possible, answer "yes" or "no," and then you may 

e l  aborate 

THE WITNESS: Yes, i t  can apply t o  Class A u t i l i t i e s ,  

but there 's  nothing i n  the order or i n  the r u l e  or i n  the 

s tatute tha t ,  t o  my knowledge, s p e c i f i c a l l y  says t h i s  applies 

t o  Class A u t i l i t i e s .  

appl i e s  t o  whatever water and wastewater u t i 1  i t y  would 1 i ke t o  

a v a i l  i t s e l f  o f  it. I ' m  not t r y i n g  t o  be argumentative. 

BY MR. FRIEDMAN: 

I'm j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  make i t  clear t h a t  i t  

Q The Commission has ru les,  does i t  not, t ha t  does 

d i f f e r e n t i a t e  between Class A and other classes o f  u t i l i t i e s ?  

A Yes. 

Q So wouldn't you assume then t h a t  i f  t h i s  leverage 

graph were intended t o  apply o r  not apply t o  Class As ,  t ha t  i t  

would have said so? 
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A Certainly.  And I: guess you ' re  j u s t  making my po in t .  

It doesn't s p e c i f i c a l l y  say. 

everyone, not j u s t  Class A u t i l i t i e s .  

informative as I can. 

I ' m  j u s t  saying i t  applies t o  

I ' m  j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  be as 

Q You t e s t i f i e d  also tha t  the 50 basis po in t  premium 

should be applied i n  t h i s  case because o f  the large s ize o f  

U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc . ;  i s  t h a t  correct? 

A I ' m  saying i t  should not be applied based on the 

large s ize r e l a t i v e  t o  the arguments tha t  I heard during the 

hearing t h a t  adopted t h a t  and the subsequent discussions o f  

tha t .  

Q 
A Yes. 

Q 

And you par t i c ipa ted  i n  those hearings, d i d  you not? 

And i s n ' t  i t  t rue  t h a t  the opinion tha t  you sought t o  

have adopted was t h a t  the 50 basis po in t  r i s k  premium was 

unnecessary for a1 1 water and wastewater u t i  1 i t i e s  and not j u s t  

the Class As? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A No. They adopted the 50 basis po in t  t h i r d  adjustment 

And t h a t  was not adopted by the Commission, was it? 

f o r  small size. 

Q Is my understanding o f  your testimony - -  I ' m  moving 

on t o  gain on sale. 

opinion t h a t  by v i r t u e  o f  paying rates, t h a t  the customer 

obtains some propr ie tary  i n te res t  i n  the u t i  1 i t y  assets? 

Is my understanding correct  t h a t  i t ' s  your 
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A Absol utely not .  

Q Wouldn't you agree t h a t  the sale o f  a u t i l i t y ' s  

assets is  not the provision o f  a u t i l i t y  service? 
A That's not an operating. concept. My position has t o  

do w i t h ,  f o r  lack o f  a better term, keeping the pot whole and 

bal anci ng the i nterests o f  ratepayers and shareholders , and not 
every decision is  an operating decision t h a t  affects rates. 

On Page 11, Line 10 ,  you state t h a t  i t  i s ,  quote, Q 
general l y  accepted, end quote, t h a t  ratepayers incur the 1 oss 
on sales o f  regulatory assets. Do you recall t h a t ?  

A Yes. 

Q 

A Looking a t  deregulation across the country, i n  every 
And what ' s  the factual basis o f  t h a t  opinion? 

state t h a t  I'm aware o f  t h a t  contemplated t h a t  where they 
addressed how stranded costs or stranded gains would be 
treated, i t  was always t h a t  ratepayers would bear those costs. 

And you t h i n k  t h a t  the theory regarding deregulation Q 
o f  a water and ought t o  be equal l y  appl icable t o  a sal e 

wastewater system i n  Florida? 
A Yes. 

Q And the sales o f  these UIF sys 

of deregulation, is i t?  

A That's correct. 

*ems i s  not the result 

Q You state t h a t  - -  or make the argument t h a t  customers 
are entitled t o  return on gain on sales because the  
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shareholders earn a re tu rn  on cap i ta l  through depreciation and 

return on capi ta l  through the r a t e  o f  return;  correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And can you explain to.me why you th ink  the customers 

should be e n t i t l e d  t o  the appreciation on any asset - -  

A I th ink  the basic concept behind cos t -o f -serv ice  

regulat ion i s  a balancing o f  the i n te res ts  o f  shareholders and 

ratepayers, and t h a t ' s  accompl i shed through having ratepayers 

bear the net costs o f  u t i l i t y  service, inc lud ing an appropriate 

re turn.  I t h ink  i t ' s  wel l  established t h a t  through the 

regulatory compact, stranded costs, which are assets tha t  are 

going t o  be sold by the regulated u t i l i t y  t h a t  were devoted t o  

regulated service, i f  there 's  a loss associated w i th  those, 

t h a t  the customers should bear tha t .  I t h i n k  t h a t ' s  f a i r  and 

reasonable. And I t h ink  the k n i f e  should cut  both ways, t h a t  

the company would be whole, would remain whole i f  the net cost 

i s  associated w i th  the sale o f  assets i s  what the ratepayer 

bears and any gains go towards the ratepayers. 

1 th ink  Commissioner Deason mentioned a l i t t l e  

e a r l i e r  a decision where one Commission considered tha t  t o  be 

recovery o f  depreciation, t h a t  the ratepayers would have paid 

more depreciation. I t h i n k  t h a t ' s  the general concept behind 

the ratepayers pay the net cost. And so as long as t h a t ' s  

done, I t h ink  the company remains whole, each side i s  t reated 

fa i r ly ,  there 's  a balancing o f  the in te res ts ,  and t h a t ' s  the 
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way i t  should be treated. 

I believe a t  deposition M r .  Gower thought tha t  i f  

there was a loss through stranded assets, t h a t  the customers 

should pay tha t  and t h a t  the shareholders should receive any 

gain. I j u s t  don ' t  t h ink  t h a t ' s  an appropriate balancing o f  

the i n te res t .  

shake, and I t h ink  cos t -o f -serv ice  p r inc ip les  are based on a 

bal anci ng o f  the i n te res t  . 

I th ink t h a t ' s  ratepayers not ge t t i ng  a f a i r  

Q And you th ink  the cost o f  service includes the 

appreciat ion on an asset that  the u t i l i t y  owned and you 

admitted d i d  not have a propr ie tary  i n t e r e s t  i n  and sold? 

A I t h ink  )the pr inc ip les  behind cost -of -serv ice 

regulat ion incorporate tha t ,  and t h a t ' s  based on keeping the 

u t i l i t y  whole w i th  regard t o  what i s  done t o  provide u t i l i t y  

service. Another example I t h ink  i s  the  salvage value 

associated w i th  p lan t  equipment. At some po in t  i f  a u t i l i t y  

recovers salvage value, no one generally, not t h a t  I'm aware 

o f ,  makes the argument t h a t  the shareholder i s  the owner o f  

t h a t ,  and therefore, i t  shouldn't  be netted against the cost o f  

the asset. And I t h i n k  the same th ing  applies as d i r e c t l y  

analogous t o  a gain on sale o f  assets devoted t o  regulatory 

service, t h a t  i f  there 's  a loss,  the ratepayers should bear i t  

as long as i t ' s  reasonably and prudently incurred, and i f  there 

i s  a gain, i t  should be netted against the  cost. 

Q So you agree wi th  Ms. Dismukes t h a t  the abandonment 
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loss i s  analogous t o  a sale o f  a system? 

A I t h ink  general ly speaking, yes, i t  i s .  

Q On Page 15 o f  your testimony, you discuss the resu l ts  

o f  the s t a f f  survey tha t  we spoke o f ,  I guess, when you were 

here when Ms. Dismukes was t e s t i f y i n g .  And you s tate t h a t  gain 

on sale, t h a t  s i x  o f  seven states have an established p o l i c y  t o  

give the gain on sale t o  the ratepayer. 

A P a r t i a l  - -  completely or a t  l eas t  p a r t i a l l y .  

Q And tha t  conclusion doesn't address the j u r i sd i c t i ons  

tha t  on1 r dea l t  w i th  water and' wastewater systems, does it? 

A That 's correct .  But my experience has been the water 

and wastewater indust ry  i s  more o f  a fo l lower than a leader 

wi th  regard t o  a l o t  o f  ideas. And i t ' s  i n te res t i ng  t o  see 

around the  country how t h i s  issue i s  t reated, and i t ' s  t reated 

d i f f e r e n t l y  i n  d i f f e r e n t  indust r ies as wel l  as between 

d i f f e r e n t  states. And so t h a t ' s  why I t h i n k  i t  helps t o  look 

a t  i t  from the e n t i r e  context, the basic premise o f  

cos t -o f -serv ice  regulat ion and balancing the i n te res ts  between 

ratepayers and shareholders. 

Q But a t  l eas t  thus f a r ,  doesn't i t  appear as i f  the 

j u r i s d i c t i o n  i s  not j u s t  F lor ida but the  j u r i s d i c t i o n s  

throughout the United States a t  t h i s  po in t  t r e a t  water and 

wastewater system sales d i f f e r e n t l y  than they do e l e c t r i c  and 

gas and telephone, a t  leas t  based on t h a t  survey t h a t  was 

attached? 
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A Well, as I said, there 's  dif ferences. I mean, some 

we t reated one way, some are t reated the other way between 

industr ies and between states and t h a t ' s  shown i n  t h i s  survey. 

Q But without me going through what I went through w i th  

4s. Dismukes, don ' t  you agree tha t  there are only two 

j u r i  sd ic t ions t h a t  have i ssued orders deal i ng w i th  water and 

nrastewater passing the gain on sale on water and wastewater 

:ases t o  e i t he r  party? 

A Based on t h a t  survey? 

Q Right. 

A Yes. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f .  

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. 

I have no fu r ther  questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q M r .  C icchet t i  , would you please take a look a t  

Page 3 o f  your testimony, r e f e r r i n g  t o  Lines 5 through 12. 

A Okay. 

Q Are you ind ica t ing  here t h a t  i t  would be burdensome 

for water and wastewater u t i l i t i e s  t o  f i l e  cost o f  equi ty  

testimony i n  r a t e  cases? 

A What I'm i nd ica t ing  i s  i t  would be burdensome t o  the 

Commission t o  have t o  hear tha t  many cases, and t h a t  the 

leverage formula i s  a way o f  t r e a t i n g  everyone fa i r l y  and 
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avoi d i  ng tha t .  

Q Do you agree also tha t  i t ' s  burdensome f o r  the 

companies - -  f o r  the water and wastewater companies because o f  

the f a c t  t h a t  they tend t o  be small? 

A Generally speaking, yes. 

Q I s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  reduced ra te  case expense i s  one 
o f  the benef i ts  f o r  u t i l i t i e s  and par t ies  using the leverage 

formula? 

A Yes. 

Q 

Line 3. 

Would you please t u r n  t o  Page 8 o f  your testimony a t  

A Okay. 

Q You're recommending 10.41 percent as the appropriate 

cost  r a t e  f o r  common equi ty;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q 

A 

And i n  your Exh ib i t  M A W  attached t o  your testimony? 

Yes - -  we l l ,  MAC-2 was j u s t  a re f i gu r ing  o f  the 

leverage formula without the 50 basis points.  You'd have t o  

apply the company's equi ty  ratio t o  get the recommended ROE. 

Q 

A 

t ha t  issue. 

What i s  the equi ty  r a t i o  tha t  you applied? 

Whatever i t  was i n  the f i l i n g ,  staff 's  pos i t i on  on 

I t h ink  i t  was approximately 46 percent. 

Q Was i t  46.11 percent, subject t o  check? Does tha t  

sound r i g h t ?  

A That sounds r i g h t .  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

532 

MS. GERVASI: We have passed out an e x h i b i t  t ha t  I ' d  

l i k e  t o  have marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n ,  please. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Exh ib i t  17. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. And w e ' l l  label  th-is, 

"Late-F i led Deposition Exh ib i t  MAC-1. I' 

(Exhi b i  t 17 marked f o r  i dent i  f i c a t i  on. ) 
BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q 

A Yes. 

M r .  C icchet t i ,  do you recogn ze t h i  s exh ib i t?  

Q Does i t  appear t o  be a t rue  and correct  copy o f  your 

Late-F i led Deposition Exh ib i t  MAC-l? 
A Yes. 

Q And t h i s  represents the current leverage formula w i th  

your adjustment removing the small u t i l i t y  r i s k  premium; i s  

that  correct? 

A Yes. 

Q With your adjustment and the current leverage 

formula, do you recommend t h a t  the appropriate cost r a t e  f o r  

common equ i ty  i s  10.94 percent? 

A I'll accept tha t ,  subject t o  check. 

Q Okay. Is your pos i t i on  t h a t  w i th  your recommended 

adjustment t o  remove the small u t i l i t y  r i s k  premium, the 

Commission should use the current leverage formula for t h i s  

case? 

A Yes. You said w i t h  the removal o f  the 50 basis po int  
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Q Correct. 

A Yes. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. That 's a l l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Redirect . 
MR. BURGESS: No, si r .  

Exhib i ts .  

d ask t h a t  Exh ib i t  

COMMISSIONER DEASON 

MR. BURGESS: I wou 

i n t o  - -  

COMMISSIONER DEASON . Without object  i oi 

Exh ib i t  16 i s admitted. 

(Exhib i t  16 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

MS. GERVASI: And we move Exh ib i t  17. 
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16 be moved 

, show tha t  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, show tha t  

Exh ib i t  17 i s admitted. 

(Exhib i t  17 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you, M r .  C icchet t i .  

THE WITNESS: Thank you , Commi ssioners. 

(Witness excused. ) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I bel ieve we have a number o f  

witnesses tha t  i t  has previously been i ndi cated may be 

s t ipu lated i n t o  the record. I would propose tha t  we go through 

t h a t  process a t  t h i s  time. 

MS. GERVASI: Yes. Thank you, s i r .  We have the 

testimony o f  seven DEP witnesses tha t  I would l i k e  t o  have 
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inserted i n t o  the record a t  t h i s  time beginning w i th  the 

testimony of James H. Berghorn consist ing o f  four pages. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Show t h a t  testimony inserted 

i n t o  the record. 

Help me. I f  any o f  these - -  i f  there 's  exhib i ts  f o r  

any o f  t h i s ,  l e t  me - -  

MS. GERVASI: There are no exh ib i t s  f o r  the seven DEP 

Il\ri tnesses. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . 
MS. GERVASI: Next i s  the testimony o f  Peter H. 

Burghardt consist ing o f  three pages. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Show t h a t  testimony inserted i n  

the record. 

MS. GERVASI: And then Kimberly M. Dodson which 

consists o f  s i x  pages. We do have one correct ion tha t  we would 

l i k e  t o  read i n  t o  her testimony which the  par t ies  have no 

object ion t o .  And t h a t  s ta r t s  a t  - -  i t ' s  a t  Page 5 o f  her 

testimony beginning on Line 17. The question i s  asked, " I s  the 

overa l l  maintenance o f  the treatment p l  ant and d i  s t r i  bu t i  on 

f aci  1 i ti e s sat i s factory? 'I 

And we'd l i k e  t o  replace her p r e f i l e d  answer which 

s t a r t s  on Line 19 o f  Page 5 and runs through Line 13 o f  

Page 6 w i t h  the fo l lowing language: 

County systems o f  Bear Lake, Crystal Lake, Jansen, Oakland 

Shores, Park Ridge, P h i l l i p s ,  Weathersfield, and L i t t l e  Wekiva. 

"Yes, f o r  the Seminole 
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the meta l  structure i s  heavi ly corroded. The u t i l i t y  has 

indicated t h a t  the aerator w i l l  he replaced w i th  a f iberglass 

u n i t  w i th  work set t o  begin on o r  about September 1, 2003. 

Correspondence from the u t i 1  i t y  indicates t h a t  the contractor 

has begun the necessary custom prefabr icat ion steps and tha t  

the work i s  expected t o  be complete by September 26, 2003." 

And t h a t  completes the correct ion.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Show t h a t  testimony 

inserted as corrected. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. Next i s  Paul J .  Morrison 

Zonsisting o f  seven pages. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Show t h a t  testimony inserted i n  

the record. 

MS. GERVASI: Gary P. M i l l e r ,  two pages. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Show tha t  testimony inserted i n  

the record. 

MS. GERVASI : W i  11 i am V . Ryl and, four pages 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Show t h a t  testimony inserted i n  

the record. 

MS . GERVASI : And Pepe Menendez, three pages. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Show t h a t  testimony inserted i n  

the record. 

MS. GERVASI : Thank you. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

536 

Next, we would c a l l  Ms. Kathy Welch t o  the stand - - 

I ' m  sorry, Mr. J e f f  S m a l l  comes f i r s t .  I missed one. 

It i s  my understanding tha t  the par t ies  may not have 

any questions for M r .  S m a l l .  I s  t h a t  the case? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: I don' t  have any questions f o r  

Mr. S m a l l .  

MR. BURGESS: I had some but I can forego them. When 

I said t h a t  i t  was yesterday, saying tha t  I d i d n ' t  mind him 

being excused. I'll forego cross. I don ' t  have anything. 

MS. GERVASI: Okay. I d i d n ' t  mean t o  - -  

MR. BURGESS: That 's a l l  r i g h t .  

MS. GERVASI: Just i n  the i n te res t  o f  expediency, but 

i f  t h a t ' s  the case, then we would request t h a t  M r .  Je f f rey  A. 

S m a l l  ' s testimony a1 so be inserted i n t o  the record as though 

read. And he has one exh ib i t ,  JAS-1, t ha t  we would ask t o  be 

i d e n t i f i e d  and also moved i n .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. That w i l l  be i d e n t i f i e d  

as Exh ib i t  18. And t h a t ' s  p r e f i l e d  JAS-l? 
MS. GERVASI: Yes, s i r .  

(Exh ib i t  18 marked for i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  and admitted 

i n t o  the record. ) 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: And show the p r e f i  

o f  Je f f rey  A. S m a l l  inserted i n t o  the record. 

And j u s t  l e t  me - - Commissioners, do you 

questions for t h i s  witness? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

ed t e s t  i mony 

have any 
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Okay. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. And d i d  you say i t  was 

I believe the witness may be excused. 

moved i n  as well, Commissioner? 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes, the testimony and the 

exh ib i t ,  Exh ib i t  18. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A.  

Q. 
A. 

4. 

A.  

4. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF JAMES H .  BERGHORN 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

James H .  Berghorn, 3804 Coconut P a l m  Dr ive ,  Tampa, FL 33619. 

P1 ease s t a t e  a b r i e f  desc r ip t i on  o f  your educational background and 

experience. 

I have degrees i n  both L ibe ra l  A r t s  and Biology. A . A .  degree i n  L ibe ra l  

A r t s ;  B . S .  degree i n  B io logy .  

I have worked f o r  the Sta te  o f  F lo r i da  from 1978 t o  present.  I worked 

i n Research Lab and f i  el d co l  1 e c t i  on o f  envi ronmental sampl es , d r i  nk i  ng 

water,  domestic water, and res taurant  inspec tor .  

By whom are you present ly  employed? 

Department o f  Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion  (DEP) 

How long have you been employed w i t h  the Department o f  Environmental 

P ro tec t i on  and i n what capaci ty? 

Ten years.  

What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  t h e  Department o f  

Envi ronmental Protect ion? 

Inspect water p l  ants f o r  compl i ance w i t h  F . A .  C. Chapters 62-550 : 62-555; 

62-699 and a l l  compliance regu la t ions  f o r  t he  State o f  F l o r i d a .  

Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a ’ s  water systems i n  

Marion County, par t i  cul ar ly the  Go1 den H i  11 s and Crownwood systems? 

I am f a m i l i a r  w i t h  the  water system i n  Golden H i l l s  t h a t  a lso  serves the 

Crownwood subdi v i  s i  on. 

Does the  u t i l i t y  have any cu r ren t  cons t ruc t ion  permits from the 

Department o f  Envi ronmental P ro tec t i  on? 

I 
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A.  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A. 

4. 

A .  

4. 

No. A cons t ruc t ion  permit  i s  no t  required f o r  e x i s t i n g  water systems. 

Are t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  treatment f a c i l i t i e s  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems 

s u f f i c i e n t  t o  serve i t s  present customers? 

Yes. 

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  maintain the  required 20 ps i  minimum pressure 

throughout the d i s t r i b u t i o n  system? 

Yes. 

Does t h e  u t i  

Code f o r  an 

outage? 

i t y  comply w i t h  Section 62-550.515, F l o r i d a  Admin is t ra t i ve  

adequate a u x i l i a r y  power source i n  the event o f  a power 

Yes. However, an a u x i l i a r y  power p lan  i s  n o t  on f i l e .  

Are the  u t i  1 i t y ’ s  water we1 1s l oca ted  i n  compl i ance w i t h  appl icable DEP 

regu 

Yes. 

Does 

F1 or 

Yes. 

a t i  ons? 

t h e  u t i  1 i t y  have c e r t i  T i  ed operators as requ i red  by Chapter 62-602, 

da Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code? 

Has t h e  u t i  1 i t y  es tab l  i shed a cross-connecti  on con t ro l  program i n  

accordance w i t h  Sect ion 62-555.360, F l o r i d a  Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code? 

A f i l e  review i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  on 6/30/00,  a san i ta ry  survey; a 

bac te r io log i ca l  sampl i ng p l  an : a cross connection con t ro l  p l  an; and an 

a u x i l i a r y  power p lan  were requested. As o f  t h i s  date,  I have no t  seen 

or reviewed any o f  these pl ans , nor cou ld  I f i n d  them i n  the  f i  l e s  . 

Is t h e  ove ra l l  maintenance o f  t he  t reatment p l a n t  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  

f a c i l i t i e s  s a t i s f a c t o r y ?  

-3- 
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A .  

Q. 

A.  

Q -  
A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A.  

Q. 

A .  

4. 

A.  

Q .  

Yes. 

Does the  f i n i s h e d  water produced 

federa l  maximum contaminant leve  

q u a l i t y  standards? 

Yes. 

by the u t i l i t y  meet t h e  State and 

s f o r  primary and secondary water 

Does t h i s  inc lude the l ead  and copper ru le?  

Yes. 

Has t h e  u t i  7 i ty’s compl i ance w i t h  the lead and copper r u l e  resu l ted  i n  

a 1 esseni ng o f  t h e  moni t o r i  ng requi rements? 

Yes. 

Does the  u t i  1 i ty monitor t he  organic contaminants l i s t e d  i n  Section 62- 

55.410, F lo r i da  Admin is t ra t i ve  Code? 

Yes. 

Do recent chemical analyses o f  r a w  and f i n i s h e d  water, when compared t o  

DEP regul  a t i  ons, suggest the need f o r  addi ti onal treatment? 

No. 

Does the  u t i l i t y  maintain the  requ i red  ch 

equi va len t  throughout t h e  d i  s t r i  b u t i  on system? 

Yes. 

o r i  ne residua or i t s  

Are the  p l a n t  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems i n  compliance w i t h  a l l  t he  

p rov is ions  o f  T i t l e  62, F l o r i d a  Admin i s t ra t i ve  Code, no t  prev 

men t i oned? 

Yes. 

o ther  

ously 

Has t h e  u t i l i t y  been t h e  subject  o f  any Department o f  Environmental 

P ro tec t i on  enforcement a c t i  on w i  t h i  n t he  pas t  two years? 
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A .  No. 

Q .  

A .  No, 1 do n o t .  

Do you have anything fur ther  t o  add 
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Q. 
A .  

Q. 

A .  

4 .  
A .  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PETER H. BURGHARDT 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

Peter H. Burghardt. 3804 Coconut P a l m  D r i ve ,  Tampa, FL 33617. 

P1 ease s t a t e  a b r i e f  desc r ip t i on  o f  your educational background and 

experi ence. 

B . A .  Biology from Un ive rs i t y  o f  South F l o r i d a  - 1980 

1982 - 1990 - Pasco County Health Department 

1990 t o  present w i t h  F l o r i d a  Department o f  Environmental Pro tec t ion  as 

an Envi ronmental Speci a1 i s t  i n  Domesti c Wastewater. 

By whom are you present ly  employed? 

Department o f  Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion  (DEP) 

How long have you been employed w i t h  t h e  Department o f  Environmental 

Pro tec t ion  and i n  what capacity? 

Since 1990. Domestic Wastewater Compl i ance/Inspection Section as 

Envi ronmental Speci a1 i s t .  

What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  the  Department o f  

Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion? 

Perform compl i ance i nspect i  ons o f  domestic wastewater f a c i  1 i t i e s  t o  

ensure they are opera t ing  w i t h i n  permi t  l i m i t s  and i n  accordance w i t h  

department r u l  es . Pursue enforcement, where appl i cab1 e ,  t o  b r i  ng 

f a c i  1 i ti es i n t o  compl i ance. 

Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  Utilities, I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a ’ s  wastewater systems 

i n Marion County, pa r t i  cu l  a r l y  the  Crownwood system? 

Yes. 

Does the  u t i  1 i t y  have appropri ate c u r r e n t  permits from the  Department 
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A .  

Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A .  

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A.  

Q. 

A.  

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A.  

4. 

o f  Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion  f o r  the  Crownwood wastewater system? 

Yes. 

Please s t a t e  the  issuance date and the  expi r a t i o n  date o f  t h e  operat ing 

or cons t ruc t i on  permit  . 

Permi t No, FLA012680 was i ssued 4/23/99. Thi s permit  expi res 4/22/04. 

Is t h e  u t i l i t y  i n  compliance w i t h  i t s  permit? 

Yes, t he  p l a n t  i s  i n  compliance w i t h  i t s  permi t .  

Are the  wastewater c o l l e c t i o n ,  treatment and disposal f a c i l i t i e s  

adequate t o  serve present customers based on permit ted capaci ty? 

Yes. 

Are t h e  treatment and disposal f a c i l i t i e s  loca ted  i n  accordance w i t h  

Sect ion 6 2 - 6 0 0 . 4 0 0 ( 1 ) ( ~ ) ( 2 ) ,  F lo r i da  Admin is t ra t i ve  Code? 

Yes. 

Has DEP requ i red  the  u t i l i t y  t o  take  any a c t i o n  so as t o  minimize 

possi b l  e adverse e f f e c t s  r e s u l t i n g  from odors, noise, aerosol d r i  f t  or 

1 i g h t i  ng? 

No. 

Do pump s t a t i o n s  and l i f t  s ta t i ons  meet DEP requirements w i t h  respect 

t o  l o c a t i o n ,  re1 i abi 1 i t y  and sa fe ty?  

Yes. 

Does the u t i  1 i t y  have c e r t i f i e d  operators as required by Chapter 62-602, 

F1 o r i  da Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code? 

Yes. 

Is t h e  o v e r a l l  maintenance o f  t he  t reatment p l a n t  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  

f a c i  1 i ti es s a t i s f a c t o r y ?  

l 

-3- 
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A .  

Q. 

A.  

Q. 

A .  

Q .  

A.  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 
A.  

Yes. 

Does UIF meet a l l  applicable technology based effluent limitations 

(TBELS)? 

Yes. 

Does the faci 1 i t y  meet the effluent disposal requi rements of Sections 

62-611 and 62-600.530, Florida Administrative Code? 

A t  the time o f  the las t  inspection - yes. 

3/11/03. 

The last  nspection was on 

Are the col l ec t i  on,  treatment and disposal faci  1 i t ies  i n  compl i ance w i t h  

a l l  other provisions o f  Title 62,  Florida Administrative Code, not  

previously mentioned? 

Yes. 

Has the  u t i l i t y  been the subject o f  any Department of  Environmental 

Protection enforcement acti on w i t h i n  the past two years? 

No. 

No you have anything further t o  add? 

No. 



5 4 5  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 
A .  

4. 

A .  

Q .  

A .  

4. 

A .  

4.  

Q .  
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ease 

mber 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF KIMBERLY M.  DODSON 

s t a t e  your name and business address. 

y M .  Dodson, F lo r i da  Department o f  Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion ,  3319 

Maguire B lvd . ,  S u i t e  232, Orlando, F? . 32803 

Please s t a t e  a b r i e f  desc r ip t i on  o f  your educationa 

experience. 

background and 

I received a B . A .  i n  Environmental Studies from R o l l i n s  College, Winter 

Park ,  i n  1995. From 1991 t o  1996 I worked i n  the  environmental 

ana ly t i ca l  l abo ra to ry  f i e l d .  From 1996 t o  present I worked f o r  t he  

F l o r i d a  Department o f  Environmental Pro tec t ion  i n  the  po tab le  water 

program deal i ng w i  t h  f i e l d  i nspecti  ons, Consumer Confi dence Report r u l  e ,  

enforcement and compl i ance moni t o r i  ng . 

By whom are you p resen t l y  employed? 

F1 ori da Department o f  Envi ronmental P ro tec t i on  (FDEP o r  Department) 

How long have you been employed w i t h  the  F lo r i da  Department o f  

Envi ronmental P ro tec t i on  and i n what capaci ty? 

I have been employed w i t h  the  FDEP f o r  6 years as an Environmental 

Speci a1 i s t  deal i ng w i  t h  i nspecti  ons , Consumer Confidence Report r u l  e ,  

enforcement, and compl i ance moni t o r i  ng . 

What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  t he  Department o f  

Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion? 

I am responsible for i nspect i  ng po tab le  water supply pl ants : generating 

inspec t ion  repo r t s  : en te r ing  i nspect ion data i n  program database; 

managing the  Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) r u l e  program f o r  community 

water systems I generat ing repor ts  t o  determi ne compl i ance f o r  CCR; 
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4. 

A.  

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

t a k i  ng enforcement a c t i o n  against systems n o t  i n compl i ance w i t h  FDEP 

r u l e s  ; t a k i  ng and r e f e r r i n g  d r ink ing  water compl a i  n t s  t o  the  appropri a te  

County Health Department f o r  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  under the  DOH-DEP Interagency 

Agreement. 

Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a ' s  ( u t i l i t y )  water 

systems i n  Seminole County, p a r t i c u l a r l y  t h e  water treatment systems i n  

Seminole County such as Bear Lake, Jansen, Park Ridge, P h i l l i p s ,  Crys ta l  

Lake, Ravenna Park, Weathersf ield, Oakland Shores and L i t t l e  Wekiva? 

Yes. I have conducted one inspec t ion  a t  each o f  the systems i n  Seminole 

County. 

Are the  u t i l i t y ' s  treatment f a c i l i t i e s  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems i n  

Seminole County s u f f i c i e n t  t o  serve i t s  present customers? 

Yes. 

Does the  u t i l i t y  maintain the  requ i red  20 ps i  minimum pressure 

throughout the  d i s t r i b u t i o n  system? 

Yes. A review o f  FDEP f i l e s  does n o t  reveal any consumer complaints 

regarding low pressure. Lack o f  consumer complaints was used as a gauge 

s i  nce the Department does no t  have data regarding continuous monitor ing 

o f  pressure i n  the  d i s t r i b u t i o n  system. 

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  comply w i t h  Sect ion 62-550.515, F l o r i d a  Admin is t ra t i ve  

Code f o r  an a u x i l i a r y  power source i n  t h e  event o f  a power outage? 

Yes, a l l  Seminole systems are i n  compliance w i t h  the  r u l e .  Some systems 

have t h e i r  own generator,  some are interconnected w i t h  o ther  water 

systems and some systems are n o t  requ i red  t o  have a generator. Bear 

Lake, Jansen, Ravenna Park, and Weathersfi e l  d have automatic generators. 

-3- 
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The Crys ta l  Lake system u t i l i z e s  an interconnect w i t h  t h e  Ci ty o f  

Sanford w i t h  an automatic pressure d i f f e r e n t i  a1 valve which opens t o  

supply water when the  pressure i n  the Crystal  Lake d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems 

drops below 45 p s i .  The Oakland Shores system u t i l i z e s  an interconnect 

w i t h  t h e  Ci ty  o f  Altamonte Springs w i t h  an automatic pressure 

d i f f e r e n t i a l  valve which opens t o  supply water when the  pressure i n  the  

Oakland Shores d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems drops below 50 p s i .  For P h i l l i p s ,  

based on the  number o f  serv ice  connections and populat ion served, t h i s  

I 

system i s  n o t  requ i red  t o  have an a u x i l i a r y  power source, b u t  does have 

an in te rconnect  w i t h  the  City o f  Lake Mary t h a t  opens au tomat ica l l y .  

For Park Ridge and L i t t l e  Wekiva, based on the  number o f  service 

connections and popu la t ion  served, these systems are no t  required t o  

have an  a u x i l i a r y  power source. 

Are t h e  u t i  1 i t y  ' s  water we1 1 s 1 ocated i n compl i ance w i t h  appl i cab1 e FDEP 

regul  a t i  ons? 

Yes, f o r  the  Seminole County systems o f  Jansen, P h i l l i p s ,  Oakland 

Shores, Ravenna Park. and L i t t l e  Wekiva. For Bear Lake, a sep t i c  tank 

and wastewater plumbing are loca ted  w i t h i n  100 f e e t  o f  t h e  potable water 

we l l  * However, t h i s  s i t u a t i o n  has been accepted by the  Department 

p rov i  ded t h a t  t he  we1 1 s are no t  chemi ca l  l y  or bac te r i  ol ogi ca l  l y  

compromised, and s a t i  s fac to ry  ch l  o r i  ne r e s i  dual i s  mai  n t a i  ned. For Park 

Ridge, an i r r i g a t i  on we1 1 and wastewater transmi s s i  on 1 i nes are w i  t h i  n 

100 f e e t  o f  t he  po tab le  water w e l l .  The Department has accepted t h i s  

under t h e  cond i t i on  o f  con t i  nued s a t i  s f a c t o r y  bac te r io log i ca l  and 

chemical moni t o r i  ng r e s u l t s  , and s a t i s f a c t o r y  ch l  o r i  ne res idua l  . For 

-4- 
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Crystal Lake, wastewater plumbing is located w i t h i n  100 feet o f  the 

potable water we1 1 s .  This condition has been previously accepted by the 

Department provided t h a t  the wells are no t  chemically or 

bacteri ol ogi cal ly compromi sed, and sati sfactory chlori ne resi dual  i s 

mai n t a i  ned. For Weathersfi el d ,  pri vate residences , a1 ong wi t h  the 

associ ated wastewater pl umbi ng and vehi cl es stored on the property are 

located w i t h i n  100 feet of the potable water wells. However, this 

situation has been accepted by the Department provided t h a t  t h e  wells 

are not chemical l y  or bacteriological l y  compromi sed, and satisfactory 

chl ori ne residual is mai n t a i  ned. 

Q. Does the u t i l i t y  have certified operators as required by Chapter 62-602, 

F1 ori da Admi n i  s t ra t i  ve Code? 

A .  Yes, a l l  Seminole County systems are i n  compliance w i t h  the rule. 

Q .  Has the u t i l i t y  established a cross-connection control program i n  

accordance w i t h  Section 62-555.360, Florida Administrative Code? 

A .  Yes, a l l  Semi no1 e County systems are i n  compl i ance with the rule.  

Q .  Is the overall maintenance of the treatment p l a n t  and distribution 

f ac i l i t i e s  satisfactory? 

Y-7 thz S L a w e k  L m t j :  5- Gf c V : t 2 a  h k d 3 a h x ~ ~  ~!-+w=EL 
Yes, f o r  the Seminole County systems of Bear Lave 

Oakland Shores, Park Ridge, Phillips, Weathersfield, and Little Wekiva. 

Crys a L a p t .  Jansen, 
A .  

I-i+-i-- L ,  U b  m - z  I L &a u ,  v u  12- 

nter iRr  of the y r a t o r  w y  foynd to 
bln 

I I W L  #,2‘.’!? 3 .arm qvc .pm I L J I  

be in poor condition. Paint i s  peeling, and much of 

is heavily corroded. The utility has indicated that 

replaced with a fiberglass u 

September 1, 2003. Correspondence from e utility indicates that  the 

c-zc. If thc ut7::ty zX:t:+wE tc! tls+gE 

w : x  L c C : 2 t c  2 - k M  5)’ 

. .  i n  
I l l U 7  r, 

a u n n m i t  L rmv a u n o m v i -  f~,- , - ~ ~ ~ ~ : ~  t g  
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Q. 
A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q 

A 

Can you comment on t h e  type and number o f  cor rec t ions  above. 

Yes, i t  i s  no t  uncommon t o  f i n d  a number o f  small d e f i c i e n c i e s  a t  

f a c i l i t i e s .  

these f a c i  1 i t i e s  . 

I n  general t he  u t i l i t y  i s  doing a good j o b  o f  maintaining 

Does the u t i l i t y  ma in ta in  the  requ i red  c h l o r i n e  res idua l  or i t s  

equ 

Yes 

res 

Are  

va len t  throughout t h e  d i s t r i b u t i o n  system? 

a1 1 the  Semi no1 e County systems mai  n t a i  n the  requi red ch l  o r i  ne 

d u a l .  

the p l a n t  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems i n  compl i ance w i t h  a l l  t he  o ther  

p rov is ions  o f  T i t l e  62, F l o r i d a  Admin i s t ra t i ve  Code, n o t  p rev ious ly  

mentioned? 

Yes a l l  t he  Seminole County systems are i n  compliance. 
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Q. 
A .  No, I do n o t .  

Do you have anything fu r ther  t o  add? 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PAUL 3 .  MORRISON 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

A .  

Magui r e  I31 vd. , Sui t e  232, Or1 ando, F l o r i  da 32803. 

Q .  Please s t a t e  a b r i e f  descr ip t ion  o f  your educational background and 

experience. 

A .  I received a B.S.  i n  Biology from F l o r i d a  State Un ive rs i t y  i n  1972. 

From 1972 t o  1984, I worked f o r  the Orange County Heal th Department i n  the  

Envi ronmental Heal t h  Sect ion.  I was i nvol ved w i  t h  the  regul a t i  on o f  d r i  nk i  ng 

water systems, restaurants ,  grocery s to res ,  food processors, publ i c  swimming 

pools and bath ing beaches, hea l th  f a c i  1 i t i e s ,  sep t i c  tanks,  mobi 1 e home parks, 

rab ies con t ro l  , and envi ronmental nui sance compl a i  n t s  . From 1984 t o  present,  

I have been working f o r  the  F lo r i da  Department o f  Environmental Pro tec t ion  

w i  t h  the regul  a t i  on o f  so l  i d and i ndust r i  a1 waste f aci 1 i ty  enforcement (1986 

and 1987) and w i t h  the  regu la t i on  o f  p u b l i c  d r i n k i n g  water systems i n  the  

compliance and enforcement sec t ion  (1984, 1985 and 1988 t o  p resent ) .  

Q. By whom are you present ly  employed? 

A .  F1 ori da Department o f  Envi ronmental P r o t e c t i  on (FDEP) 

Q .  How long have you been employed w i t h  the  FDEP and i n  what capaci ty? 

A .  I have been employed w i t h  the FDEP s ince  1984 (18 years ) .  I am an 

Envi ronmental Manager, invo lved w i t h  publ i c d r i n k i n g  water systems moni tor ing 

compl i ance and enforcement. 

Q.  What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  t he  F lo r i da  Department o f  

Envi ronmental Protect ion? 

A .  As an Environmental Manager, I supervise the  pub l i c  d r i nk ing  water 

Paul 3 .  Morri son, F1 o r i  da Department o f  Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion ,  3319 
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moni t o r i  ng compl i ance and enforcement sec t ion .  Thi s i nvol ves n o t i  f y i  ng 

systems o f  moni t o r i  ng requi rements , reviewing moni t o r i  ng r e s u l t s  submi t t e d  by 

water systems t o  determine i f  the r e s u l t s  are i n  compliance w i t h  es tab l i shed 

r u l e  standards, n o t i  f y i  ng systems when c o r r e c t i  ve ac t i on  i s necessary because 

o f  unsat i  s fac to ry  r e s u l t s ,  en te r i  ng mon i to r ing  r e s u l t s  i n t o  the computer 

database, i ssui  ng and resc i  ndi ng Boi 1 Water Not i  ces when appropri a te ,  

reviewing water system m a l  f unc t i on  repo r t s ,  t a k i  ng appropri a te  enforcement 

ac t i on  agai n s t  systems not  i n  compl i ance w i t h  the  moni t o r i  ng r u l e s  , and 

tak ing  and r e f e r r i n g  d r ink ing  water compl a i  n t s  t o  the  appropri a te  County 

Heal th Department f o r  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  under t h e  DOH- FDEP Interagency Agreement. 

Q .  Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  U t i l i t i e s .  I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a ' s  ( u t i l i t y )  water 

systems i n Seminole and Orange Counti es , pa r t i  cu l  a r l y  t h e  water treatment 

systems i n Semi no1 e County, i n c l  udi ng Bear Lake, Jansen, Park  Ridge, Phi 11 ips , 

Crystal  Lake, Ravenna Park, Weathersf ield, Oakland Shores and L i t t l e  Wekiva 

and the  water d i  s t r i  b u t i  on systems i n Orange County, i ncl udi ng Crescent 

Heights and Davis Shores? 

A .  Yes, for monitor ing I am responsible f o r  t h e  Seminole County water 

systems. I have a lso  reviewed the  permi t  and enforcement f i l e s  f o r  a l l  t he  

systems i n  Seminole and Orange Counties. I n  add i t i on ,  I have reviewed the  

f i l e s  f o r  t h e  Crescent Heights and Davis Shores d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems i n  Orange 

County. 

Q .  

the  Seminole o r  Orange County systems? 

A .  No, except f o r  Weathersf ie ld.  For Weathersf ie ld there  i s  one a c t i v e  DEP 

cons t ruc t ion  permi t  # WD59-0080885-003 which was issued on 3/22/00 f o r  a main 

Does t h e  u t i  1 i ty  have any cu r ren t  cons t ruc t i on  permits from the FDEP for 

- 2 -  



5 5 3  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

I 20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

r e l o c a t i o n  on State Road 436. DEP issued a p a r t i a l  clearance f o r  t h i s  permi t  

on 7 /17 /00 .  

Q- Are the  u t i l i t y ' s  d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems f o r  the Orange County systems o f  

Crescent Heights and Davis Shores s u f f i c i e n t  t o  serve i t s  present customers? 

A .  Yes. The Orange County systems o f  Crescent Heights and Davis Shores 

have no treatment f a c i l i t i e s .  The Crescent Weights d i s t r i b u t i o n  system i s  a 

consecutive system t h a t  purchases i t s  water from the Orlando U t i  1 i t i e s  

Commission water system. The Davis Shores d i s t r i b u t i o n  system i s  a 

consecuti  ve system t h a t  purchases i t s  water from the  Orange County U t i  1 i t i e s  

DepartmenUWestern Regi m a l  water system. 

Q .  Does the  u t i l i t y  mainta in  the  requi red 20 ps i  minimum pressure 

throughout the  d i s t r i b u t i o n  system f o r  Crescent Heights and Davis Shores i n  

Orange County? 

A .  Yes. A review o f  Department f i l e s  does no t  reveal  any consumer 

complaints regarding low pressure. Lack o f  consumer complaints was used as 

a gauge s ince  the Department does no t  have data regard ing continuous 

moni tor ing o f  pressure i n  the d i s t r i b u t i o n  system. The consecutive system's 

pressure i s  l a r g e l y  dependent on the  pressure provided by the  system i t  buys 

i t s  water from. 

Q .  Has t h e  u t i l i t y  estab l ished a cross-connect ion cont ro l  program f o r  the  

Orange County systems i n accordance w i  t h  Sect i  on 62-555.360, F l o r i  da 

Admin is t ra t i ve  Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q .  Does the  f i n i shed  water produced by the u t i l i t y  meet the  State and 

Federal maxi mum contami nant 1 eve1 s f o r  pr imary and secondary water q u a l  i t y  

The permit  expires on 3/22/03. 
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standards? 

A .  Yes. A l l  o f  the u t i l i t y ' s  Seminole and Orange County systems meet the  

primary and secondary q u a l i t y  standards. I t  should be noted t h a t  f o r  t he  

Crys ta l  l ake  system, the  secondary contaminant i r o n  r e s u l t  for t h e  sample 

c o l l e c t e d  on A p r i l  11, 2000, was 0.35 mi l l ig rams per l i t e r  (mg/L). The maximum 

contaminant l e v e l  (MCL) f o r  i r o n  i s  0.3 mg/L. This system uses Aquadene 

polyphosphate sequestrant treatment f o r  i ron. In accordance w i t h  Rule 

62-550.325(1), F . A . C . ,  a community wa te r  system may, i n  l i e u  o f  meeting the  

MCL 

when 

mg/L 

Apri 

o r  i ron or manganese, sequester i ron o r  manganese using polyphosphates 

t h e  maximum concentrat ion o f  i r o n  p lus  manganese does n o t  exceed 1 . 0  

The l e v e l  o f  manganese f o r  t he  Crystal  Lake system o f  0.019 mg/L on 

11, 2000. p l u s  0.35 mg/l o f  i r o n  equals 0.369 mg/L, which does no t  

exceed 1 . 0  mg/L. Therefore, Crystal  Lake i s  i n  compliance w i t h  the  ru les  f o r  

i ron.  For t h e  P h i l l i p s  water system, the  secondary contaminant i r o n  r e s u l t  

f o r  t h e  sample co l l ec ted  on A p r i l  11, 2000, was 0 .62  mg/L. This system a lso  

uses Aquadene polyphosphate sequestrant treatment f o r  i ron.  The - 1  evel f o r  

manganese f o r  the  P h i l l i p s  system o f  0 .012 mg/L on A p r i l  11, 2000, p lus  0.62 

mg/l o f  i r o n  equals 0.632 mg/L, which does no t  exceed 1 . 0  mg/L. Therefore, 

t he  P h i l l i p s  system i s  i n  compliance w i t h  t h e  rules for i r o n .  As mentioned 

prev ious ly  , Crescent Heights and Davi s Shores are consecuti ve systems. These 

systems rece i  ve t h e i  r water from o ther  p rov i  ders . The Crescent Heights system 

i s  requ i red  t o  t e s t  f o r  b a c t e r i o l o g i c a l s ,  asbestos, and lead  and copper on l y .  

The Davis Shores system i s  requ i red  t o  t e s t  f o r  b a c t e r i o l o g i c a l s  and lead and 

copper o n l y .  The Crescent Heights and Davis Shores systems meet the maximum 

contami nant 1 evel s f o r  those contaminants . 
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Q .  

A .  Yes, f o r  a l l  systems. 

Q .  

a 1 esseni ng o f  the moni t o r i  ng requi  rements? 

A .  Yes, f o r  the Seminole County systems o f  Bear Lake, Jansen, Park Ridge, 

Phi 11 i ps, Crystal  Lake, Oak1 and Shores, Ravenna Park, and Weathersfi e l d  and 

t h e  Orange County systems o f  Crescent Heights and Davis Shores. These systems 

are on reduced monitor ing.  Monitor ing must be done every 3 years dur ing the  

months o f  June, Ju l y ,  August or September. Although the  Lead and copper 

sample r e s u l t s  f o r  t he  L i t t l e  Wekiva system c o l l e c t e d  on 6/13/02 were below 

the  ac t i on  l eve l  f o r  bo th  l e a d  and copper, o f  t h e  f i v e  required samples 

c o l l e c t e d ,  only th ree  met t h e  f i r s t  draw t a p  sampling requirement o f  water 

standing motionless i n  t h e  plumbing system f o r  a t  l e a s t  s i x  hours. As a 

r e s u l t  o f  e l i m i n a t i n g  two s i t e s  which had samples c o l l e c t e d  i n  l ess  than s i x  

hours, a mon i to r ing  v i o l a t i o n  was created s ince  an i n s u f f i c i e n t  number o f  

samples were co l l ec ted  and submitted du r i  ng the  June-September 2002 monitor ing 

pe r iod .  However, t he  number submitted shows t h a t  an e f f o r t  was made t o  comply 

w i t h  the  lead and copper r u l e .  As a r e s u l t  o f  t h i s  monitor ing v i o l  a t i o n  f o r  

L i t t l e  Wekiva, f i v e  a d d i t i o n a l  l ead  and copper samples must be co l l ec ted  i n  

June 2003. 

Q .  

l i s t e d  i n  Section 62-550.515, F l o r i d a  Admin i s t ra t i ve  Code? 

A .  Yes, f o r  a l l  o f  t h e  Seminole County systems. The U t i l i t y ' s  Orange 

County consecutive water systems, Crescent Heights and Davis Shores, are n o t  

required t o  t e s t  f o r  t h e  VOCs. 

Does t h i s  include the  lead and copper r u l e ?  

Has the  U t i l i t y ' s  compliance w i t h  the  lead and copper r u l e  resu l ted  i n  

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  monitor f o r  t he  v o l a t i l e  organic contaminants (VOCs) 
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Q .  

l i s t e d  i n  Sect ion 62-550.516, Flor ida  Admin is t ra t i ve  Code? 

A. Yes, f o r  a l l  the  Seminole County systems, except f o r  d i o x i n  which has 

Does the  u t i  1 i t y  monitor f o r  the syn the t ic  organic contaminants (SOCs) 

a statewide waiver for moni tor ing unless the water system i s  a surface water 

system o r  i s  a system t h a t  has been determined t o  be under the d i r e c t  

in f luence o f  surface water.  The Seminole County systems are ne i the r  o f  those. 

The u t i l i t y ' s  Orange County systems, Crescent Heights and Davis Shores are 

consecutive water systems, which are not  requ i red  t o  t e s t  f o r  the SOCs. 

Q .  Do recent chemical analyses o f  r a w  and f i n i s h e d  water, when compared t o  

DEP regu la t i ons ,  suggest the  need f o r  add i t i ona l  t reatment f o r  any o f  the 

systems? 

A .  No. 

Q.  For the  Orange County d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems o f  Crescent Heights and Davis 

Shores, does the u t i l i t y  maintain the requ i red  c h l o r i n e  res idua l  o r  i t s  

equi V a l  ent  throughout the d i  s t r i  b u t i  on system? 

A .  

system i t  buys i t s  water from. 

Q.  Are the  Orange County d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems o f  Crescent Heights and Davis 

Shores i n  compliance w i t h  a l l  the  other  p rov is ions  o f  T i t l e  62, F lo r i da  

Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code, no t  p rev i  ously menti oned? 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  

o f  any FDEP enforcement ac t i on  w i t h i n  the past two years? 

A .  No. 

Q .  

Yes. The c h l o r i n e  res idua l  i s  dependent on t he  ch lo r i ne  provided by the 

Have the  u t i l i t y ' s  Seminole o r  Orange County systems been the  subject  

Do you have anything f u r t h e r  t o  add? 
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A .  No, I do not.  
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF GARY P .  MILLER 

Q .  

A .  Gary P . M i  11 er  , F1 o r i  da Department o f  Envi ronmental Protect1 on, 3319 

Magui r e  B1 vd. , Sui t e  232, Or1 ando, F1 . .32803 

Q. Please g i v e  a b r i e f  desc r ip t i on  o f  your educational background and 

exper i ence . 

A .  I have a B . S .  i n  B io logy ,  I worked for t he  Osceola County Heal th 

Department i n  t h e  envi ronmental hea l th  sec t ion  f o r  approximately 5 years and 

f o r  the F l o r i d a  Department o f  Environmental P ro tec t i on  (DEP) i n  the wastewater 

and d r i n k i n g  water sect ions f o r  approximately 19 years.  

Q .  

A .  I am the  Program Manager i n  the Wastewater Compliance/Enforcement 

Section o f  DEP. 

Q .  What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  t he  DEP? 

A .  1 manage t h e  Wastewater Compl i ance/Enforcement Sect ion which includes 

r e v i  ewi ng a1 7 enforcement documents (warni ng 1 e t t e r s  , consent orders,  n o t i c e  

o f  v i o l a t i o n s  e t c .  ) and noncompliance l e t t e r s  o f  a1 1 Type I and I1  domestic 

wastewater f a c i  1 i ti es and conducting enforcement and compl i ance meeti ngs . 

Q .  Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a ’ s  wastewater systems 

i n Semi no1 e County, p a r t i  cu l  a r l y  t he  L i  ncol n Hei ghts and Weathersfi e l d  

Wastewater Treatment Faci 1 -i t i e s  (WWTF)? 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  

these f a c i l i t i e s ?  

A .  

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

I 

By whom are you c u r r e n t l y  employed and i n  what capacity? 

Does the  u t i l i t y  have the  appropr iate c u r r e n t  permits from the  DEP f o r  

Domestic wastewater treatment p l a n t  permits are no t  required f o r  those 
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f a c i l i t i e s .  The L inco ln  Heights WWTF was shut down on J u l y  6, 2001 w i t h  the  

flow being d i v e r t e d  t o  the City o f  Sanford WWTF. The Weathersf ield WWTF was 

shut down many years ago w i t h  the  f l ow  being d i v e r t e d  t o  the  City o f  Altamonte 

Spr i  ngs WWTF. 

Q .  

w i t h  respect t o  l oca t i on ,  re1 i ab? 1 i t y  and sa fe ty?  

A .  

Q.  

o f  T i t l e  62, F lo r i da  Admin is t ra t i ve  Code, n o t  p rev ious ly  mentioned? 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  

p a s t  two years? 

A .  Yes. P r i o r  t o  the  L inco ln  Heights WWTF being shut down, the  u t i l i t y  

entered i n t o  a consent order w i t h  the  DEP (OGC F i l e  No. 98-2102). All o f  the 

requirements o f  the  consent order have been completed and the  case i s  c losed. 

Q. 

A. No, 1 do n o t .  

Do t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  pump s ta t i ons  and l i f t  s ta t i ons  meet DEP requirements 

Yes. 

Are t h e  c o l l e c t i o n  f a c i l i t i e s  i n  compliance w i t h  a l l  other p rov is ions  

No recent de f i c ienc ies  have been noted f o r  e i t h e r  f a c i l i t y .  

Has t h e  u t i  1 i ty  been subject  o f  any DEP enforcement ac t i on  w i t h i n  the  

Do you have anything f u r t h e r  t o  add? 
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Q. 
A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q .  

A .  

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM V .  RYLAND 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

W i l l i a m  V .  Ryland, 3804 Coconut P a l m  Dr ive ,  Tampa, FL 33619. 

Please s t a t e  a b r i e f  descr ip t ion  o f  

experience. 

I have a B.S. degree i n  Biology w i t  

Science. I have worked w i t h  the  S t a  

mainly i n  the  d r i n k i n g  water program. 

By whom are you present ly  employed? 

your educational 

1 minors i n  Chem 

background and 

s t r y  and Earth 

;e o f  F l o r i d a  f o r  over 15 years, 

Department o f  Envi ronmental Pro tec t ion  (DEP) 

How long have you been employed w i t h  the  Department o f  Environmental 

P ro tec t i on  and i n  what capacity? 

Ten years as an Environment S p e c i a l i s t  i n  the  Potable Water Section. 

What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  t he  Department o f  

Envi ronmental Protect ion? 

Regul a t i  on o f  d r i  nki  ng water f a c i  1 i ti es w i t h i n  a c e r t a i  n geographic 

area. Th is  includes b u t  i s  no t  l i m i t e d  t o  compliance/enforcement f o r  

systems t h a t  f a l l  under the  S a f e  Dr ink ing  Water Act ;  conducting yea r l y  

i nspect i  ons , r e v i  ewi ng chemical / bac te r io log i ca l  data,  mon-i t o r i  ng 

compl i ance, and pursui  ng enforcement a c t i  v i  ti es . 

Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a ’ s  w a t e r  systems i n  

Pasco County, p a r t i c u l a r l y  the Buena V i s t a ,  Orangewood, Summertree and 

Wis-Bar systems? 

Yes. 

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  have any c u r r e n t  cons t ruc t ion  permits from the 
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A. 

Q. 

A .  

Q .  

A.  

Q .  

A .  

Q .  

A .  

Q.  

A.  

Q .  

A .  

Department o f  Envi ronmental Protect ion? 

Summertree - Parcel H - DSGP ( d i s t r i b u t i o n  system general permit)  

Orangewood - 81396 - Col - DSGP 

In fo rmat ion  obtained from Steven King, Engineer I 1  o f  our perm i t t i ng  

sec t i on .  

Are the  u t i l i t y ’ s  treatment f a c i l i t i e s  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems 

s u f f i c i e n t  t o  serve i t s  present customers? 

Yes. 

Does the  u t i l i t y  maintain the requ i red  20 ps i  minimum pressure 

throughout the  d i  s t r i  b u t i  on system? 

Yes. 

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  comply w i t h  Sect ion 62-550.515, F lo r i da  Admin is t ra t i ve  

Code for an adequate a u x i l i a r y  power source i n  the  event o f  a power 

outage? 

Yes through generators o r  interconnects w i  t h  o ther  systems. 

Are t h e  u t i  1 i t y ’ s  water we1 1 s loca ted  i n  compl i ance w i t h  appl i cable DEP 

regul  a t i  ons? 

Yes. 

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  have c e r t i f i e d  operators as required by Chapter 62-602, 

F l o r i d a  Admin is t ra t i ve  Code? 

Yes. 

Has t h e  u t i  1 i t y  establ  i shed a cross-connection con t ro l  program i n  

accordance w i  t h  Sect ion 62-555.360, F1 o r i  da Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code? 

Yes. Cross connection con t ro l  p lans are on f i l e  a t  DEP and a t  the  

u t i l i t y .  Plans were rev ised as o f  June, 2001. 
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Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A.  

Q. 
A.  

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A .  

4. 

A.  

Q. 

A.  

Q .  

A .  

Is t he  ove ra l l  maintenance o f  t he  treatment p l a n t  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  

f a c i l i t i e s  sa t i s fac to ry?  

Yes. 

qual 

Yes. 

Does 

Yes. 

Does t h e  f i n i s h e d  water produced by the  u t i l i t y  meet the  Sta te  and 

Federal maxi mum contami nant 1 eve1 s for primary and secondary water 

t y  standards? 

t h i s  inc lude the  lead and copper r u l e ?  

Has t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  compliance w i t h  the  lead and copper r u l e  resu l ted  i n  

a 1 esseni ng o f  the moni t o r i  ng requi rements? 

Yes, t r i  -annual monitor ing.  

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  monitor the  organic contaminants l i s t e d  i n  Section 62- 

55.410, F lo r i da  Admin is t ra t i ve  Code? 

Yes. 

Do recent  chemical analyses o f  r a w  and f i n i s h e d  water, when compared t o  

DEP regul  a t i ons ,  suggest the  need for add i t i ona l  treatment? 

No. 

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  maintain the  requ i red  c h l o r i n e  res idua l  o r  i t s  

equi V a l  en t  throughout the  d i  s t r i  b u t i  on system? 

Yes. 

Are t h e  p l a n t  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems i n  compliance w i t h  a l l  the other 

p rov is ions  o f  T i t l e  62, F l o r i d a  Admin i s t ra t i ve  Code, not prev ious ly  

mentioned? 

Yes. 
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Q. Has the  u t i l i t y  been the sub jec t  o f  any Department o f  Environmental 

Pro tec t ion  enforcement ac t ion  w i t h i n  the past two years? 

A .  No. 

Q. 

A .  No. I do no t .  

Do you have anything f u r t h e r  t o  add? 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PEPE MENENDEZ 

Q .  

A .  Pepe Menendez, P .  E . ,  4175 East Bay Dr ive ,  S u i t e  300, Clearwater, FL 

33764. 

Q .  Please s t a t e  a b r i e f  descr ip t ion  o f  your educational background and 

experience. 

A .  Professional Engineer - F l a .  License # 21616. Bachelor i n  C i v i l  

Engi neer i  ng . 28 years experience i n d r i  nk i  ng water and other envi ronmental 

areas. 

Q .  

A. 

Q. How long have you been employed w i t h  t h e  P ine l l as  County Health 

Department and i n  what capaci ty? 

A .  I have been employed w i t h  the  P ine l l as  County Heal th Department f o r  

th ree  months, as Assi s t a n t  D i  r ec to r  i n the  Envi ronmental Engi neer i  ng D i  v i  s i  on. 

Before t h a t ,  I was the Administrator f o r  D r ink ing  Water w i t h  the F lo r i da  

Department o f  Health ( a  Professional Engineer p o s i t i o n ) .  I was i n  t h a t  

p o s i t i o n  s ince 1990. I have been employed by t h e  Sta te  o f  F lo r i da  i n  various 

pos i t i ons  s ince  1980. 

Q .  

Department? 

A .  

Q .  Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a ' s  water systems i n  

P i  ne1 1 as County, par t i  c u l  ar ly the  Lake Tarpon Mobi 1 e Home Park system? 

A .  My s t a f f  i s  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  the  Lake Tarpon Mobile Home Park. 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

. .  

By whom are you present ly  employed? 

P i  ne1 1 as County Heal th Department. 

What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  t h e  P ine l l as  County Health 

I administer the  d r i n k i n g  water, USTDS and SUPER programs. 
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Q .  

County Heal t h  Department or the  Department o f  Envi ronmental Protect ion? 

A .  

Does t h e  u t i  1 i t y  have any cur ren t  cons t ruc t ion  permits from the  Pine1 1 as 

No. A cons t ruc t ion  permit  i s  no t  requ i red  f o r  e x i s t i n g  systems. 
1 

Q.  Are t h e  u t i l i t y ' s  treatment f a c i l i t i e s  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems 

s u f f i c i e n t  t o  serve i t s  present customers? 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  Does the u t i l i t y  maintain the  requ i red  20 psi minimum pressure 

throughout the  d i s t r i b u t i o n  system? 

A .  Yes, as f a r  as we know. 

Q .  

Code f o r  an adequate a u x i l i a r y  power source i n  the  event o f  a power outage? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. 

regul a t i  ons? 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  

F lo r i da  Admin i s t ra t i ve  Code? 

Does t h e  u t i l i t y  comply w i t h  Section 62-550.515, F lo r i da  Admin is t ra t i ve  

Are t h e  u t i  1 i t y  ' s  water we1 1s loca ted  i n compl i ance w i t h  appl i c a b l e  DEP 

Does t h e  u t i  1 i t y  have c e r t i  f i e d  operators as requi red by Chapter 62-602, 

A .  Yes. 

Q ,  Has t h e  u t i l i t y  establ ished a cross-connection con t ro l  program i n  

accordance w i  t h  Sect ion 62-555.360, F1 o r i  da Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code? 

A .  Yes. 

Q.  Is t h e  o v e r a l l  maintenance o f  t h e  treatment p l a n t  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  

f a c i l i t i e s  s a t i s f a c t o r y ?  

A .  Yes. 

Q .  Does t h e  f i n i s h e d  water produced by the  u t i l i t y  meet the  State and 
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federal  maximum contaminant l eve l s  f o r  primary and secondary water q u a l i t y  

standards? 

A .  Yes. 

Q.  

A .  Yes. 

Q .  

a 1 esseni ng o f  t he  moni t o r i  ng requi rements? 

Does t h i s  include the lead and copper r u l e ?  

Has the u t i l i t y ' s  compliance w i t h  the  lead and copper r u l e  resu l ted  i n  

A .  Yes. 

Q .  Does t h e  u t i l i t y  monitor the  organic contaminants l i s t e d  i n  Section 

62- 55.410, F1 o r i  da Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code? 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  

DEP regul  a t i  ons , suggest the need f o r  addi ti onal treatment? 

A.  No. 

Q. Does t h e  u t i l i t y  maintain the  requ i red  ch lo r i ne  residual  o r  i t s  

equi Val en t  throughout the  d i  s t r i  b u t i  on system? 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  Are t h e  p lant  and d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems i n  compliance w i t h  a l l  t he  other 

p rov i  s i  ons o f  T i t l e  62, F1 o r i  da Admi n i  s t r a t i  ve Code, no t  p rev i  ously mentioned? 

A .  Yes. 

Do recent  chemical analyses o f  r a w  and f i n i s h e d  water, when compared t o  

1 Q.  Has t h e  u t i l i t y  been the  sub jec t  o f  any Pine l las  County Heal th 

Department enforcement ac t i on  w i t h i n  t h e  pas t  two years? 

A. No. 

Q .  

A .  No, I do n o t .  

Do you have anything f u r t h e r  t o  add? 

-4- 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF JEFFREY A .  SMALL 

Q. Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

A .  My name i s  J e f f r e y  A. S m a l l  and my business address i s  Hurston North 

Tower, Su i te  N512, 400 W .  Robinson S t r e e t ,  Orlando, F lo r i da ,  32801.' 

Q. By whom are you present ly  employed and i n  what capaci ty? 

A .  

Accountant S p e c i a l i s t  i n  the  D i v i s i o n  o f  Aud i t ing  and Safety.  

I am employed by t h e  F lo r i da  Pub l ic  Service Commission as' a Professional 
, I  

Q .  How long have you been employed by t h e  Commission? 

A .  I have been employed by the  F l o r i d a  Pub l ic  Service Commission since 

January 1994. 

Q .  B r i e f l y  review your educational and professional  background. 

A .  I have a Bachelor o f  Science degree i n  Accounting from t h e  U n i v e r s i t y  

o f  South F l o r i d a .  I am a lso  a C e r t i f i e d  Pub l ic  Accountant l i censed i n  t h e  

State o f  F l o r i d a  and I am a member o f  t h e  American and F l o r i d a  I n s t i t u t e s  o f  

C e r t i f i e d  Pub1 i c  Accountants. 

Q .  

A .  Cu r ren t l y ,  I am a Professional Accountant S p e c i a l i s t  w i t h  -the 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  o f  planning and d i r e c t i n g  t h e  most complex i n v e s t i g a t i v e  

P1 ease describe your cur ren t  responsi b i  1 i t i e s .  

aud i ts ,  i n c l u d i n g  aud i ts  o f  c ross-subs id iza t ion  issues, an t i - compe t i t i ve  

behavior, and predatory p r i c i n g .  I a lso  am responsible f o r  c rea t i ng  aud i t  

work programs t o  meet a s p e c i f i c  a u d i t  purpose and i n t e g r a t i n g  EDP 

app l i ca t i ons  i n t o  these programs. In  a d d i t i o n ,  I serve as t h e  ac t i ng  

supervisor i n  t h e  absence o f  t he  d i s t r i c t  o f f i c e  supervisor.  

Q .  Have you presented expert test imony before t h i s  Commission o r  any other 

regu la to ry  agency? 
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I 

A .  Yes. I testified in the Southern States Utilities. Inc. rate case, 

Docket No. 950495-WS and the transfer application of Cypress Lakes Utilities, 

Inc., Docket No. 971220-WS. 

Q .  

A .  

Utilities, Inc. of Florida (UXF. or utility) in Marion, Orange, Pasco, I 

Pinellas, and Seminole Counties, Docket No. 020071-WS. The audit report is 

filed with.my testimony and is identified as JAS-1. 

Q. Was this audit report prepared by you? 

A.  Yes, I was the audit manager in charge of this audit. 

Q. Please review t h e  work you performed in this audit. 

A .  For rate base, I examined account balances f o r  utility-plant-in-service 

(UPIS), land, plant-held-for-future-use (PHFU), contributions-in-aid-of- 

construction ( C I A C )  , accumulated depreciation (AD) ,  accumulated amortization 

of CIAC (AAC), and working capital (WC) as o f  the last Cpmmission order. I 

reconciled rate base balances authorized in Commission Orders to t h e  

respective December 31, 2001 general 1 edger bal ance. 

What is the purpose o f  your testimony today? 

The purpose o f  my testimony is to sponsor the staff audit report o f  

For net operating income, I compiled utility revenues and operating and 
maintenance accounts for t h e  year ended December 31, 2001. I chose a 

judgmental sample of customer bi 11s and recalculated using FPSC-approved 

rates. I also chose a judgmental sample of operation and maintenance expenses 

(O&M) and examined the invoices for supporting documentation. I reviewed the 
allocation o f  O&M expenses from Water Service Corporation (WSC) and UIF cost 

centers to t he  respective counties and verified the accuracy o f  company 

allocations based on company-provided allocation schedules. I also tested the 

-2- 
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c a l c u l a t i o n  o f  depreciat ion and C I A C  amort izat ion expense and examined t h e  

support for taxes other than income and income taxes and I audited t h e  

u t i  1 i t y ’ s  December 31, 2001, Regulatory Asses,sment Fee Returns. 

For c a p i t a l  s t r u c t u r e ,  I compiled t h e  components o f  t h e  c a p i t a l  

s t ruc tu res  f o r  the year ended December 31, 2001 and agreed i n t e r e s t  expense 

t o  t h e  terms o f  t he  notes and t h e  bonds. I a lso  reconc i led  note balances a t  

December 31, 2001, t o  support ing documentation. 

Q .  Please review t h e  a u d i t  exceptions i n  t h e  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

A .  Aud i t  Exceptions d isc lose  subs tan t ia l  non-compliance w i t h  t h e  National 

Associat ion o f  Regulatory U t i l i t y  Commissioners (NARUC) Uniform System o f  

Accounts (USOA). a Commission r u l e  o r  order,  and formal company p o l i c y .  Aud i t  

Exceptions a1 so d isc lose  company e x h i b i t s  t h a t  do no t  represent company books 

and records and company fa1  l u r e  t o  provide under ly ing records or documentation 

t o  support t h e  general ledger o r  e x h i b i t s .  

Aud i t  Exception No. 1 discusses adjustments t o  water r a t e  base made i n  

p r i o r  o rders .  

Commission Order No. PSC-93-0430-FOF-WS, issued March 22, 1993, 

es tab l i shed the  r a t e  base balance f o r  t he  Pasco County (Summertree PPW) water 

system as o f  A p r i l  30, 1991. 

e Commission Order No. PSC-94-0739-FOF-WS, i ssued June 16, 1994, requi  red 

s p e c i f i c  r a t e  base adjustments t o  the  Marion and P ine l l as  Counties water 

systems. 

e Commission Order No. PSC-95-0574-FOF-WS, issued May 9 ,  1995, requ i red  

spec i f i c  r a t e  base adjustments t o  t h e  Orange, Pasco (Orangewood), and Seminole 

Counties water systems. 
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a Commission Order No. PSC-O1-1655-PAA-WS, issued August 13, 2001, 

es tab l i shed t h e  r a t e  base balance f o r  t h e  Pasco County (WisBar/Bartel t )  water 

systems as o f  June 15, 2000. 

The u t i l i t y  made several adjustments i n  i t s  general ledger i n  1995 t o  

record t h e  second and t h i r d  adjustments above. In several instances t h e  

u t i l i t y  adjusted the  wrong account o r  used an i n c o r r e c t  amount. I have 

corrected these e r ro rs  and Schedules A through E attached t o  Audi t  Exception 

1 i n  t he  a u d i t  repo r t  d e t a i l  my adjustments. 

According t o  u t i l i t y  records, i t  recorded t h e  a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  t h e  Pasco 

County (Summertree PPW) water system i n  i t s  1990 general ledger p r i o r  t o  r a t e  

base being establ ished i n  Order No. PSC-93-0430-FOF-WS. The u t i l i t y  d i d  not 

make any adjustments t o  t h a t  i n i t i a l  balance f o l l o w i n g  t h e  issuance o f  t h i s  

Order. My adjustments are included i n  Schedule F i n  t h e  a u d i t  repo r t .  

According t o  u t i l i t y  representat ives,  t h e  u t i l i t y  did  not record t h e  

a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  t h e  Pasco County (WisBar lBar te l t )  water system i n  i t s  general 

ledger u n t i l  2002 which was a f t e r  t he  t e s t  year ended December 31, 2001. My 

adjustments are included i n  Schedule G i n  t h e  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

These adjustments w i l l  a l s o  a f f e c t  t h e  accumulated deprec ia t ion  and 

accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC balances as o f  December 31, 2001, as we l l  as 

t h e  deprec ia t ion  expense and amort izat ion o f  C I A C  expense balances f o r  t h e  12- 

month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. Furthermore, I ca lcu la ted  add i t i ona l  

accumulated deprec ia t ion  and accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC adjustments for 

the Pasco County wastewater systems a t  Summertree PPW and WisBar based on i t s  

adjustments t o  r a t e  base as o f  t h e  respec t ive  t r a n s f e r  dates. These 

adjustments can be found on Schedule H i n  t h e  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

-a -  
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4 ’  

Audit  Exception No. 2 discusses adjustments t o  wastewater r a t e  base made 

i n  p r i o r  orders. 

Commission Order No. PSC-93-0430-FOF-WS. issued March 22,  1993, 

es tab l i shed the r a t e  base balance fo’r t h e  Pasco County (Summertree PPW) 

wastewater system as o f  A p r i l  30, 1991. 

Commission Order No. PSC-94-0739-FOF-WS. issued June 16, 1994, requ i red  I 

s p e c i f i c  r a t e  base adjustments t o  the  Marion County wastewater system. 

Commission Order No. PSC-95-0574-FOF-WSI issued May 9,  1995, requ i red  

s p e c i f i c  r a t e  base adjustments t o  t h e  Seminole County wastewater system. 

Commission Order No. PSC-O1-1655-PAA-WS, issued August 13, 2001, 

establ ished the  r a t e  base balance f o r  t h e  Pasco County (WisBar) wastewater 

system as o f  June 15, 2000. 
I 

The u t i l i t y  made several adjustments i n  i t s  general ledger i n  1995 t o  

record t h e  second and t h i r d  adjustments above. I n  several instances, t h e  

u t i l i t y  adjusted t h e  wrong account o r  used an i n c o r r e c t  amount. I have 

corrected these e r ro rs  and Schedules I and J attached t o  t h e  Aud i t  Exception 

2 i n  t h e  aud i t  repo r t  d e t a i l  my adjustments. 

According t o  u t i l i t y  records, i t  recorded the  a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  t h e  Pasco 

County (Summertree PPW) wastewater system i n  i t s  1990 general ledger p r i o r  t o  

r a t e  base being es tab l i shed i n  Order No. PSC-93-0430-FOF-WS. The u t i l i t y  d i d  

not make any adjustments t o  t h a t  i n i t i a l  balance fo l l ow ing  t h e  issuance o f  

t h i s  Order. My adjustments are included i n  Schedule K i n  the  a u d i t  repo r t .  

According t o  u t i l i t y  representat ives,  t h e  u t i l i t y  d i d  not record t h e  

a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  t h e  Pasco County (WisBar) wastewater system i n  i t s  general 

ledger u n t i l  2002 which was a f t e r  t he  t e s t  year ended December 31, 2001. My 
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adjustments are included i n  Schedule G i n  t h e  a u d i t  repo r t .  

These adjustments w i l l  a f f e c t  t h e  accumulated deprec 

accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  C I A C  balances as o f  December 31, 2001, 

t he  deprec ia t ion  expense and amort izat ion o f  C I A C  expense balances 

month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. Furthermore, I ca lcu la ted  

a t i o n  and 

as we l l  as 

For the  12- 

addi ti onal 

accumulated deprec ia t ion  and accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC adjustments f o r  

t he  Pasco County wastewater systems a t  Summertree PPW and WisBar based on i t s  
I I  

adjustments t o  r a t e  base 'as o f  t h e  respec t ive  t r a n s f e r  dates. These 

adjustments can be found on Schedule M i n  t h e  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

Aud i t  Exception No. 3 discusses p l a n t  i tems t h a t  should be amortized as 

nonrecurr ing expenses. Commission r u l e  25-30.433(8), F lo r ida  Admin is t ra t i ve  

Code, requ i res  t h a t  nonrecurr ing expenses s h a l l  be amortized over a f i ve -yea r  

per iod  unless a shor te r  o r  longer pe r iod  o f  t ime can be j u s t i f i e d .  

Class A,  Balance Sheet, Account 186, s ta tes  t h a t  t h i s  account s h a l l  inc lude I 

NARUC 

a l l  deb i ts  not  elsewhere provided f o r ,  such as i tems deferred by au tho r i za t i on  

o f  t he  Commission. The u t i l i t y  recorded the  f o l l o w i n g  p l a n t  add i t ions  i n  f o r  

major repa i r s  t o  i t s  water and wastewater systems. 

e Marion Water: $1,122.23 t o  r e b u i l d  pump motor a t  Go ldenh i l l s .  

0 Marion Wastewater: $901 . O O  t o  r e f u r b i s h  4M blower assembly. 

Pasco Water: $3.317.57 t o  p u l l  & recond i t i on  pump a t  Orangewood. 

e Pasco Wastewater: $2.784.49 t o  p u l l  & r e p a i r  sewer g r inder  pump a t  Buena 

V i s t a .  

a 

PPW. 

e 

Pasco Wastewater: $3,387.68 t o  r e p a i r  l i f t  s t a t i o n  con t ro l  a t  Summertree 

Seminole Wastewater: $2,725.00 for a TV video inspec t ion  o f  sewer l i n e s .  

-6-  
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I recommend t h a t  t he  u t i l i t y ’ s  water and wastewater U P I S  accounts should 

be reduced by the  above amounts t o  remove nonrecurring expenses and these 

amounts should be amortized over a f i v e - y e a r  per iod  per t h e  Commission and 

NARUC r u l e s  c i t e d  above. A d d i t i o n a l l y ;  t h e  u t i l i t y  should a lso  increase i t s  

operations and maintenance (O&M) expenses for t he  12-month pe r iod  ended 

December 31, 2001, t o  record the  amor t i za t ion  o f  t he  deferred U P I S  adjustment 

over a f i ve -yea r  per iod.  

I 

Aud i t  Exception No. 4 discusses t h e  replacement and ret i rement o f  p l a n t .  

NARUC, Class A, Accounting I n s t r u c t i o n  2 7 . 6 . ( 2 )  requ i res  t h a t ,  when a 

re t i rement  u n i t  i s  r e t i  red  from u t i  1 i t y  p l a n t  w i t h  o r  w i thout  replacement, t h e  

book cos t  t he reo f  s h a l l  be c red i ted  t o  the  u t i l i t y  p l a n t  account i n  which i t  

i s  included. The book cos t  s h a l l  be determined from t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  records and 

i f  t h i s  cannot be done, i t  s h a l l  be estimated. The u t i l i t y ’ s  procedure f o r  

recording ret i rements o f  U P I S  i s  t o  i n d i c a t e  on the  i nvo i ce  t h e  amount r e t i r e d  

and t he  ca l cu la t i ons .  The u t i l i t y ’ s  p o l i c y  f o r  ret i rement o f  UPIS cons is ts  

o f  the  f o l l o w i n g  four  procedures. 

0 

t h e  year t h e  o r i g i n a l  equipment was purchased i s  1990 -1996, do not r e t i r e .  

I f  t h e  amount o f  t h e  o l d  equipment i s  g iven  and i s  g rea ter  than $100 and 

the  year t h e  o r i g i n a l  equipment was purchased i s  p r i o r  t o  1990, r e t i r e  the  

amount g iven  f o r  t h e  o l d  equipment. 

0 I f  the amount o f  t h e  o l d  equipment I s  not given, bu t  t h e  year t h e  

equipment was purchased i s  provided, use t h e  Handy Whitman Index. M u l t i p l y  

the  percentage from the  Handy Whitman Index by t h e  t o t a l  amount o f  t h e  i nvo i ce  

and use t h i s  amount f o r  your re t i rement ,  

l 

I f  t h e  amount o f  t h e  o l d  equipment i s  given and i s  less  than $250 and 
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given, r e t i r e  75 percent o f  t he  t o t a l  amount o f  t h e  i nvo i ce .  

I f  ne i the r  the  amount o f  t h e  o l d  equipment o r  t h e  year o f  purchase i s  

The u t i l i t y  recorded several add i t ions  t o  i t s  UPIS water and wastewater 

systems w i thout  recording a corresponding re t i rement .  These ret i rements 

should have been recorded pursuant t o  t h e  company’s p o l i c y .  1 recommend t h a t  

the  adjustments d e t a i l e d  i n  t h e  a u d i t  repo r t  be made t o  record t h e  I 

re t i rements ,  re la ted  accumulated deprec ia t ion ,  and deprec ia t ion  expense. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 5 discusses r e c l a s s i f i e d  U t i l i t y  P lan t  i n  Service.  

U t i l i t y  records i n d i c a t e  a 1992 a d d i t i o n  o f  $46,944 t o  Account No. 370, 

Receiving Wells, i n  Pasco County for t h e  demol i t ion  and removal o f  t h e  

Summertree PPW wastewater treatment p l a n t  t h a t  was i d e n t i f i e d  as Construct ion 

Pro jec t  CW-625-116-91-04. U t i l i t y  records a l s o  i n d i c a t e  a 2001 a d d i t i o n  o f  

$101.518 t o  Account No. 353, Land. i n  Seminole County f o r  engineer ing fees 

associated w i t h  t h e  p re l im ina ry  planning, design, mod i f i ca t i on ,  and 

cons t ruc t ion  o f  a wastewater in te rconnect ion  w i t h  thei City o f  Sanford, 

F l o r i d a ,  t h a t  was i d e n t i f i e d  as Construct ion Pro jec t  CW-614-116-98-14. 

Commission r u l e  25-30.115, F . A . C . ,  adopts t h e  NARUC Uniform System o f  

Accounts for Water and Wastewater U t i l i t i e s  (USOA). The Class A repo r t  

i nc l  udes t h e  f o l  1 owi ng comments : 

1. Accounting I n s t r u c t i o n  27.B.  (2>, s ta tes  t h a t  when a re t i rement  

u n i t  i s  r e t i r e d ,  t h e  cos t  o f  removal and t h e  salvage shall be 

charged t o  or c red i ted ,  as appropr ia te ,  t o  such deprec ia t ion  

account. 

2 .  Accounting I n s t r u c t i o n  2 7 . H . .  s ta tes  t h a t  when t h e  e a r l y  

re t i rement  o f  a major u n i t  o f  p roper ty  e l im ina tes  t h e  e x i s t i n g  
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deprec ia t ion  reserve account, t he  Commission may author ize  an 

a l t e r n a t i v e  treatment such as t r a n s f e r r i n g  t h e  balance t o  Account 

No. 186 and amort iz ing i t  i n  fu tu re  per iods.  

3 .  Balance Sheet Account 183 states t h a t  t h i s  account s h a l l  be 

charged w i t h  a1 1 expenditures f o r  p re l im ina ry  surveys, plans, 

i nves t i ga t i ons ,  e t c . ,  made f o r  determining t h e  feasab ' i l i t y  o f  

p r o j e c t s  under contemplation. I f  t he  work i s  abandoned, the  

charge s h a l l  be t o  Account 426 - Miscellaneous N o n u t i l i t y  

Expenses, o r  t o  t h e  appropr iate operat ing account expense account 

unless otherwise ordered by t he  Commission. 

4 .  Balance Sheet Account 186 s ta tes  t h a t  t h i s  account s h a l l  

i nc lude  a l l  deb i t s  no t  elsewhere provided for,  such as items t h e  

proper f i n a l  d i s p o s i t i o n  o f  which i s  uncer ta in .  

5 .  Income Account 426 includes expenses disal lowed i n  a 

proceeding before t h e  Commission and expenses f o r  p re l im ina ry  

survey and i n v e s t i g a t i o n  expenses r e l a t e d  t o  abandoned p r o j e c t s ,  

when no t  w r i t t e n  o f f  t o  t h e  appropr iate expense account. 

Commission r u l e  25-30.116(1)(6) 3, F . A . C . ,  s ta tes  t h a t  when a p r o j e c t  

i s  completed and ready f o r  serv ice ,  i t  sha l l  be immediately t rans fe r red  t o  t h e  

appropr iate p l a n t  account(s) o r  Account 106, Completed Construct ion Not 

C lass i f i ed ,  and may no longer accrue Allowance f o r  Funds Used During 

Construct ion (AFUDC). 

I I  

I recommend t h a t  t h e  $46,944 add i t i on  t o  Pasco County-Summertree PPW 

wastewater Account No. 370 should be removed per  Accounting I n s t r u c t i o n  

27.B. ( 2 )  because i t  was a demol i t ion  cost t h a t  was r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  re t i rement  
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o f  t h e  wastewater treatment f a c i l i t y .  However, t he re  i s  no deprec ia t ion  

reserve account t o  t r a n s f e r  t he  balance t o  as requ i red .  The Commission. i n  

Order No. PSC-93-0430-FOF-WS, r e t i  red  t h e  Pasco County-Summertree PPW 

wastewater p l a n t  from UPIS and e l im ina ted  t h e  balance o f  t h e  deprec ia t ion  

reserve i n  1991. The u t i l i t y  has depreciated t h e  $46,944 and the re  i s  a 

c u r r e n t  balance o f  $12,755 as o f  December 31, 2002. 1 recommend tha t  t h e  I 

u t i l i t y  t r a n s f e r  t he  ne t  unrecovered balance o f  $34,189 ($46,944 - $12,755) 

t o  Account No. 186 pending d i s p o s i t i o n  by t h e  Commission and remove the 

$46,944 and $12,755 from Accounts Nos. 370 and 108, respec t i ve l y .  

A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  the  u t i l i t y  should be requ i red  t o  reduce i t s  deprec ia t ion  

expense by $1.343 ($46,944 x 2.86%) f o r  Pasco County wastewater f o r  t h e  12- 

month p e r i o d  ended December 31, 2001, t o  account f o r  t he  e f f e c t  o f  t h e  

adjustment. 

I 

The $101,518 a d d i t i o n  t o  Seminole County-wastewater land should be 

removed and r e c l a s s i f i e d  t o  t h e  fo l l ow ing  fou r  accounts. I 

Account No. 183: $14,935 represents engineering costs i ncu r red  t o  

analyze and develop a1 t e r n a t i v e  methods f o r  wastewater treatment a t  t h e  

L inco ln  Heights wastewater p l a n t  given t h e  an t i c ipa ted  condemnation and 

a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  u t i l i t y  p roper t y  by t h e  F l o r i d a  Department o f  T ranspor ta t ion  

and Seminole County. These costs were f o r  a l t e r n a t i v e  p ro jec ts  t h a t  were 

s tud ied  and abandoned by t h e  u t i l i t y .  Therefore, they should be charged t o  

Account. No 183 pending f i n a l  d i s p o s i t i o n  by t h e  Commission per t h e  d e f i n i t i o n  

f o r  Account No. 183. 

Account No. 354: $43,859 represents engineering costs incur red  t o  

design and re loca te  t h e  wastewater discharge f a c i l i t i e s  f o r  t h e  wastewater 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

5 7 7  

p l a n t  and perco la t ion  ponds because o f  t h e  condemnation and a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  

u t i l i t y  land. Therefore, these costs should be recorded i n  Account No. 354, 

S t ruc tures  & Improvements, w i t h  an add i t i ona l  $577 recorded i n  t h e  respec t ive  

accumulated depreciat ion and deprec ia t ion  expense accounts t o  r e f l e c t  t h e  

corresponding e f f e c t  on t e s t  year 2001. 

Account No. 361: $28,185 represents engineering costs i ncu r red  t o  I 

design and re loca te  the  u t i l i t y  mains f o r  t h e  wastewater p l a n t  because o f  t h e  

condemnation and a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  u t i l i t y  land. Therefore, i t  should be 

recorded i n Account No. 361, Col 1 e c t  i ng Sewers -Gravi t y  , w i  t h an addi t i  onal 

$313 recorded i n  the  respec t ive  accumulated deprec ia t ion  and deprec ia t ion  

expense accounts t o  r e f l e c t  t he  corresponding e f f e c t  on t e s t  year 2001. 

Account. No. 426: $14,541 represents t h e  Allowance f o r  Funds Used 

During Construction (AFUDC) charged t o  t h e  above p r o j e c t  from March 2000 

through December 2001. Construct ion p r o j e c t  schedules i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t h e  l a s t  

recorded a c t i v i t y  other than AFUDC accruals f o r  t h i s  p r o j e c t  was i n  February 

2000. Since there  was no subsequent a c t i v i t y  a f t e r  February 2000, I have 

concluded t h a t  t he  p r o j e c t  should be deemed s u b s t a n t i a l l y  complete a t  t h a t  

t ime, and t h e  t o t a l  balance should have been t r a n s f e r r e d  t o  a U P I S  account or 

Account No. 106. Therefore,  t h e  $14,541 AFUDC accrued a f t e r  February 2000 

should be disal lowed and charged t o  Account No. 426. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 6 discusses organ iza t ion  costs and c a p i t a l i z e d  

l abo r .  U t i l i t y  records i n d i c a t e  $263 recorded i n  Account 301 i n  t h e  Marion 

county water system i n  1996 f o r  an invo iced amount from the  F l o r i d a  Department 

o f  Revenue. There are a l so  add i t ions  i n  Account 301 and 351 o f  $872 t o  both 

the  water and wastewater systems i n  Pasco County i n  1995 t h a t  are a 
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r e c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  of a vendor invo ice  i n i t i a l l y  recorded i n  1991 t h a t  i s  

undefined. The USOA i n s t r u c t i o n s  f o r  Plant Account Nos. 301 and 351 s t a t e  

t h a t  t h e  account s h a l l  inc lude a l l  fees pa id  t o  federal  o r  s t a t e  governments 

f o r  t h e  p r i v i l e g e  o f  incorpora t ion  and .expenditures i nc iden t  t o  organiz ing the  

corpora t ion ,  par tnersh ip  o r  other en te rp r i se  and p u t t i n g  i t  i n t o  readiness t o  

do business. I recommend t h a t  these t h r e e  amounts be removed'as they do not 

meet t h e  requirements o f  t he  K O A .  
S I  

The company a l so  c a p i t a l i z e d  $24.667 i n  Account 301 i n  t h e  Pasco County 

water system i n  2000 as c a p i t a l i z e d  execut ive s a l a r i e s .  This was i temized as 

an a c q u i s i t i o n  and t r a n s f e r  cost  f o r  t h e  purchase o f  t h e  WisBar/Bartel t  

Enterpr ises . Two Commission orders (Order No. 25821, issued February 27, 

19992, i n  Docket No. 910020, P e t i t i o n  f o r  r a t e  increase by U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  

F lo r i da ,  and Order No. PSC-94-0739-FOF-WS, issued June 16, 1994, i n  Docket No. 

930826-.WS, App l i ca t i on  f o r  a r a t e  increase by U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F lo r i da )  

determined t h a t  t h e  purchased cost o f  u t i l i t y  systems i s  t o  be charged as 

a c q u i s i t i o n  adjustments, not  as o rgan iza t ion  cos t .  Therefore, 1 recommend 

t h a t  t h e  c a p i t a l i z e d  executive sa la r i es  should be removed and recorded as an 

a c q u i s i t i o n  adjustment. 

The company a l so  c a p i t a l i z e d  $2,952, $9,724 and $9,579 i n  Account Nos. 

301 and 380 i n  t h e  Seminole county water system f o r  t h e  years 1999 and 2000 

f o r  c a p i t a l i z e d  execut ive sa la r i es  described as t ime spent working on 

condemnation issues re1 ated t o  the  L inco ln  Heights wastewater treatment p l a n t  

s i t e .  The USOA i n s t r u c t i o n s  f o r  Account 186 s t a t e  t h a t  t h i s  account s h a l l  

include a l l  deb i t s  no t  elsewhere provided f o r ,  such as  items t h e  proper f i n a l  

d i s p o s i t i o n  o f  which i s  uncer ta in .  I recommend t h a t  these costs f o r  t he  
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Seminole county systems should be removed and recorded i n  Account No. 186 

pending f i n a l  d i spos i t i on  by t he  Commission. 

A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  t he  accumulated deprec ia t ion  and deprec ia t ion  expenses 

should be reduced f o r  these adjustments. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 7 discusses common p l a n t  a l l oca t i ons  from U t i l i t i e s ,  

I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a  ( U I F ) .  U I F  serves two r o l e s  for U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c . ’ s  operations I 

i n  F l o r i d a .  F i r s t ,  U I F  i s  t h e  admin i s t ra t i ve  and operat ional  headquarters f o r  

a l l  o f  t h e  parent ’s  F lo r i da  operat ions.  Second, U I F  i s  t he  c o n t r o l l i n g  and 

opera t ing  e n t i t y  f o r  t h e  f i v e  count ies t h a t  are p a r t i e s  f o r  t h i s  r a t e  

proceeding. U I F  a l loca tes  a p o r t i o n  o r  a l l  o f  i t s  common r a t e  base using a 

customer equivalent ( C E )  percentage f o r  each o f  t h e  f i v e  county operations 

from the  fol lowing e i g h t  cos t  cen ters :  (1) 600: O f f i c e  S t ruc tures  & 

Communication, (2) 600: Tools & Lab, (3) 601: U I F  Cost Center, (4)  603: 

Orlando Cost Center (Orange & Seminole Counties). (5 )  638: Ocala Cost Center 

(Marion County), (6 )  639: West Coast Cost Center (Pasco & ,Pinel l a s  Counties), 

( 7 )  600: Computer A l l oca t i on .  and (8 )  600: U I F  Transportat ion.  Included i n  

the  amount f o r  O f f i c e  S t ruc tures  & Communication l i s t e d  above i s  an a d d i t i o n  

o f  $29,880 f o r  Work Order CW-0600-117-00-02 t h a t  was f o r  t h e  purchase o f  a new 

Norstar vo ice  m a i l  system f o r  t h e  U I F  o f f i c e  i n  2000. Included i n  the  amount 

f o r  t h e  Orlando Cost Center l i s t e d  above i s  an a d d i t i o n  o f  $6,722 f o r  Work 

Order CW-602-117-97-09 t h a t  was f o r  t h e  purchase o f  a new c e l l u l a r  

communications system f o r  serv ice  personnel i n  1997. These add i t ions  were 

U P I S  add i t i ons  t h a t  replaced e x i s t i n g  systems t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  was using a t  

t he  t ime.  However. t h e  u t i l i t y  d i d  no t  record any ret i rements t o  U P I S  o r  

accumulated depreci a t i o n  when t h e  new systems were i ns ta l  1 ed. I recommend 

- 12 
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t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  common U P I S  should be reduced t o  p roper l y  account f o r  

r e t i  rement o f  U P I S .  The u t i  1 i t y  ’ s  water and wastewater accumulated 

depreci a t i  on and deprec ia t ion  expenses shoul d a1 so be reduced. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 8 discusses common p l a n t  a l l o c a t i o n s  from Water 

Services Corporation (WSC). WSC, t h e  serv ice  co rpo ra t i on  f o r  t h e  parent 

company U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c . .  a l l oca tes  a p o r t i o n  o f  i t s  common r a t e  base t o  each 

subs id ia ry  u t i l i t y  throughout the  United States.  U I F  rece ived $85,096, net  

o f  accumul ated deprec ia t ion  and accumulated deferred i ncome taxes, or 

approximately 3 . 7  percent o f  t h e  t o t a l  WSC net r a t e  base o f  $2,300,646. The 

a l l o c a t i o n  i s  based on a ca lcu la ted  customer equivalent (CE)  percentage t h a t  

equates a l l  customers throughout t h e  Uni ted States i n  terms o f  s i n g l e  family 

r e s i d e n t i a l  equivalent u n i t s .  U I F  then a l l oca tes  the  $85,096 i t  received from 

WSC t o  each o f  i t s  f i v e  county systems based on t h e  same customer equivalent 

formula. Kathy Welch i s  sponsoring test imony i n  t h i s  docket t o  sponsor an  

undocketed a f f i l i a t e  t ransac t i on  aud i t  o f  U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc. and i t s  subsidiary 

WSC f o r  t h e  12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. The scope o f  t he  aud i t  

included an examination o f  t h e  WSC r a t e  base components t h a t  are a l l oca ted  t o  

a l l  o f  i t s  subs id ia ry  operations i n  2001. The a u d i t  r e p o r t ,  issued October 

23, 2001, i nc luded adjustments t h a t  increased U I F ’ s  a l l o c a t e d  WSC net r a t e  

base a l l o c a t i o n  by $3.588 t o  $88,684. 

I I  

The above-mentioned a1 l o c a t i o n  percentages used t o  d i s t r i b u t e  WSC’s net  

r a t e  base t o  t h e  f i v e  counties i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding do no t  reconc i l e  t o  any 

a l l o c a t i o n  methodology t h a t  was presented by t h e  u t i l i t y  i n  i t s  f i l i n g  o r  i t s  

response t o  t h e  a u d i t  s t a f f ’ s  i n q u i r i e s .  I have incorporated t h e  increase o f  

$3.588 t o  WSC’s net r a t e  base as referenced above and reca lcu la ted  the  
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a1 l o c a t i o n  percentages f o r  each o f  

r a t e  proceeding t o  be cons is ten t  w 

the  f i v e  count 

t h  the  methodo 

es t h a t  are p a r t i e s  i n  t h i s  

ogy used by U I F  t o  a l l o c a t e  

i t s  common r a t e  base as described i n  Exception No. 7 .  

Aud i t  Exception No. 9 discusses adjustments t o  t e s t  year UPIS  balances. 

The a u d i t  s t a f f  performed a t o u r  o f  u t i l i t y  p roper ty  i n  Orange and Seminole 

Counties w i t h  a company representa t ive  on October 10, 2002. I noted t h e  I 

f o l l o w i n g  events on the  p l a n t  t o u r .  

Orange County - Crescent Heights 8 Davis Shores: The Crescent Heights 

water system i s  interconnected w i t h  Orlando U t i l i t i e s  Commission f o r  i t s  

potable  water needs. The u t i l i t y  s t i l l  has a b u i l d i n g .  hydro-pneumatic tank ,  

pump, and we l l  head a t  t h e  s i t e .  A l l  other equipment has been removed. A t  t h e  

t ime of t h e  a u d i t ,  t he  u t i l i t y  had plans t o  dispose o f  t he  remaining equipment 

and demolish the  b u i l d i n g  w i t h i n  the  next s i x  months. It does no t  a n t i c i p a t e  

any salvage value f o r  t h e  remaining equipment. The physical  in te rconnect ion  

w i t h  Orlando U t i l i t i e s  i s  no t  located on u t i l i t y  property,. The Davis Shores 

water system i s  interconnected w i t h  Orange County U t i l i t i e s  f o r  i t s  potable 

water needs. The u t i l i t y  has removed a l l  o f  i t s  equipment from t h e  Davis  

Shores s i t e  and disposed o f  t h e  u t i l i t y  l a n d .  I recommend t h a t  a l l  land and 

water treatment p l a n t  be r e t i r e d  from serv ice .  

Seminole County - L i n c o l n  Heights Wastewater P l a n t :  The L inco ln  Heights 

wastewater system has been interconnected w i t h  t h e  City o f  Sanford s ince J u l y  

2001. The wastewater p l a n t  and treatment f a c i l i t i e s  have been taken o f f  l ine 

and a t  t h e  t ime o f  the  a u d i t ,  t h e  u t i l i t y  had plans t o  dispose o f  or demolish 

them i n  t h e  coming months. The only equipment remaining a t  t h e  wastewater 

p l a n t  s i t e  i s  a new master l i f t  s t a t i o n  t h a t  t r a n s f e r s  t h e  untreated sewage 



5 8 2  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

t o  t h e  interconnect s i t e  t h a t  i s  not  loca ted  on u t i l i t y  p roper t y .  The 

wastewater pe rco la t i on  ponds are t o  be cleaned and f i l l e d  t o  grade l e v e l .  The 

Sta te  Department o f  T ranspor ta t ion  (DOT) and Seminole County have taken 

approximately 58.52 percent o f  t he  e x i s t i n g  14.90 acres o f  t h e  o r i g i n a l  l and  

s i t e  through condemnation ac t i on  f o r  road way improvements. The remaining 

u t i l i t y  land will  con ta in  t h e  new t r a n s f e r  l i f t  s t a t i o n  (4.75’ acres) and an 

undetermined f u t u r e  use (1 .43  acres) .  The u t i l i t y  i s  s t i l l  l i t i g a t i n g  t h e  

outcome o f  t h e  condemnation w i t h  Seminole County and the DOT. The wastewater 

land  contained 14.90 acres p r i o r  to t he  condemnation proceedings and was 

recorded i n  Seminole County’s books a t  an o r i g i n a l  cos t  o f  $11,597 f o r  SUB614 

L inco ln  Heights G/L. I recommend t h a t  58.52 percent o f  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  

wastewater land  balance f o r  L inco ln  Heights, and 100 percent o f  t h e  wastewater 

treatment p l a n t  be r e t i r e d  from serv ice .  U t i l i t y  records i n d i c a t e  a 

ret i rement o f  $6,000 t o  Account No. 353, Land, f o r  Seminole County i n  1999 

which supports t h e  a u d i t  s t a f f ’ s  estimated re t i rement  ca l cu la ted  above. 

Therefore, no add i t i ona l  re t i rement  f o r  u t i l i t y  l and  i s  recommended. 

I I  

Audi t  Exception No. 10 discusses CIAC and Advances. The u t i l i t y ’ s  

records r e f l e c t  balances o f  $52,000 and $48,000 i n  Accounts Nos. 2525000 and 

2526000, Advances-in-Aid o f  Construction, i n  Seminole County as o f  December 

31. 2001. The water and wastewater account balances have been i n a c t i v e  and 

on t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  books p r i o r  t o  1992. The u t i l i t y  s ta ted  t h a t  i t  “has 

researched a l l  a v a i l a b l e  in fo rmat ion  r e l a t i n g  t o  t h e  accounts noted i n  t h i s  

request. However, t h e r e  i s  no support ing i n fo rma t ion  p e r t a i n i n g  t o  these 

balances. However, t h e  U t i l i t y  has no record o f  t h i s  money ever being p a i d  

ou t .  Therefore, i t  remains i n  the  Advances-in-Aid accounts.” The USOA 

- 1 h -  
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desc r ip t i on  f o r  Account 252 includes advances by o r  i n  beha l f  o f  customers for  

cons t ruc t ion  which are t o  be refunded e i t h e r  who l ly  o r  i n  p a r t .  When a person 

i s  refunded t h e  e n t i r e  amount t o  which he i s  e n t i t l e d  according t o  t h e  

agreement or r u l e  under which t h e  advance was made, the  balance, i f  any, 

remaining i n  t h i s  account s h a l l  be c red i ted  t o  Account 271, C I A C .  I recommend 

t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  r e c l a s s i f y  t he  above balances t o  Account No. 271, C I A C .  I 

a lso  recommend t h a t  t h e  accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC and amor t i za t ion  

expense for 2001 should be increased t o  record the  add i t i ona l  amor t i za t ion  o f  

the  above balances f o r  t h e  t e s t  year. 

I I  

Audi t  Exception No. 11 discusses deprec ia t ion  ra tes .  Rule 25-30.140(2), 

F . A . C . ,  es tab l i shes  an average serv ice  l i f e  and corresponding deprec ia t ion  

ra tes  f o r  UPIS asset add i t i ons .  This r u l e  was used i n  the  p r i o r  proceedings 

for the count ies i n  t h i s  r a t e  case (see Order No. PSC-93-0430-FOF-WS. issued 

March 22, 1993, Pasco County (Summertree PPM), Order No. PSC-94-0739-FOF-WS, 

issued June 16. 1994, Marion and P ine l l as  Counties systems, and Order No. PSC- 

95-0574-FOF-WS, i ssued May 9, 1995, Orange, Pasco (Orangewood), and Semi no1 e 

County systems.) My ana lys is  o f  t h e  u t i l i t y ' s  t e s t  year 2001 deprec ia t ion  

ra tes  from i t s  Annual Reports i n d i c a t e  t h a t  f o r  wastewater Accounts Nos. 371 

and 380 i t  used t h e  i n c o r r e c t  deprec ia t ion  ra tes  when c a l c u l a t i n g  deprec ia t ion  

expense and t h e  respec t ive  accrual s t o  accumulated deprec ia t ion .  I 

reca lcu la ted  t h e  accumulated deprec ia t ion  balances f o r  Accounts Nos. 371 and 

380 using t h e  r u l e  ra tes  described above. The u t i l i t y  should be requ i red  to 

increase i t s  accumulated deprec ia t ion  balance as o f  December 31. 2001, f o r  

Marion, Pasco. and Seminole County by $21,744, $57,828 and $83,141, 

respec t i ve l y .  A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  my r e c a l c u l a t i o n  w i l l  increase t e s t  year 
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depreciation expense f o r  the 12-month period ended December 31, 2001, for 

Marion, Pasco and Seminole Counties by $2,636. $7,987, and $12,011, 

respectively. 

Audit Exception No. 12 discusses.amortization rates o f  CIAC. Rule 25- 

30.140 (8), F.A.C., states that the CIAC amortization rate shall be that o f  

the appropriate account or function where supporting documentation is 

available to identify the account or function o f  the related CIAC plant. 

Otherwise, the composite plant amortization rate shall be used. Utility 

records indicate that it uses the latter method of calculating its 

amortization o f  CIAC f o r  the five counties in this rate proceeding. My 

analysis of the utility’s accumulated amortization o f  CIAC and CIAC 

amortization expense balances from its MFRs indicate that it used incorrect 

composite amortization rates when calculating its CIAC amortization expense 

for the 12-month per-iod ended December 31, 2001. I recalculated accumulated 
amortization o f  CIAC and CIAC amortization expense by applying t he  correct 

composite depreciation rates per the rule cited above. The utility should be 

required to adjust accumulated amortization o f  CIAC and test year amortization 

expense. 

Audit Exception No. 13 discusses the General Ledger balances o f  

Accumulated Amortization o f  CIAC. Commission Order No. PSC-93-0430-FOF-WS, 

issued March 22, 1993, Pasco County (Summertree PPW) , establ i shed accumul ated 

amortization o f  CIAC balances o f  $114,744 and $125,359 for the Pasco County 

(Summertree PPW) water and wastewater systems, respectively, as of April 30, 

1991. The Order states that the utility presented balances of $68,939 and 

$59.402. f o r  water and wastewater accumulated amortization o f  CIAC as o f  
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October 30, 1990, in its filing f o r  Docket No. 920834-WS for Pasco County 

(Summertree PPW). The utility’s 1994 general ledger reflects balances o f  

$34,854 and $33,018, for water and wastewater accumul ated amortization o f  

CIAC, respectively, as of December 31’. 1993, when Accounts Nos. 276-00 and 

277-00. Accumulated Amortization CIAC-Water and Accumulated Amortization CIAC- 

Wastewater, first appeared in its general ledger. The 1994 entries also 

included yearly accruals of $11,618 and $10,154 for 1994. Prior to 1994, the 

utility’s policy was to record its accumulated amortization o f  CIAC as a 

direct offset to yearly accruals of accumulated depreciation in its 

accumulated depreciation accounts. There is no general ledger record of the 

above policy taking place for the Pasco County (Summertree PPW) systems since 

it was initially recorded on the utility’s books in 1990. 

. I  

The utility’s conflicting balances for accumulated amortization of CIAC 

in its filing for Docket No. 920834-WS and in its 1994 general ledger balance 

above, along with its inadequate records for the period 1990 through 1994, 

provide sufficient evidence to question its accumulated amortization o f  CIAC 

balance of $130,438 and $125.703 as of December 31, 2001, for Pasco County in 

its MFR filing. Using information from the utility’s filings in Docket No. 

920834-WS and its 1990 through 1994 general ledgers, I have reconstructed the 

uti 1 ity’s water and wastewater accumulated amortization o f  CIAC balances of 

$62,567 and $70,421, as o f  April 30, 1991, for its Pasco County (Summertree 

PPW) systems. As stated above. there i s  no evidence of the utility accruing 

amortization o f  CIAC for the Pasco County (Summertree PPW) systems prior to 

1994. 1 believe that the $34,854 and $33,018 accumulated amortization o f  CIAC 

balances recorded as o f  December 31, 1993, in its 1994 general ledger are  
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, I  

c o r r e c t i n g  journa l  e n t r i e s  t o  record th ree  years o f  amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC s ince 

the u t i l i t y  purchased t h e  Pasco County (Summertree PPW) systems i n  1990. The 

$34,854 and $33,018 d i v i d e d  by th ree  years equal $11.618 and $11,006, 

respec t i ve l y ,  which are t h e  same amounts t h e  u t i l i t y  recorded f o r  amort izat ion 

o f  CIAC i n  1994. The beginning accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  C I A C  balances t h a t  

should have been t rans fe r red  w i t h  t h e  accrual i n  1994 may s t i l l  be combined 

i n  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  accumulated deprec ia t ion  balances. Without s u f f i c i e n t  u t i l i t y  

records, i t  i s  impossible t o  determine. 

I recommend t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  C I A C  balance 

f o r  Pasco County (Summertree PPW) be increased by $27,713 and $37,410, which 

i s  t h e  d i f f e rence  between t h e  amount recorded as o f  December 31, 1993. and t h e  

u t i l i t y ’ s  beginning balances as o f  A p r i l  30, 1991. ($62.567 - $34,854 and 

$70,428 - $33,018) This adjustment, a t  a minimum, w i l l  r e s t a t e  the  u t i l i t y ’ s  

general ledger balances for water and wastewater accumulated amort izat ion o f  

C I A C  t o  i t s  i n i t i a l  balances as  o f  A p r i l  30, 1991. I 

Aud i t  Exception No. 14 discusses t h e  working c a p i t a l  allowance. The MFR 

r a t e  base f i l i n g  includes $1,634,531 for working c a p i t a l  as o f  December 31, 

2001. This amount i s  a l l o c a t e d  as follows: Marion-Water: $114,826, Marion 

Wastewater : $44,914, Orange Water : $80,701, Pasco Water : $244,252, Pasco- 

Wastewater: $255,410. P ine l l as  Water: $31,222, Seminole Water: $397.399, and 

Seminole Wastewater: $465,807. The u t i l i t y  a l l oca ted  the working c a p i t a l  

balance t o  t h e  f i v e  counties i n  t h i s  proceeding based on the December 31, 

2001, year-end O&M expense for each system before  any u t i l i t y  adjustments. 

Rule 25-30.433 (2) and (4). F . A . C . ,  requ i res  tha t  working c a p i t a l  f o r  Class 

A u t i l i t i e s  s h a l l  be ca l cu la ted  using the  balance sheet approach and t h a t  t he  

- 20 - 
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averaging method used by t h e  Commission t o  c a l c u l a t e  r a t e  base and cost o f  

c a p i t a l  s h a l l  be a 13-month average f o r  Class A u t i l i t i e s .  I recommend t h a t  

t he  u t i l i t y ’ s  t o t a l  balance sheet working c a p i t a l  i s  $208,497 as o f  December 

31, 2001, based on t h e  f o l l o w i n g  aud i t  s t a f f  f i n d i n g s .  ($1,634,531 - 

$1,794,693 + $368,659) 

The u t i l i t y ’ s  cu r ren t  assets as o f  December 31, 2001, are overstated by 
S I  

$1,794,693. The major d i f f e rence  i s  found i n  t h e  cash balance. The cash 

balance presented by t h e  u t i l i t y  i s  t he  December 31, 2001, book balance from 

U I F ’ s  general ledger.  The balance does not accura te ly  r e f l e c t  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  

actual  cash balance for U I F  i n  t h i s  proceeding because i t  f a i l s  t o  recognize 

t h e  r e c u r r i n g  e l e c t r o n i c  t r a n s f e r s  o f  cash from F l o r i d a  t o  I l l i n o i s  where t h e  

cash i s  used t o  fund cont inu ing  operations o f  t h e  parent and a l l  o f  i t s  

subs id ia r i es .  A d d i t i o n a l l y .  t h e  cash account on U I F ’ s  general ledger i s  on l y  

a deposi tory account t h a t  i s  used t o  accumulate customer payments from a l l  

subs id ia ry  operations i n  F lo r i da  before being t r a n s f e r r e d  t o  t h e  I l l i n o i s  

bank. I ca lcu la ted  a 13-month average actual  cash balance o f  $88,985 as o f  

December 31, 2001, i n  t h e  F l o r i d a  bank account and a l l oca ted  $11,328 o r  12.73 

percent t o  U I F  f o r  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding. The 12.73 percent a l l o c a t i o n  

represents U I F ’ s  p o r t i o n  o f  t h e  t o t a l  revenues generated by a l l  o f  t h e  F l o r i d a  

operations i n  2001. 

e The u t i l i t y ’ s  cu r ren t  l i a b i l i t i e s  are overstated by $368,659. The major 

d i f f e rence  i s  r e l a t e d  t o  deferred income taxes .  I removed deferred income 

taxes from working c a p i t a l  because they are inc luded as a component o f  t h e  

u t i l i t y ’ s  c o s t  o f  c a p i t a l  i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding. 

a The u t i l i t y  used t h e  December 31, 2001, year-end balances t o  ca l cu la te  
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i t s  working c a p i t a l  r a t h e r  than t h e  13-month average requ i red  i n  t h e  

Commi ssion r u l e  c i t e d  above. 

The u t i l i t y  a l l o c a t e d  i t s  working c a p i t a l  balance f o r  U I F  t o  t h e  f i v e  

count ies i n  t h i s  proceeding based on the  December 31, 2001, year-end O&M 

expense f o r  each system before  i t s  adjustments t o  t e s t  year O&M expense ra the r  

than a f t e r  such adjustments. 
I l  

Audi t  Exception No. 15 discusses the  U t i l i t y  adjustments t o  r a t e  base 

i n  the  t e s t  year .  The u t i l i t y ' s  f i l i n g  includes r a t e  base adjustments t o  i t s  

December 31, 2001, general ledger t h a t  i t  describes as adjustments r e l a t e d  t o  

i t s  l a s t  r a t e  case proceeding. I determined t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y ' s  f i l i n g  was 

prepared from i t s  2001 Annual Report and t h a t  t h e  m a j o r i t y  o f  t h e  adjustments 

are t o  ad jus t  t h e  general ledger balances t o  t h e  2001 Annual Report and MFR 

f i l i n g .  

The adjustments t o  U P I S  f o r  Marion, Seminole, and Pasco Counties are 

adjustments t h a t  r e d i s t r i b u t e  common UPIS between t h e  water and wastewater 

systems t h a t  have a minimal impact on o v e r a l l  r d t e  base and should be 

approved. 

The adjustments t o  accumulated deprec ia t ion  f o r  a l l  t h e  counties are a 

combination o f  t h e  e f f e c t  o f  t h e  above-described r e d i s t r i b u t i o n s  and the  

i n c l u s i o n  o f  an accumulated deprec ia t ion  balance f o r  Accounts Nos. 301 and 

351, Organization Cost, which the  u t i l i t y  does no t  r e f l e c t  i n  i t s  2001 Annual 

Report which was used t o  prepare i t s  MFR f i l i n g  and should be approved. 

The adjustments t o  CIAC and accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  C I A C  f o r  Orange 

County a re  adjustments t h a t  add back $17,592 and $10.709 o f  u t i l i t y  

ret i rements f o r  t he  Dru id  I s l e  water system t h a t  was s o l d  i n  1999. The 
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5 8 9  

u t i l i t y  p roper ly  recorded the  ret i rements i n  i t s  general ledger but no t  i n  i t s  

Annual Report which was used t o  prepare i t s  MFR f i l i n g .  The MFR adjustments 

o f  $17,592 and $10,709 would misstate t h e  actual  balances f o r  Orange County 

C I A C  and accumulated amort izat ion o f  CIAC and should be removed. 

The adjustment t o  C I A C  far Marion County increases t h e  MFR f i l i n g  by 

$4,550 t o  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  general ledger balance o f  $138,914. My ana lys is  o f  

t he  a c t i v i t y  i n  the  u t i l i t y ’ s  C I A C  account agrees t h a t  C I A C  should be 

increased by $4,550. 

The adjustments t o  accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  C I A C  f o r  Pasco County 

reduce i t s  general ledger balance by $35,608 t o  i t s  2001 Annual Report 

balance. The adjustments are a combination o f  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  two amounts. 

The u t i l i t y  recorded $13,837 t o  i t s  general ledger which increased t h e  

Orangewood balance i n  1995. This amount was reported as a t e s t  year 

ad\justment i n  a previous r a t e  proceeding i n  Docket No. 940917-WS. The u t i l i t y  

p roper ly  recorded t h e  adjustment i n  i t s  general ledger bur not i n  i t s  Annual 

Report which was used t o  prepare i t s  MFR filing. The MFR adjustment o f  

$13,837 would i n c o r r e c t l y  repo r t  t he  actual  balance f o r  Pasco County C I A C  and 

should be removed. 

0 The u t i l i t y ’ s  general ledger balance exceeds 

balance by $21.843 f o r  t he  Summertree PPW system. 

i t s  accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  C I A C  balance f o r  t he  

1994 when i t  created a separate account f o r  these ba 

i t s  2001 Annual Report 

The u t i l i t y  r e c l a s s i f i e d  

Summertree PPW system i n  

ances. In Exception No. 

13, I reported t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  d i d  n o t  p roper ly  t r a n s f e r  t h e  co r rec t  

begi nni  ng ba l  ance f o r  Pasco County, Summertree PPW and  recommended co r rec t  i ve 

ac t ion  t h a t  would make t h e  $21,843 requested u t i l i t y  adjustment moot. 
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Therefore, t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  adjustment should be removed. 

The adjustments t o  CIAC and accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  C I A C  f o r  

P i  ne1 1 as County increase the  respect ive balances by $3,791 as described be l  ow. 

My ana lys is  o f  t he  C I A C  account .balance since i t s  l a s t  r a t e  proceeding 

i n  Docket No. 930826-WS. ind ica tes  t h a t  t h e  general ledger balance r e f l e c t e d  

as o f  December 31, 2001, i s  t h e  co r rec t  balance and t h a t  t h e  $31791 adjustment 

t o  increase C I A C  i s  not warranted and should be removed. 

e The u t i l i t y ’ s  $3,791 adjustment i n  i t s  f i l i n g  i s  for a perceived 

d i f f e rence  between i t s  general ledger and i t s  2001 Annual Report which was 

used t o  prepare i t s  MFR f i l i n g  and should be removed. 

a 

I 1  

My ana lys is  o f  t he  accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC balance ind i ca tes  

t h a t  i t  never recorded a reported 

accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC ba 

i n  Docket No. 930826-WS. I recomme 

amort izat ion o f  CIAC balance by 

t e s t  year adjustment t h a t  decreased i t s  

ance by $2,139 i n  i t s  l a s t  r a t e  proceeding 

id t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  reduce i t s  accumulated 

$2,139 t o  record t h e  p r i o r  t e s t  year 

. 

adjustment approved i n i t s  1 as t  r a t e  proceeding . 

The u t i l i t y ’ s  adjustments t o  i t s  Seminole County CIAC water and 

accumulated amor t i za t ion  o f  CIAC wastewater accounts increase t h e  respec t ive  

balances by $1,400 and $59,721 as o f  December 31, 2001. I have reconc i led  t h e  

adjusted u t i l i t y  balances o f  $738,562 and $448,273 t o  i t s  general ledger and 

1 agree w i t h  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  adjustment. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 16 discusses t h e  cos t  o f  c a p i t a l  f o r  t h e  parent 

company. The u t i l i t y ’ s  f i l i n g  ind ica tes  t h a t  i t  has ca lcu la ted  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  

weighted average cost o f  c a p i t a l  as o f  December 31, 2001, f o r  each o f  t h e  U I F  

count ies:  Marion: 9.34%: Orange: 9.10%; Pasco: 9.29%, P i n e l l a s :  9.19%; and 
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Semi no1 e : 9.29%. 

Kathy Welch i s  sponsoring test imony i n  t h i s  docket t o  sponsor an 

undocketed a f f i l i a t e  t ransac t ion  a u d i t  o f  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  and i t s  subsidiary 

WSC f o r  t h e  12-month per iod  ended December 31, 2001. Exception No. 10 o f  t he  

a u d i t  r e p o r t  i n  t h a t  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  recommends s p e c i f i c  adjustments t o  the  

components o f  t he  requested Cost o f  Cap i ta l  f o r  t h e  parent,  U t i l i t i e s ,  I nc .  

and each o f  t he  U I F  counties i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 17 discusses t e s t  year revenues. The u t i l i t y ’ s  

general se rv i ce  tariff f o r  t h e  Crownwood wastewater system i n  Marion County 

s ta tes  t h a t  a customer w i t h  a 2 - inch  general serv ice  connection w i l l  be 

charged a Base F a c i l i t y  Charge o f  $464.51 and a Gallonage Charge o f  $5.46 per 

1000 ga l l ons  on a bi-monthly bas is .  

On December 28, 1999, t h e  u t i l i t y  executed a Bulk Sewer Service 

Agreement w i t h  BFF Corporation t o  p rov ide  wastewater treatment services i n  

accordance w i t h  i t s  tar i f f  and sewer serv ice  p o l i c y .  Rec i ta l  No. 7 o f  t he  

agreement s ta tes  t h a t  t he  company s h a l l  read the sewer meter(s) and d e l i v e r  

a b i l l i n g  t o  BFF monthly. BFF Corporat ion’s 2001 Annual Report ind ica tes  t h a t  

it has 98 res iden t ia l  customers and t h a t  i t  purchased $20,892 o f  sewer 

treatment services from U I F  i n  t h e  12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. 

My review o f  U I F ’ s  b i l l i n g  records i nd i ca tes  t h a t  BFF Corporation i s  the  so le  

general se rv i ce  customer f o r  U I F ’ s  Crownwood system and t h a t  i t  began 

p rov id ing  wastewater treatment serv ice ,  through a 2 - inch  wastewater meter, t o  

BFF Corporation as o f  May 2001. The purchase wastewater agreement between U I F  

and BFF Corporat ion,  c i t e d  above, i s  i n  d i r e c t  c o n f l i c t  w i t h  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  

author ized t a r i f f ’ s  s ta ted  bi-monthly b i l l i n g  per iod .  The u t i l i t y ’ s  b i l l i n g  
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r e g i s t e r s  r e f l e c t e d  t h a t  i t  co l l ec ted  $20,813 o f  wastewater revenues from 8FF 

Corp. f o r  t h e  eight-month per iod ended December 31, 2001. A normalized 12- 

month pe r iod  would be expected t o  produce approximately $32,187 i n  wastewater 

revenues when ca lcu la ted  using the  u t i T i t y ’ s  author ized tariff and a six-month 

h i s t o r i c a l  average gallonage charge. This would r e s u l t  i n  an increase o f  

$11.374 t o  t h e  Marion county t e s t  year wastewater revenues. 
S I  

Audi t  Exception No. 18 discusses d i r e c t  Operation and Maintenance 

Expenses. 

The u t i l i t y ’ s  accounting system a c t i v e l y  records monthly accruals and 

reversa ls  f o r  i n t e r n a l  f i n a n c i a l  r e p o r t i n g  purposes. USOA Accounting 

I n s t r u c t i o n  2 . A .  s ta tes  t h a t  each u t i l i t y  s h a l l  keep i t s  books o f  account, and 

a17 o ther  books, records, and memoranda which support t h e  e n t r i e s  i n  such 

books o f  accounts so as t o  be able t o  f u r n i s h  r e a d i l y  f u l l  in fo rmat ion  as t o  

any i tem included i n  any account. 

My review o f  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  purchased power (Account No. 615j,  purchased 

water (Account No. 6101, and purchased wastewater treatment (Account No. 710) 

i nd ica tes  tha t  t h e  u t i l i t y  f a i l e d  t o  remove excess accruals and reversals f o r  

i t s  MFR f i l i n g .  

Also,  my ana lys is  o f  t h e  purchased wastewater account f o r  Pasco County 

i nd i ca tes  t h a t  i t  includes t h r e e  invo ices  t o t a l i n g  $23,770 from t h e  Ci ty o f  

Sanford, F l o r i d a .  The $23.770 should be removed and recorded i n  t h e  Seminole 

County purchased wastewater account. 

My sample o f  u t i  1 i t y  operat ion and maintenance expenses f o r  t h e  12-month 

per iod  ended December 31, 2001, revealed th ree  journa l  e n t r i e s  f o r  invo ices  

t o t a l i n g  $2,614 t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  could not  supply any support ing 

-267- 
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documentation. Per t he  USOA accounting i n s t r u c t i o n  c i t e d  above, these amounts 

should be removed from t e s t  year expenses. 

My analysis o f  U I F  Cost Center 600, which i s  discussed i n  d e t a i l  i n  

Exception No. 20 o f  t h i s  r e p o r t ,  ind ica tes  t h a t  i t  includes $3,010 i n  l ega l  

fees t h a t  should have been d i r e c t l y  charged t o  Contractual Services - Legal 

(Accounts Nos. 633 and 733) o f  t he  Summertree PPW water and wastewater system 

i n  Pasco County. The u t i l i t y  should increase Accounts Nos. 633 and 733 by 

$2,198.50 and $811.50, respec t i ve l y  , based on t h e  percentage o f  water and 

wastewater customers i n  Pasco County, t o  p roper l y  record t h e  lega l  fees 

i ncu r red  for t he  Summertree PPW system. 

S I  

Aud i t  Exception No. 19 discusses Operation and Maintenance Expense Cost 

Centers 603 and 639. The u t i l i t y ’ s  accounting system includes two cos t  

centers t h a t  are used t o  accrue and d i s t r i b u t e  common cost t o  t h e  s p e c i f i e d  

county systems using a ca l cu la ted  customer equ iva len t  (CE) percentage. Cost 

Center 603 i s  named “Orlando o f f i c e ”  and d i s t r i b u t e s  t o  Orange and Seminole 

count ies .  Cost Center 639 i s  named “West Coast o f f i c e ”  and d i s t r i b u t e s  t o  

Pasco and P ine l l as  count ies .  The u t i l i t y ’ s  records r e f l e c t  t h a t  $20,540 and 

$9,049 o f  operat ion and maintenance expenses were recorded i n  U I F  Cost Centers 

603 and 639, respec t i ve l y ,  f o r  t he  12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. 

My ana lys is  o f  t he  two cos t  centers revealed t h e  f o l l o w i n g  in fo rmat ion :  

0 Cost Center 603 inc luded invoices t o t a l i n g  $1,626 f o r  trave7 and 

a d v e r t i s i n g  expenses t h a t  were no t  r e l a t e d  t o  any Orange or Seminole County 

system. 

0 Cost Center 639 inc luded invo ices  t o t a l i n g  $591 f o r  trave7 expenses t h a t  

were n o t  r e l a t e d  t o  any Pasco or Pine l l as  County system and $312 o f  missing 
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i nvo ices  . 

The t r a v e l  expenses were f o r  employee t r a v e l  t o  Panama City, S t u a r t ,  and 

F t .  Myers for work r e l a t e d  t o  other F lo r i da  u t i l i t i e s  and should  be removed 

from Orange, Pasco, P ine l l as ,  and Seminole Counties opera t ion  and maintenance 

expenses accounts. The a d v e r t i s i n g  expense was f o r  a c l a s s i f i e d  advertisement 

t o  r e c r u i t  wastewater p l a n t  operators i n  F t .  Myers and Panama Ci ty  which are 

o ther  F l o r i d a  u t i l i t i e s  and should be removed from t h e  Orange and Seminole 

Counties opera t i  on and maintenance expenses accounts. The m i  s s i  ng i nvoi ces 

should also be removed f o r  t h e  same reason as discussed i n  t h e  previous 

except i on. 

Audi t  Exception No, 20 discusses Operation and Maintenance Expense - 

Cost Center 600. The u t i l i t y ’ s  accounting system includes cost center 600 

t h a t  i s  used t o  accrue and d i s t r i b u t e  common cost t o  Orange, Marion, Pasco, 

P ine l l as ,  and Seminole count ies using a ca l cu la ted  customer equivalent ( C E )  

percentage. The utility’s records reflect t h a t  $750.857 o f  operat ion and 

maintenance expenses were recorded i n  U I F  Cost Center 600 f o r  t h e  12-month 

per iod  ended December 31, 2001. The USOA d e s c r i p t i o n  f o r  Account 186 s ta tes  

t h a t  thl’s account s h a l l  i nc lude  a l l  deb i ts  no t  elsewhere provided f o r ,  such 

as items t h e  proper f i n a l  d i s p o s i t i o n  o f  which i s  uncertain.  Commission rule 

25-30.433 (81, F . A . C . ,  requ i res  t h a t  nonrecurr ing expenses s h a l l  be amortized 

over a f i ve -yea r  per iod  unless a shor te r  o r  longer per iod  o f  t ime can be 

j u s t i f i e d .  My analysis o f  cos t  center 600 revealed t h a t  i t  includes t h e  

fol  1 owi ng costs  : 

Invoices t o t a l i n g  $20,825 f o r  ex t raord inary  insurance sett lements dur ing  

t h e  t e s t  year t h a t  should be removed, deferred, and amortized over a f i ve -yea r  
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per iod ,  per t h e  r u l e  c i t e d  above. 

I nvo ice  t o t a l i n g  $3,010 f o r  lega l  expenses incur red  f o r  t h e  Summertree 

PPW u t i l i t y  system i n  Pasco County t h a t  should be charged d i r e c t l y  t o  t h e  

Pasco County systems. 

0 Invoices t o t a l i n g  $2,399 f o r  lega l  

1 awsui t i nvol v i  ng condemnation proceedi ngs 

deferred pending f i n a l  d i s p o s i t i o n  and Comm 

rule c i t e d  above. 

‘ees incur red  f o r  t h e  cont inu ing  

i n  Seminole County ’ t h a t  should be 

ss ion  determination per t h e  NARUC 
I I  

0 I nvo i ce  f o r  $3,000 f o r  a yea r l y  computer maintenance program t h a t  was 

performed tw ice  dur ing  t h e  t e s t  year.  

expense t o  an annual recu r r i ng  cos t .  

0 Invo ice  f o r  $1.219 f o r  a permit  a p p l i c a t i o n  f e e  f o r  Sandalhaven 

U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc. which should be removed from UIF’s books and t rans fe r red  t o  

Sandal haven’s books. 

Journal en t r y  f o r  $5,801 f o r  Nextel Communications. No support ing 

invo ice  was provided. The missing invoices should be removed per t h e  aud i t  

s t a f f ’ s  treatment o f  s i m i l a r  missing invo ices  i n  Exception No. 18. 

a Deferred r a t e  case accruals o f  $19,345 t h a t  involves t h e  amor t i za t ion  

o f  $79,354 o f  lega l  fees r e l a t e d  t o  the  condemnation proceedings i n  Seminole 

County mentioned prev ious ly  and the  amor t i za t ion  o f  $5,066 i n  fees and 

c a p i t a l i z e d  execut ive t ime o f  company o f f i c e r s  working on F l o r i d a  r a t e  case 

issues. The Seminole County l ega l  fees should be deferred pending f i n a l  

d i s p o s i t i o n  and Commission determination per t h e  NARUC r u l e  c i t e d  above. 

It should be removed t o  normalize the  

I recommend t h a t  U I F  O f f i c e  Cost Center 600 be reduced by $50,167 for 

the 12-month per iod  ended December 31, 2001. 
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Audit  Exception No. 21  discusses Operation & Maintenance (O&M) expense 

a l l o c a t i o n s .  The u t i l i t y ’ s  accounting system includes cost centers 600 ( U I F  

O f f i c e )  and 601 (F lo r i da  o f f i c e )  t h a t  are used t o  accrue and d i s t r i b u t e  common 

operat ion and maintenance expenses t o  t h e  f i v e  count ies i n  t h i s  docket as we l l  

as a l l  other F lo r i da  systems. U t i l i t y  records r e f l e c t  t h a t  t h e  Cost Center 

600 includes $750,857 o f  expenses f o r  t h e  12-month per iod  ended December 31, 

2001. O f  t h i s  amount, $311,304 i s  f o r  accrued operator p a y r o l l  and b e n e f i t s .  

The customer equivalent ( C E )  percentage incorporates the  system(s) where each 

operator i s  assigned t o  work. The balance o f  $439,553 i s  a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  U I F  

counties using the  CE percentages discussed above. 

I 

U t i l i t y  records a l so  r e f l e c t  t h a t  Cost Center 601 includes $53.534 o f  

expenses for t he  12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. The e n t i r e  balance 

i s  a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  U I F  count ies using t h e  CE percentages discussed above. 

U I F  serves as t h e  regional  operat ions center f o r  U t i l i t i e s  I n c . ’ s  

(parent)  F lo r i da  operat ions.  U I F  accrues t h e  common O&M ,costs o f  i t s  y e a r l y  

operations i n  the  two cos t  centers i nd i ca ted  above. With in  each cos t  center,  

there  are s p e c i f i c  accounts t h a t  accrue the common O&M cos ts  i ncu r red  by U I F  

i n  i t s  r o l e  as the  regional  operations center .  These costs are a l l oca ted  t o  

a l l  F lo r i da  operations, i n c l u d i n g  U I F ,  us ing  Schedule SE90 f o r  r e p o r t i n g  

purposes. The a1 l oca t ions  are based on customer equivalent percentages. U I F  

was a l l oca ted  $158,166, approximately 13 percent.  o f  SE90 common cos t  f o r  the  

12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. 

Water Service Corporation (WSC) , t h e  parent ’s  admin i s t ra t i ve  operations 

company, a l l oca ted  $14,640, $36.137 and $98,408 o f  common cos t  t o  U I F  which 

are r e f l e c t e d  i n  WSC Schedules SE51 for computer cos t ,  SE52 f o r  insurance 
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cos t ,  and SE60 for general and admin i s t ra t i ve  cost  f o r  , t h e  12-month per iod  

ended December 31, 2001. U I F  recorded these a l l o c a t i o n s  i n  the  Sub 600 Cost 

Center described above. 

I recommend t h a t  t he  u t i l i t y ’ s  common costs which are a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  

U I F  systems are overstated by $88,560. A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  a l l o c a t i o n  

o f  common costs t o  the  U I F  systems are m a t e r i a l l y  misstated because o f  e r ro rs  

i n  t h e  c a l c u l a t i o n  o f  i t s  CE percentages for those systems. The $88,560 i s  

determined by the  f o ?  lowing a u d i t  s t a f f  adjustments. 

Exception No. 20 o f  t h i s  repo r t  removed $50,167 o f  expenses from Cost 

Center 600 and should be r e f l e c t e d  i n  t h i s  adjustment. 

0 Kathy Welch i s  sponsoring test imony i n  t h i s  docket t o  sponsor an 

undocketed a f f i l i a t e  t ransac t i on  a u d i t  o f  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  and i t s  subs id ia ry  

NSC for t h e  12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. The a u d i t  repo r t  was 

issued on October 23, 2002. I n  Exceptions Nos. 2 through 9 o f  t h e  r e p o r t ,  t h e  

aud i t  s t a f f  reduced t h e  common a l l o c a t i o n s  U I F  receives 4rom WSC i n  Schedule 

SE51 by $2,728 t o  $11.912. i n  Schedule SE52 by $3,963 t o  $32,174 and Schedule 

SE60 by $31,702 t o  $66,706. The t o t a l  reduc t ion  amounts t o  $38,393 for the  

12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. I am a lso  i n c l u d i n g  t h i s  adjustment. 

My ana lys is  o f  t he  u t i l i t y ’ s  CE a l l o c a t i o n  schedule i nd i ca tes  t h a t  it 

d i d  not i nc lude  610 customers from t h e  Orangewood water system and understated 

by 11 t h e  number o f  wastewater customers i n  i t s  Summertree PPW system, both 

o f  which are  located i n  Pasco County. I have reca lcu la ted  t h e  CE percentages 

and the  d e t a i l s  are inc luded i n  t h e  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

Aud i t  Exception No. 22 discusses Operation and Maintenance (O&M) expense 

The u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR f i l i n g  includes adjustments adjustments t o  t h e  t e s t  yea r .  
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t o  sa la ry  and pension & bene f i t s  for i t s  12-month pe r iod  ended’December 31, 

2001. The u t i l i t y ‘ s  f i l i n g  s ta tes  t h a t  t h e  sa la ry  expense and associated 

pension and b e n e f i t  ( F B I  expense adjustments r e f l e c t  t he  d i f f e r e n c e  between 

year-end expense and present year expense f o r  t he  u t i  1 i t y  system operators and 

U I F  o f f i c e  s t a f f .  The u t i l i t y  provided t h e  a u d i t  s t a f f  w i t h  d e t a i l e d  

schedules t h a t  compared t h e  year-end 2001 sa la ry  and PB expense t o  t h e  present 

year ac tua l  expense and ca lcu la ted  the proposed t e s t  year adjustments. The 

schedules i l l u s t r a t e d  i t s  adjustments f o r  u t i l i t y  system operators,  U I F  o f f i c e  

s t a f f ,  and WSC o f f i c e  s t a f f  sa la r i es  and PB expenses. My review o f  t h e  

u t i l i t y ’ s  schedules revealed two e r ro rs  t h a t  m a t e r i a l l y  miss ta te  what t h e  

proposed sa la ry  and PB expense adjustments should be. 

The u t i l i t y  prepared f i v e  separate schedules t o  ca l cu la te  t h e  sa la ry  and 

P8 expense adjustment f o r  each o f  t he  f i v e  counties i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding. 

A l l  o f  t h e  counties except f o r  Pasco County were a l l o c a t e d  14 percent o f  the 

U I F  o f f i c e  sa la ry  and PI3 expense based on a rev ised customer equivalent (CE)  

percentage. 

e The u t i l i t y  a l l oca ted  t h e  U I F  o f f i c e  s t a f f  and WSC o f f i c e  s t a f f  s a l a r i e s  

and PB expense t o  t h e  f i v e  counties i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding based on t h e  

regional  v i c e  p res iden t ’ s  est imate o f  t ime t h a t  he spends on each F lo r i da  

u t i l i t y  system. The cu r ren t  t e s t  year U I F  o f f i c e  s t a f f  and WSC o f f i c e  s t a f f  

sa la r i es  and P8 expense are a l l oca ted  based on CE percentages. 

I 1  

I reca lcu la ted  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  adjustment t o  O&M salary and PB expense and 

The a u d i t  r e p o r t  includes t h e  d e t a i l s  corrected t h e  above-mentioned e r r o r s .  

o f  these adjustments. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 23 discusses Operation and Maintenance (O&M) expense 
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5 9 9  

adjustments t o  the  t e s t  year f o r  Seminole county. The u t i l i t y ’ s  wastewater 

treatment p l a n t  a t  L inco ln  Heights in Seminole County was removed from serv ice  

on J u l y  1. 2001. The u t i l i t y  a t  t h a t  t ime began purchasing wastewater 

treatment services from the  Ci ty o f  ‘Sanford, F l o r i d a .  The u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR 

f i l i n g  includes an adjustment t h a t  increases t e s t  year O&M expense f o r  the 12- 

month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2004, by $100.296 i n  Seminole County. The 

u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR f i l i n g  s ta tes  t h a t  t he  adjustment was t o  r e f l e c t  an increase i n  

O&M expense due t o  the  wastewater in te rconnect ion  w i t h  the  c i t y .  My ana lys is  

of t h e  e f f e c t  o f  t he  wastewater in te rconnect ion  w i t h  t h e  Ci ty o f  Sanford, 

F l o r i d a ,  has determined t h a t  t h e  fo l l ow ing  adjustments t o  2001 t e s t  year O&M 

expenses for Seminole County should be recorded f o r  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding t o  

p roper l y  account f o r  t h e  change i n  u t i l i t y  se rv i ce  described above. 

Account 710: Normalize purchased wastewater expense - $55 ’ 032. I 

s t a r t e d  w i t h  the  u t i  1 i t y ’ s  actual  14-month average purchased wastewater 

expense o f  $11,840.52 ( J u l y  2001 t o  August 2002) and caJculated a 12-month 

average o f  $142,086.24. I compared t h i s  t o  t h e  t e s t  year 2001 actual  

purchased wastewater treatment expense o f  $87.054.38 and ca l cu la ted  an 

adjustment o f  $55,031.82 t o  purchased wastewater treatment expense. 

I 

Account 715: Remove purchased power expense f o r  treatment p l a n t  and 

inc lude normalized purchased power expense f o r  t h e  new t r a n s f e r  l i f t  s t a t i o n  - 

($8,461). I s ta r ted  w i t h  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  actual  6-month average purchased power 

for t h e  new t r a n s f e r  s t a t i o n  o f  $61.85 ( J u l y  2001 t o  December 2001) and 

ca lcu la ted  a 12-month average o f  $742.18. I compared t h i s  t o  t h e  t e s t  year 

2001 actual  wastewater treatment p l a n t  purchased power o f  $9,203.64 and 

ca lcu la ted  an adjustment o f  (8,461.46) t o  t o t a l  purchased power expense. 
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a Account 720: Remove sludge hau l ing  expense - ($17,830) 

a Account 742: Remove wastewater t e s t i  ng expense - ($6,496) 

Account 720 : Remove percol a t i o n  pond m a i  ntenance expense - ($2,700) 

For t h e  l a s t  t h ree ,  I removed a l l  expenses r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  wastewater 

treatment p l a n t  t h a t  are no longer requ i red .  The t o t a l  o f  these f i v e  

adjustments i s  $19,545. The u t i l i t y ’ s  adjustment t o  t e s t  year O&M expense f o r  

Semi no1 e County wastewater should be reduced by $80,751. 
S I  

Audi t  Exception No. 24 discusses Property taxes .  The u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR 

f i l i n g  includes $48,634 f o r  p roper ty  taxes f o r  t h e  f i v e  counties t h a t  are 

p a r t y  t o  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding. The proper ty  taxes are  composed o f  r e a l  es ta te  

and t a n g i b l e  personal p roper ty  taxes l e v i e d  on t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  p roper ty  i n  t h e  

f i v e  count ies f o r  t h e  t e s t  year 2001. Included i n  t h e  amount i s  a reduc t ion  

o f  $3,102 against  t h e  t a n g i b l e  property taxes l e v i e d  on UIF’s admin i s t ra t i ve  

o f f i c e  t h a t  i s  loca ted  i n  Seminole County. This amount was a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  

other F l o r i d a  u t i l i t y  operations i n  Schedule SE90. My ana lys is  o f  t h e  

u t i l i t y ’ s  p roper ty  taxes i nd i ca tes  t h a t ,  o f  t h e  $48,634 o f  p roper ty  taxes 

mentioned above, $39,034 can be d i r e c t l y  t raced  t o  a s p e c i f i c  u t i l i t y  system. 

The balance o f  $9,600 i s  composed o f  $7,069 i n  rea l  property taxes and $3,564 

i n  t a n g i b l e  personal p roper ty  taxes on t h e  U I F  admin i s t ra t i ve  o f f i c e ,  $2,069 

f o r  a l l o c a t e d  proper ty  taxes from WSC and t h e  reduct ion o f  $3,102 i n  t h e  

tang ib le  personal p roper ty  t a x  which i s  a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  other F l o r i d a  u t i l i t y  

operations i n  Schedule SE90. I determined t h a t  t h e  fo l l ow ing  adjustments are 

required t o  p roper ly  r e f l e c t  t he  actual  p roper ty  t a x  expense incu r red  f o r  each 

respect i ve system. 

The u t i l i t y  should record t h e  $39,034 o f  p roper ty  taxes d i r e c t l y  t o  each 

-3- 
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U I F  system. 

reduced 

u t i l i t y  

o ther  F 

e The MSC a l l oca ted  proper ty  taxes o f  $2,069 should be a l l oca ted  t o  each 

U I F  system using the  aud i t  s t a f f ’ s  corrected a l l o c a t i o n  formula discussed i n  

Exception No. 21. 

a The U I F  admin i s t ra t i ve  o f f i c e  r e a l  p roper ty  taxes o f  $7,069 should be 

the a l l o c a t i o n  method used by t h e  

r e a l  p roper ty  taxes t o  a l l  o f  t h e  

’he balance o f  $919 should then be 

by 87 percent o r  $6,150. which i s  

i n  Schedule SE90, t o  a l l o c a t e  t h e  

o r ida  systems t h a t  i t  supports. 

a l l oca ted  t o  each U I F  system using t h e  a u d i t  s t a f f ’ s  corrected a l l o c a t i o n  

formula discussed i n  Exception No. 19.  

Aud i t  Exception No. 25 discusses Taxes Other Than Income adjustments t o  

t h e  t e s t  year.  The u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR f i l i n g  includes p a y r o l l  t a x  expense 

adjustments o f  $47.763 t o  i t s  12-month pe r iod  ended December 31, 2001. The 

u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR f i l i n g  s ta tes  t h a t  t h e  p a y r o l l  t a x  expense adjustments r e f l e c t  

t h e  d i f f e r e n c e  between year-end expense and present yeqr expense f o r  t h e  

u t i l i t y  system operators and U I F  o f f i c e  s t a f f .  The u t i l i t y  provided t h e  a u d i t  

s t a f f  w i t h  d e t a i l e d  schedules t h a t  compared t h e  year-end 2001 p a y r o l l  t a x  

expense t o  the  present year actual  expense and ca l cu la ted  t h e  proposed t e s t  

year adjustments. The schedules i 11 us t ra ted  t h e  adjustments f o r  t h e  u t i  1 i t y  

system operators,  UIF o f f i c e  s t a f f ,  and WSC o f f i c e  s t a f f .  My review o f  t h e  

u t i l i t y ‘ s  schedules revealed two e r r o r s  t h a t  m a t e r i a l l y  miss ta te  what the  

proposed sa la ry  and PB expense adjustments should be. 

a The u t i l i t y  prepared f i v e  separate schedules t o  c a l c u l a t e  t h e  p a y r o l l  

t a x  expense adjustment f o r  each o f  t h e  f i v e  counties i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding. 

A l l  o f  t h e  counties except f o r  Pasco County were a l loca ted  14 percent o f  t he  
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U I F  o f f i c e  and WSC o f f i c e  payro 

equ iva len t  (CE) percentage. 
I 

1 t a x  expense based on a rev ised customer 

e The u t i l i t y  a l loca ted  t h e  U I F  o f f i c e  s t a f f  and WSC o f f i c e  s t a f f  sa la r i es  

and PB expense t o  the  f i v e  count ies ‘ i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding based on t he  

reg iona l  v i c e  p res iden t ’ s  est imate o f  t ime t h a t  he spends on each F lo r i da  

u t i l i t y  system. The current t e s t  year U I F  o f f i c e  s t a f f  and WSC o f f i c e  s t a f f  

p a y r o l l  t a x  expense are a l l oca ted  based on CE percentages. 

I reca l  cu l  ated the  u t i  1 i t y  ’ s proposed adjustment and the  a u d i t  repo r t  

i nd i ca tes  t h e  d e t a i l s  f o r  each system. 

Audi t  Exception No. 26 discusses t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  books and records.  I 

conducted an undocketed compliance l n v e s t i g a t i o n  o f  Wedgefield U t i l i t i e s ,  

I n c .  ’ s  books and records as o f  December 31, 2001. The aud i t  r e p o r t  was issued 

on August 23, 2002. The scope o f  t h e  compliance i n v e s t i g a t i o n  included the  

determinat ion o f  Wedgefield U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c . ’ s  compliance w i t h  Order No. PSC- 

00-1528-PAA-WU , issued August 23, 2000, and Order No. , PSC-00-2388-AS-WU, 

issued December 13, 2000, i n  Docket No. 991437-WU. Order No. PSC-00-1528-PAA- 

WU requ i red  the  u t i l i t y  t o  show cause as t o  why i t  should no t  be f i n e d  $3,000 

f o r  i t s  apparent v i o l a t i o n  o f  Rule 25-30.115, F.A.C.  The u t i l i t y  f i l e d  a 

t ime ly  response and an o f f e r  of  sett lement on September 13, 2000. Order No. 

PSC-00-2388-AS-WU incorporated t h e  above-mentioned sett lement o f f e r  w i t h  other 

s p e c i f i c  requirements and waived t h e  f i n e  imposed i n  t h e  Order t o  Show Cause. 

S p e c i f i c a l l y ,  t he  u t i l i t y  was ordered t o ,  ‘ ‘correct any remaining areas o f  

noncompliance w i t h  t h e  NARUC USOA by January 31, 2001.” Exception No. 1 o f  

t he  compliance i n v e s t i g a t i o n  a u d i t  r e p o r t  determined t h a t  Wedgefield 

U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  was not i n  subs tan t ia l  compliance w i t h  t he  above Orders and 
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deferred i t s  recommendation t o  t h i s  r a t e  case proceeding. The u t i l i t y ’ s  

p o s i t i o n ,  i n  summary, s ta tes  t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  bel ieves t h a t  i t s  books and 

records are i n  subs tan t ia l  compliance w i t h  NARUC USOA and t h a t  t h e  U t i l i t y  i s  

not  aware o f  any s p e c i f i c  correct ions. ‘ required by S t a f f  o r  t h e  PSC. 

The sett lement o f f e r ,  approved i n  Order No. PSC-00-2388-AS-WU,  states 

t h a t :  

The u t i l i t y  has determined t h a t  t he re  are a few accounts 

remaining, espec ia l l y  U t i l i t y  Account Nos. 620 and 675. which the  

U t i l i t y  may no t  be u t i l i z i n g  t o t a  

Uniform System o f  Accounts. 

The U t i l i t y  f u r t h e r  promises t o  

d i f f e rences  by January 31, 2001, - 

FPSC a u d i t  s t a f f .  

l y  i n  accordance w i t h  NARUC 

s u f f i c i e n t l y  c o r r e c t  these 

‘ given some guidance by the  

A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  Order No. PSC-00-2388-AS-WU s ta tes  t h a t :  

The u t i l i t y  s h a l l  co r rec t  any remaining areas o f  non-compliance 

w i t h  t h e  NARUC USOA by January 31, 2001. Fur ther ,  t h e  u t i l i t y  and 

i t s  parent s h a l l  f i l e ,  i n  f u t u r e  r a t e  proceedings be fore  t h i s  

Commission, MFR which begin w i t h  u t i l i t y  book balances, and show 

a l l  adjustments t o  book balances a f t e r  t h e  “per book” column i n  

t h e  MFR. The u t i l i t y  s h a l l  f i l e  a statement which a f f i r m s  t h a t  

t h e  MFR begin w i t h  actual  book balances. 

I be l i eve  t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  book and records are n o t  i n  substant ia l  

compliance w i t h  the  NARUC USOA, and t h e  u t i l i t y  has no t  complied w i t h  Order 

Nos. PSC-00-1528-PAA-WU and PSC-00-1528-PAA-WU, referenced above. My f ind ings  

are as fo l l ows :  
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a Exception No. 1 f o r  t he  compliance i n v e s t i g a t i o n  mentioned abbve 

determined t h a t  t he  u t i l i t y  was not i n  subs tan t i a l  compliance w i t h  t h e  

s t i p u l a t e d  agreement approved i n  Order No. PSC-00-2388-AS-WU. I determined 

t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  response i n d i c a t e d ’ t h a t  no changes have been made t o  t h e  

accounting system i n  order t o  comply w i t h  t h e  Commission Order. 

0 Order No. PSC-00-2388-AS-WU, by reference, incorporates t h e  f i l i n g  I 

requirements f o r  f u t u r e  r a t e  proceedings t o  the  parent and a l l  o f  i t s  F l o r i d a  

operat ions.  The u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR f i l i n g  does not comply w i t h  f i l i n g  requirements 

i n  t h e  Orders mentioned above. Rate Base Schedules A l .  Column (2) Balance per 

Books, which should be t h e  balance i n  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  general ledger,  begins 

w i t h  t h e  balances t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  repor ts  i n  i t s  2001 Annual Report.  These 

balances are  not always t h e  same as t h e  General Ledger balances. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  

as i nd i ca ted  i n  p rev ious ly  discussed Exceptions, t he  u t i l i t y  has n o t  

c o n s i s t e n t l y  recorded adjustments from Commission orders i n  a t i m e l y  manner 

a Order No. PSC-OO-1528-PAA-WU, s p e c i f i c a l  l y  addressed t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  

noncompliance w i t h  NARUC. Accounting I n s t r u c t i o n  2.  A .  and Rule 25-30.450, 

F.A.C., concerning support ing documentation f o r  t h e  u t i l i t y ‘ s  books and 

records, schedules, and data t h a t  i t  f i l e s  i n  r a t e  proceedings. I n  this r a t e  

proceeding, t he  aud i t  s t a f f  requested support ing documentation f o r  t h e  

u t i l i t y ’ s  a l l o c a t i o n  methodologies th ree  d i f f e r e n t  t imes and was given two 

add i t i ona l  schedules t h a t  d i d  not reconc i le  t o  t h e  f i l i n g .  I was t h e  a u d i t  

manager o f  t h e  a f f i l i a t e  t ransac t i on  aud i t  o f  Water Service Corporation (WSC), 

t he  serv ice  operating company f o r  U I F ’ s  paren t ,  f o r  t h e  12-month pe r iod  ended 

December 31, 2001. Disclosure No. 2 o f  t h e  repo r t  determined t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  

lacked s u f f i c i e n t  support ing documentation, t h a t  should have been r e a d i l y  
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a v a i l a b l e ,  t o  adequately determine t h e  reasonableness o f  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  

methodology i n  c a l c u l a t i n g  i t s  customer equivalent ( C E )  percentages which are 

used t o  a l l o c a t e  common r a t e  base and cos t .  

The u t i l i t y  has a f ou r -s tep  poTicy f o r  re t i rement  o f  U t i l i t y  Plant In 

Service ( U P I S ) .  The u t i l i t y  appears t o  be i ncons is ten t  i n  apply ing i t s  p o l i c y .  

I discussed t h i s  more f u l l y  i n  Exception No. 4 where I found $299,017.94 o f  

add i t ions  which d i d  not have corresponding re t i rements .  I t  was a1 so discussed 

i n  t h e  undocketed a f f i l i a t e  a u d i t ,  Exception No. 1, sponsored by Kathy Welch 

where she found inadequate documentation regarding t h e  d i s p o s i t i o n  o f  o l d  

computers t h a t  are e i t h e r  t rans fe r red  or destroyed when new ones are 

purchased. 

The s t ruc tu re  o f  the  u t i  1 i t y ’ s  accounting system continues t o  requi  r e  

s i g n i f i c a n t  amounts o f  t h e  a u d i t  staff’s t ime t o  reconc i l e  i t s  MFR f i l i n g  t o  

i t s  books and records. The combined MFR f i l i n g s  f o r  a l l  U I F  systems r e a d i l y  

reconc i les  t o  U I F ’ s  consol idated general ledger .  However.,UIF’s d i s t r i b u t i o n s  

and a l l oca t i ons  from and between the  f i v e  count ies ,  i t s  o ther  F l o r i d a  

operat ions,  and i t s  parent are o f  concern t o  the a u d i t  s t a f f .  Accounts Nos. 

620 and 720, Mater ia ls and Supplies, and 675 and 775, Miscellaneous Expenses, 

which were s p e c i f i c a l l y  i d e n t i f i e d  i n  t h e  u t i l i t y ’ s  o f f e r  o f  set t lement,  

cont inue t o  requ i re  ex t raord inary  aud i t  s t a f f  a t t e n t i o n  t o  a u d i t  because o f  

t h e  number o f  u t i l i t y  accounts involved and t h e  a l l o c a t i o n  methodologies 

app l ied .  For example, Account No. 620/720 i nc ludes  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  45 u t i l i t y  

accounts : 

401. l u  : 6759200, 6759210, 6759220, 6759230, 6759240, 6759250, 6759260, 

6759290, and 6759295 (These accounts are a l l oca ted  t o  MFR Accounts Nos. 620 
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and 720.) 

401. lx - 6755070, 6755090, 6759503, 6759506-7, and 6759509 (These accounts are 

a1 located t o  MFR Account No. 620. ) 

401. l y  - 7754003, 7754006, 7754007, ‘7754009, 7755070, and 7758490 (These 

accounts are a l l oca ted  t o  MFR Account No 720.) 

401. lz - 6205003, 6751009, 6753008, 6753011, 6754007, 6759017 -19, 6759080, 
# I  

6759081, 6759401-2, 6759405-6, 6759410, 6759412-16, 6759430, 6759490, 6759498, 

and 7202003 (These accounts are a l l oca ted  t o  MFR Accounts Nos. 620 and 720. 

A l l  o f  t he  above account balances are a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  water and 

wastewater systems o f  the f i v e  counties -in t h i s  r a t e  proceeding based on t h e  

CE percentages described i n  Exception No. 21 o f  t h i s  r e p o r t .  However, t h e  

f o l l o w i n g  accounts are f i r s t  reduced by t he  Schedule SE90 a l l o c a t i o n  discussed 

i n  Exception No. 21 o f  t h i s  r e p o r t .  The remaining balance i s  then a l l oca ted  

as prev ious ly  i nd i ca ted .  

401. l u  : 6759210, 6759220 and 6759290 

401. l z  : 6205003. 6759018, 6759416 and 6759430 

The a u d i t  s t a f f  encountered problems conducting an e f f i c i e n t  aud i t  o f  

t he  u t i l i t y ’ s  books and records f o r  t h i s  filing and expended a considerable 

amount of t ime r e c o n c i l i n g  t h e  f i l i n g  t o  the u t i l i t y ’ s  MFR and p r i o r  Orders. 

I recommend t h a t  t h e  Commission readdress t h i s  issue and requ i re  t h e  u t i l i t y  

t o  maintain i t s  books and records per t h e  NARUC USOA and Commission r u l e s .  

Q .  Please review t h e  a u d i t  d isclosures i n  t h e  a u d i t  repo r t .  

A .  Aud i t  Disclosure No. 1 discusses t h e  L inco ln  Heights land condemnation 

proceedings. U t i l i t y  records r e f l e c t  t h a t  i t  has been involved i n  a lawsu i t  

i n v o l v i n g  t h e  condemnation and subsequent a c q u i s i t i o n  o f  a s i g n i f i c a n t  portion 
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o f  i t s  land located a t  t he  L inco ln  Heights, system i n  Seminole County. The 

u t i l i t y  began i n c u r r i n g  lega l  and engineering fees re la ted  t o  t h e  condemnation 

as e a r l y  as February 1998 when i t  created Construction P ro jec t  ( C P )  Account 

No. 614-116-98-14 t o  accrue i t s  consu l t ing ,  engineering, l e g a l ,  and r e l o c a t i o n  

costs for t he  ,condemnation issue. A t  t h a t  t ine, the  u t i l i t y  p ro jec ted  a t o t a l  

cost o f  $148.000. U t i l i t y  records i n d i c a t e  t h a t  i n  2001 t h e  u t i l i t y  closed 

out t h e  above CP by t r a n s f e r r i n g  a balance o f  $101,518 t o  Seminole County 

wastewater Account No. 353, Land. I made s p e c i f i c  adjustments t o  t h i s  

t ransac t i on  i n  Exception No. 5 o f  t h i s  a u d i t .  I r e c l a s s i f i e d  t h e  e n t i r e  

balance o f  $101,518 t o  o ther  u t i l i t y  accounts. S p e c i f i c a l l y ,  I t r a n s f e r r e d  

$14,935 o f  p re l im inary  cost studies t o  Account No. 183. 

U t i l i t y  records i n d i c a t e  t h a t  i n  2000 t h e  u t i l i t y  recorded $2,952 t o  

Account No 301, Organization Cost, and i n  1999 and 2000 t h e  utility recorded 

$9.724 and $9,579 t o  Account No. 380, Treatment and Disposal Equipment, f o r  

c a p i t a l i z e d  executive t ime t h a t  r e l a t e d  t o  the  condqmnation proceeding 

described above. I made s p e c i f i c  adjustments t o  these t ransac t ions  i n  

Exception No. 6 o f  t h i s  a u d i t .  I r e c l a s s i f i e d  the  e n t i r e  balance f o r  a71 

th ree  t ransac t ions  t o  Account No. 186, M i  scel  1 aneous Deferred Debits . 

U t i l i t y  records i n d i c a t e  a balance o f  $79,356 i n  Account No. 1863030, 

Deferred Rate Case Expense, as o f  December 31, 2001, f o r  l e g a l  fees r e l a t e d  

t o  the  condemnation proceeding described above, This balance, along w i t h  a 

balance o f  $5,006 recorded i n  Account No. 186321, Deferred Rate Case Expense, 

was amortized t o  the  f i v e  counties i n  t h i s  r a t e  proceeding as described i n  

Exception No. 20 o f  t h i s  a u d i t .  I a lso  made s p e c i f i c  adjustments t h a t  removed 

$19.345 o f  t e s t  year amor t i za t ion  expense r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  condemnation lega l  
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fees and deferred a net amortized balance o f  $38,687. 

My discussions i n  Exceptions Nos. 5 ,  6 and 20 have r e c l a s s i f i e d  and 

deferred $96,277 o f  cos ts  r e l a t e d  t o  the  condemnation l awsu i t  per t h e  N A R K  

and Commission ru les  c i t e d  i n  Exception No. 5 .  I a l so  discovered the  

f o l l o w i n g  add i t i ona l  informat ion r e l a t e d  t o  t h i s  issue. 

a The u t i l i t y  p roper ly  r e t i r e d  $6,000 o f  land  from Account No. 351 t o  

record t h e  e f f e c t s  o f  i t s  land being acquired by t h e  Department o f  

Transportat ion (DOT) as discussed i n  Exception No. 9 .  However, I discovered 

t h a t  t h e  u t i l i t y  received $154.190.33 on June 22. 1999, from t h e  DOT as 

compensation f o r  t h e  land i t  acquired from t h e  u t i l i t y .  The u t i l i t y  does not 

r e f l e c t  t h i s  event anywhere i n  i t s  MFR f i l i n g .  

The u t i l i t y  closed out CP Account No. 614-116-98-14 f o r  $101,518 a s  o f  

December 31, 2001. However, u t i  1 i t y  representat ives i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t he  1 awsui t 

i s  s t i l l  ongoing. I have not determined where t h e  add i t i ona l  l ega l  fees are 

being recorded. 

% I  

I recommend t h a t  the above costs and a l l  f u t w e  cos ts  r e l a t e d  t o  t h i s  

issue be reviewed f o r  prudency and relevance t o  t h e  f i v e  count ies i n  t h i s  r a t e  

proceeding . 

Aud i t  D i  scl osure No. 2 d i  scusses the  W i  sBar/Bartel  t in te rconnect ion  w i t h  

Orangewood. The u t i l i t y ’ s  records r e f l e c t  t h a t  t h e  Wis6arVBartelt water 

system opera t ion  and maintenance expense Account No. 610, Purchased Water, 

included $7.904.54 o f  expenses f r o m  Holiday Gardens U t i l i t y ,  Inc. f o r  the  12- 

month per iod  ended December 31, 2001. On October 1 0 .  2002. t h e  a u d i t  s t a f f  

conducted a tour o f  selected u t i l i t y  systems w i t h  UIF’s ass is tan t  operations 

manager. He informed us t h a t  t h e  WisBar/Bartel t  system had been 
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interconnected w i th  t h e  u t i l i t y ' s  Orangewood water system as o f  t h i s  summer 

and t h a t  U I F  would no longer need t o  purchase water from t h e  Holiday Gardens 

system i n  t h e  fu tu re .  However, he a lso  s ta ted  t h a t  the interconnect ion w i t h  

Hol iday Gardens w i l l  remain i n  place'  as  an emergency source o f  supply f o r  

e i t h e r  system. The u t i l i t y ' s  cons t ruc t ion  ledgers i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t he  u t i l i t y  

had incu r red  cos ts  o f  $12,908 t o  interconnect t h e  Orangewood and I 

WisBar/Bartel t  systems as of December 31, 2001, i n  Work Order No. 614-116-98- 

14. I have not made 

a recommendation i n  t h i s  mat te r .  

Q .  

A.  Yes, i t  does. 

I have provided t h i s  in fo rmat ion  f o r  use i n  t h i s  case. 

Does t h i s  conclude your testimony? 
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das ca 

Pub1 i c 

t e s t i  f 

BY MS. 

Q 
A 

Q 

610 

MS. GERVASI: Then s t a f f  would c a l l  Kathy L. Welch t o  

the stand. 

KATHY L. WELCH 

led as a witness on behalf o f  the S t a f f  o f  the F lor ida 

Servi ce Commi ss i  on and, having been duly sworn, 

ed as follows: 

DIRECT EXAM I NATI ON 

GERVASI : 

Ms. Welch, have you been sworn in? 

Yes. 

Would you please s tate your name and business address 

f o r  the record. 

A My name i s  Kathy Welch. My business address i s  3625 

Northwest 82nd Avenue, Suite 400, M i  ami , F1 or ida 33166. 

Q And are you the same Kathy Welch who p r e f i l e d  o r  

caused t o  be p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  testimony i n  t h i s  docket 

consist ing of 13 pages? 

A Yes, I did.  

Q Do you have any changes or corrections t o  make t o  

your t e s t  i mony? 

A No, I don' t .  

Q I f  I were t o  ask you the same questions as posed i n  

your testimony, would your answers be the same today? 

A Yes, they would. 

MS. GERVASI: May we please have Ms. Welch's p r e f i l e d  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 
17 

18 

19 
20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

611 

d i r e c t  testimony inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without object ion,  i t  shall be 

so inserted. 

BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q Ms. Welch, d i d  you a l so  p r e f i l e  Exhib i ts  KLW-1 and 

KLW - 2? 

A Yes, I did. 

MS. GERVASI: May we please have those exhibits 

marked for i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  w i th  the next avai lable exh ib i t  

number. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes. Composite Exhib i t  19. 

(Exhib i t  19 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q. 
A .  

Ave 

Q .  

A .  

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF KATHY 1. WELCH 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

My name i s  Kathy L .  Welch and my business address i s  3625 N.W. 82nd 

Su i te  400, M i a m i  , F l o r i d a ,  33166': 

By whom are you present ly  employed and i n  what capaci ty? 

I am employed by t h e  F lo r i da  Pub l ic  Service Commission as a Pub l ic  
I 1  

U t i l i t i e s  Supervisor i n  t h e  D i v i s i o n  o f  Aud i t i ng  and Safety.  

Q .  

A .  I have been employed by the  F l o r i d a  Pub l ic  Service Commission s ince  

June, 1979. 

Q .  B r i e f l y  review your educational and pro fess iona l  background. 

A .  I have a Bachelor o f  Business Admin is t ra t ion  degree w i t h  a major i n  

accounting from F l o r i d a  A t l a n t i c  Un ive rs i t y  and a Masters o f  Adul t  Education 

and Human Resource Development from F lo r ida  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  U n i v e r s i t y .  I have 

a C e r t i f i e d  Publ ic Manager c e r t i f i c a t e  from F lo r ida  Sta te  Un ive rs i t y .  I am 

a lso  a C e r t i f i e d  Publ ic Accountant l icensed i n  t h e  Sta te  o f  F lo r i da  and I am 

a member o f  t he  American and F lo r i da  I n s t i t u t e s  o f  C e r t i f i e d  Pub l ic  

Accountants. 1 was h i r e d  as a Pub l ic  U t i l i t i e s  Analyst I by t h e  F lo r i da  

Publ ic Service Commission i n  June o f  1979. I was promoted t o  Pub l ic  U t i l i t i e s  

Supervisor on June 1, 2001. 

Q. P1 ease describe your cur ren t  responsi b i  1 i t i e s .  

A .  Cu r ren t l y ,  I am a Pub l ic  U t i l i t i e s  Supervisor w i t h  the  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  

o f  admin is te r ing  t h e  D i s t r i c t  O f f i c e  and reviewing work load and a l l o c a t i n g  

resources t o  complete f i e l d  work and i ssue a u d i t  repor ts  when due. I also 

supervise, p lan ,  and conduct u t i  1 i t y  aud i ts  o f  manual and automated accounting 

How long have you been employed by t h e  Commission? 
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systems f o r  h i s t o r i c a l  and forecasted f i n a n c i a l  statements and e x h i b i t s .  

Q .  

r egu la to ry  agency? 

A .  Yes. I t e s t i f i e d  i n  the  fo l l ow ing  cases before t h i s  Commission: Tamiami 

V i  11 age U t i  1 i t y  , I n c .  r a t e  case, Docket No. 910560-WS; Tami ami  Vi 1 lage 

U t i l i t y ,  I n c .  t rans fe r  t o  Nor th Fo r t  Myers, Docket No. 940963-SU; General I 

Development U t i l i t i e s .  I n c .  r a t e  case, Docket No. 911030-WS; Transcal l  

America, I n c .  complaint, Docket No. 951232-T1, Econ U t i l i t i e s  Corporation 

t r a n s f e r  t o  Wedgefield U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c . ,  Docket No. 960235-WS, Gulf U t i l i t y  

Company r a t e  case, Docket No. 460329-WS; the  Fuel and Purchased Power cost  

recovery clause case, Docket No. 010001-EI; and The Woodlands o f  Lake P lac id ,  

L .  P. s t a f f  -assisted r a t e  case, Docket No. 020010-WS. 

Q .  What i s  t he  purpose o f  your test imony today? 

A .  The purpose o f  my testimony i s  t o  sponsor t h e  s t a f f  a u d i t  repo r t  o f  t h e  

a l l oca t i ons  among t h e  a f f i l i a t e d  companies o f  U t i l i t i e s ,  Jnc. and U t i l i t i e s ,  

I n c .  o f  F lo r i da  ( U I F ,  or u t i l i t y )  i n  Marion, Orange, Pasco, P i n e l l a s ,  and 

Seminole Counties, Docket No. 020071-WS. The a u d i t  repor t  i s  f i l e d  w i t h  my 

testimony and i s  i d e n t i f i e d  as KLW-1. 

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A.  For r a t e  base, I examined p l a n t  f o r  Water Service Corp. from December 

31, 1995 forward, by s e l e c t i n g  invo ices  and t r a c i n g  t o  source documents. I 

a lso reca lcu la ted  deprec ia t ion  using Commission ra tes  and reviewed allowance 

f o r  funds used dur ing cons t ruc t i on .  I determined t h e  a l l o c a t i o n  methodology 

Have you presented expert  test imony before t h i s  Commission o r  any o ther  

Was t h i s  aud i t  repo r t  prepared by you o r  under your supervis ion? 

Yes, I was the  pr imary aud i to r  i n  charge o f  t h i s  a u d i t .  

Please review t h e  work you performed i n  t h i s  a u d i t .  
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and reviewed i t  f o r  reasonableness. For cost  o f  c a p i t a l ,  I compiled t h e  

components o f  cos t  o f  c a p i t a l  from consol idated U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc. ledgers and 

tes ted  i n t e r e s t  expense by t r a c i n g  t o  bank statements and notes. For ne t  

operat ing income, I examined selected expense accounts and judgmental ly t raced 

sampled amounts from t h e  ledger t o  i nvo i ces .  I a lso  determined the cu r ren t  

p a y r o l l  and compared i t  t o  the  p r i o r  year.  I reviewed expenses for i tems t h a t  

were nonrecurr ing because o f  a recent reorgani za t  i on. I determi ned t h e  

a1 l o c a t i o n  methodology and reviewed i t  f o r  reasonableness. I reviewed 

expenses t o  determine i f  they were merger-related, nonrecurr ing i tems, 

a c q u i s i t i o n  costs,  o r  i f  they should have been charged t o  a p a r t i c u l a r  

d i v i s i o n  as opposed t o  being a l l oca ted .  I a l s o  scanned t h e  process used t o  

record a l l  costs r e l a t e d  t o  one a c q u i s i t i o n .  1 reca lcu la ted  t h e  a l l o c a t i o n  

methodology and the  amounts charged t o  F l o r i d a  and reconc i led  these t o  t h e  

f i l i n g s .  1 a lso  obtained support ing documentation for t h e  sources o f  t h e  

components used t o  ca l cu la te  t h e  a l l o c a t i o n  fac to rs  and determined t h a t  t h e  

fac to rs  were cons is ten t l y  app l ied  from year t o  year.  

Q .  Please review t h e  a u d i t  exceptions i n  t h e  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

A .  Aud i t  Exceptions d isc lose  subs tan t ia l  non-compliance w i t h  t h e  Nat ional  

Associat ion o f  Regulatory U t i l i t y  Commissioners (NARUC) Uniform System o f  

Accounts (USOA), a Commission r u l e  or order ,  and formal company p o l i c y .  Aud i t  

Exceptions a lso  d isc lose  company exhi b i t s  t h a t  do no t  represent company books 

and records and company f a i l u r e  t o  provide under ly ing  records o r  documentation 

t o  support t h e  general ledger o r  e x h i b i t s .  

Aud i t  Exception No. 1 discusses r a t e  base i nvo ices  t h a t  were missing and 

inventory  t rans fe rs  t h a t  were not  recorded. When I was t e s t i n g  Water Service 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Corporat ion’s (WSC) r a t e  base add i t i ons ,  t he  company cou ld  no t  loca te  some 

invo ices .  I n  add i t i on ,  when I was aud i t i ng  the  support ing documentation f o r  

computer cos ts ,  I found two problems. One was t h a t  t h e  company could no t  

l oca te  some invoices and t h e  second was t h a t  some equipment t rans fe rs  or 

ret i rements were never posted t o  the  ledgers.  When I reviewed t h e  invoices 

t h a t  were found, I noted t h a t  new computers replaced o l d  obes which were 

e i t h e r  t rans fe r red  o r  destroyed. I asked the company t o  prove t h a t  these 
I 1  

ret i rements and t rans fe rs  were booked. I t  provided a t r a n s f e r  en t r y  f o r  

August 31. 2000, and sa id  t h a t  no o ther  support ex i s ted .  The en t r y  d i d  no t  

con ta in  d e t a i l  as t o  which computers were being t r a n s f e r r e d  o r  r e t i r e d .  The 

company f i n a l l y  provided a l i s t  o f  a l l  t r ans fe rs  and re t i rements  by inventory 

number. The t r a n s f e r s  out o f  WSC were t raced t o  ledger e n t r i e s  o f  t he  same 

amount f o r  a1 1 t h e  years. Because several e n t r i e s  had s i m i l a r  d o l l a r  amounts, 

t he  exact e n t r y  could not be determined. The t r a n s f e r  r e p o r t  contained 

$120,817.53 o f  e n t r i e s  t h a t  could no t  be t raced t o  t h e  ledger and the re fo re  

never posted. Most o f  these items were t rans fe r red  t o  o the r  d i v i s i o n s .  

$71,434.83 o f  t h e  items on t h e  t r a n s f e r  repo r t  were f o r  i tems t h a t  were 

destroyed and the re fo re  debi ted t o  accumulated deprec ia t ion .  The company a lso  

provided an inventory  dated August 14, 2002, f o r  computer equipment f o r  WSC. 

The inventory  totals $589,322.24. Rate base shows t h e  mainframe computer a t  

$377,085 and minicomputers a t  $473,693 f o r  a t o t a l  o f  $850,778. As d e t a i l e d  

f u r t h e r  i n  t h e  aud i t  r e p o r t ,  I recommend t h a t  t h e  WSC p l a n t  should be reduced 

by t he  $8,817.35 f o r  invo ices  not loca ted ,  and t h e  associated accumulated 

depreciat ion should a l s o  be reduced. I a lso  recommend t h a t  t h e  WSC p l a n t  

should a l s o  be reduced f o r  computer equipment by the  $56,774 f o r  invo ices  t h a t  
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could no t  be located and t h e  $120,817 o f  t r a n s f e r s  t h a t  were never recorded. 

I f u r t h e r  recommend t h a t  computer equipment and accumulated deprec ia t ion  

should r e f l e c t  a zero balance as o f  December 31, 2001, f o r  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  

reasons. 

1) The company could no t  provide t h e  purchase dates f o r  t h e  computers on 

i t s  inventory l i s t  t h a t  would have enabled the  Commission t o  determine 

t h e  amount o f  accumulated deprec ia t ion  r e l a t i n g  t o  i t s  computer 

equi pment 

I 

2)  When you apply t h e  adjustments recommended above t o  t h e  company's 

cu r ren t  balances f o r  mainframe and minicomputers, i t  creates a negative 

r a t e  base balance s ince  accumulated deprec ia t ion  would exceed t h e  

balance i n  both accounts. 

Therefore, I have se t  both accounts and respect ive accumulated 

deprec ia t ion  t o  zero as displayed i n  E x h i b i t  I o f  t h e  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  Since t h e  

p l a n t  appears t o  be f u l l y  depreciated a f t e r  t h e  adjustments are made, computer 

depreciation expense o f  $63,482 should a lso  be removed from expenses. I a1 so 

recommend t h a t  t he  u t i  1 i t y  improve the  procedures f o r  recording r e t i  rements 

and t r a n s f e r s  and expand i t s  inventory  data base t o  inc lude dates o f  purchase. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 2 discusses i n t e r e s t  expense. The company included 

i n t e r e s t  expense and i n t e r e s t  income i n  t h e  Water Service Corporation costs 

which are a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  u t i l i t y  d i v i s i o n s .  I n t e r e s t  expense i s  recorded 

i n  Account 4192000 and t o t a l s  $392,910. I n t e r e s t  income i s  t h e  i n t e r e s t  on 

the  cash accounts and i s  recorded i n  Account 4272090 and t o t a l s  $9,426. The 

Commission does not i n c l  ude i n t e r e s t  expense i n recoverabl e expenses because 

t h e  cost o f  c a p i t a l  c a l c u l a t i o n  used allows a r e t u r n  s u f f i c i e n t  t o  cover the  

I 
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i n t e r e s t  expenses r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  r a t e  base investment. I n t e r e s t  income i s  

included when cash accounts are included i n  working c a p i t a l  (see Commission 

Order No. PSC-96-1404-FOF-GU. issued November 20, 1996 i n  t h e  C i ty  Gas r a t e  

case, Docket No. 960502-GU and Order No'. PSC-96-1320-FOF-NS issued October 30, 

1996 i n  a Southern States r a t e  case, Docket No. 950495-WS.) The company has 

no t  inc luded any working c a p i t a l  for Water Service Corporation. Therefore, 

I recommend t h a t  t he  i n t e r e s t  expense and income should be removed from t h e  

income statement and no t  a l l oca ted  t o  the  u t i l i t y  d i v i s i o n s .  

, I  

Audi t  Exception No. 3 discusses aud i t  fees .  The yea- end balance o f  

account 6329002 contains audi t  fees pa id  t o  Ar thur  Anderson. The company 

accrued $132,000 i n  t h i s  account. The invo ices  showed t o t a l  a u d i t  fees for 

the year 2000 aud i t  o f  $119,400. The d i f f e r e n c e  i s  $12,600. I asked t h e  

company why the re  was a d i f f e rence  i n  t h e  account and i f  i t s  fees would 

increase f o r  t h e  2001 a u d i t .  The response s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e  $119,400 i s  t h e  

actual  cos t  and no increase i n  costs had been determined. Account 6369090, 

Other Outside Services, also includes an i n v o i c e  from Arthur Anderson for 

$7,550. This i nvo i ce  i s  related t o  the  review o f  year 2000 acqu is i t i ons .  

Acqu is i t i on  costs are included by the  company i n  a p re l im ina ry  survey account 

and then a l l oca ted  t o  c a p i t a l  accounts a t  t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  u t i l i t y  d i v i s i o n .  

I recommend t h a t  s ince t h e  company d i d  no t  p rov ide  any reason for t h e  

d i f f e rence  i n  cos ts  i n  Account 6329002, t h e  account should be reduced by 

$12,600. Fur ther ,  a c q u i s i t i o n  costs should be charged t o  the  i n d i v i d u a l  

d i v i s i o n s .  Therefore, it1 located cos ts  from Account 6369090 should be reduced 

by $7,550. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 4 discusses d i r e c t o r s '  fees.  Account 6369008 i n  
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Water Service Corp. inc ludes d i r e c t o r s ’  fees, o f  $116,500. U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  has 

been purchased by Nuon Acqu is i t i on  Sub, I n c .  Since t h e  takeover, t h e  number 

o f  d i r e c t o r s  has been reduced from s i x  t o  th ree .  Since ra tes  are se t  on a 

going-forward basis,  expenses should r e f l e c t  t h e  cos ts  t h a t  w i l l  be i n  e f f e c t  

when t h e  new rates are implemented. Costs f o r  d i r e c t o r s ’  fees are expected 

t o  be $18,000 (an annual fee o f  $6,000 t imes th ree  d i r e c t o r s ) ,  and $42,000 f o r  

meeting fees ($3,500 per meeting times t h r e e  d i r e c t o r s  times 4 meetings.) 

Th is  t o t a l s  $60.000 on an annual bas i s .  The ac tua l  d i r e c t o r s ’  fees i n  t h e  

year 2001 were $116,500, f o r  a d i f f e rence  o f  $56.500. I recommend t h a t  t h e  

cos t  be reduced on a going-forward basis by $56.500. 

I 

Audi t  Exception No. 5 discusses finder’s fees .  The company provides 

f i n d e r ’ s  fees f o r  in fo rmat ion  about systems t h a t  can be purchased. I n  a p r i o r  

r a t e  case f o r  Mid-County Services, Inc . ,  Docket No. 971065-SU. t h e  Commission 

issued Order No. PSC-98-0524-FOF-SU, on A p r i l  16, 1998, and removed these 

costs from r a t e  base but  allowed them as expenses. The average r a t e  base 

included i n  the  MFRs inc luded $46,529 f o r  t he  de fer red  p o r t i o n  o f  employee 

f i n d e r ’ s  fees.  The company included $21,615 o f  these costs i n  expenses i n  

Account 636006, Employee F inder ’s  Fees and a l l o c a t e d  t h i s  t o  a l l  systems. I 

be l i eve  these cos ts  should be charged t o  t h e  a c q u i s i t i o n  costs o f  t h e  system 

being purchased and should be removed from expenses. Since they can be 

i d e n t i f i e d  w i t h  a p a r t i c u l a r  system, they should n o t  be a l l oca ted  through a 

process t h a t  i s  f o r  common cos ts .  

Audit Exception No. 6 discusses FICA expenses. Account 4081201 showed 

FICA expenses a t  $246,309. These costs were a l l oca ted  t o  the  u t i l i t y  

d i v i s i o n s .  I ca lcu la ted  actual  FICA costs f o r  Water Service Corp. using 7 .65  
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percent o f  sa la r i es  up t o  a maximum sa la ry  l e v e l  o f  $80,440. The t o t a l  was 

$122,911.71 or $123,397.29 less  than t h e  booked amount. The company d i d  not 

a l l o c a t e  any o f  t h i s  account t o  c a p i t a l i z e d  wages, computers, or customer 

serv ice  expense. I recommend t h a t  the’expense account should be reduced by 

$123,397.29. I reviewed t h e  d i v i s i o n  F I C A  costs t o  determine i f  the re  i s  a 

m isa l l oca t i on  t h a t  would r e s u l t  i n  the  d i v i s i o n  costs being understated. This 

was no t  t h e  case. The company response ind i ca ted  t h a t  an e r r o r  had been made 

i n  booking the  costs.  No f u r t h e r  explanat ion was provided. The a u d i t  repo r t  

includes an adjustment t o  p a y r o l l  and benef t s  f o r  the Northbrook o f f i c e ,  

d e t a i l e d  f o r  each d i v i s i o n .  

Aud i t  Exception No. 7 discusses p a y r o l l  and b e n e f i t s .  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  

was taken over by Nuon Acqu is i t i on  Sub, I n c .  i n  2001 and several employees 

l e f t  t h e  company. The company made “change o f  con t ro l  pay-outs” in 2001. The 

net p a y r o l l  a t  December 31, 2001, i s  more than t h e  annual sa la ry  f o r  s t a f f  

employed a t  June 30, 2002, because several employees , l e f t  and were no t  

I 

replaced. The t o t a l  reduc t ion  i s  $220,022.50 f o r  sa la r i es ,  $10,288.70 f o r  

F ICA,  $6.600.68 for pension and $6,671.45 f o r  t h e  Employee Stock Option Plan 

(ESOP) .  The actual  s a l a r i e s  are charged t o  t h r e e  a l l o c a t i o n  poo ls :  computers. 

customer serv ice ,  and regu la r  admin i s t ra t i ve  and general.  The a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  

and general sa la r i es  were adjusted by t h e  company f o r  c a p i t a l i z e d  s a l a r i e s .  

No adjustment was made t o  charge p a y r o l l  taxes, pension or employee b e n e f i t s  

t o  these a l l o c a t i o n  groups. 1 recommend t h a t  t h e  FICA and pension b e n e f i t s  

r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  c a p i t a l i z e d  sa la r i es  should be removed and c a p i t a l i z e d  s ince  

they c rea te  a mismatch o f  p a y r o l l  and r e l a t e d  expenses. The a u d i t  r e p o r t  

d e t a i l s  t h e  s p e c i f i c  adjustment amounts t h a t  should be made. 
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Audi t  Exception No. 8 discusses t r a i n i n g  cos ts  charged t o  Water Service 

Corp. Account 7048055, O f f i c e  Education Tra in ing  includes $7,849.96 f o r  

t u i t i o n  f o r  David Orr who i s  a F lo r i da  employee. This account was a l l oca ted  

using a l l o c a t i o n  factor f i v e .  The a l l oca ted  costs should not i nc lude those 

costs t h a t  r e l a t e  t o  a s p e c i f i c  s t a t e  or d i v i s i o n .  Therefore, I recommend 

t h a t  t h e  $7.849.96 be removed from Water Service Corp. expenses. 
, I  

Audi t  Exception No. 9 discusses Northbrook employees 1 i f e  insurance. 

The l i f e  insurance charged through Water Service Corp. included some insurance 

f o r  o f f i c e r s  who are no longer w i t h  t h e  company. These costs t o t a l  $6,427.21. 

Commission Order PSC-98-0524-FOF-SU, issued A p r i l  16, 1998, removed l i f e  

insurance where the  u t i l i t y  i s  t h e  bene f i c ia ry  and f i d u c i a r y  p o l i c i e s  

p r o t e c t i n g  d i r e c t o r s ,  o f f i c e r s ,  and pension funds. The amounts for these 

p o l i c i e s ,  added t o  t h e  nonrecurr ing costs o f  $6,427, t o t a l  $104,112. I 

recommend t h a t  t h i s  amount be removed from a1 l oca ted  expenses. 

Aud i t  Exception No. 10 discusses cost o f  c a p i t a l .  The company included 

a c r e d i t  f o r  accumulated deferred taxes o f  $339,113 i n  r a t e  base. The 

Commission r o u t i n e l y  includes deferred taxes i n  the  c a p i t a l  s t r u c t u r e  a t  zero 

cost (see Commission Order No. 11487, issued January 5 ,  1983, i n  Docket No. 

820014-WS, r a t e  case f o r  Avatar Utilities, Inc o f  F l o r i d a ,  Barefoot Bay 

D i v i s i o n . )  I n  add i t i on .  t h e  amount the  company included i s  t h e  p o r t i o n  o f  

deferred taxes t h a t  r e l a t e s  t o  Water Service Corp. and i s  no t  t h e  consolidated 

U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  balance. The MFRs i n  t h i s  case included $2,788 f o r  deferred 

taxes i n  a l l  counties except Marion, on Schedule D-1. I b e l i e v e  t h i s  i s  t h e  

average o f  Account 237 for one d i v i s i o n ,  which i s  accrued i n t e r e s t .  The 

company a l s o  has a regu la to ry  asset t h a t  o f f s e t s  deferred taxes .  The average 

-9- 
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balance for t h e  consolidated U t i l i t i e s , ,  Inc. defer red  income t a x  i s  

$16,345,859, net o f  the regu la to ry  asset. The company a l so  has unamortized 

i nvestment t a x  c r e d i t s  averaging $1,318,251. 

A l l  counties used an amount f o r  customer deposi ts t h a t  d i d  no t  agree 

The aud i t  repo r t  d e t a i l s  t he  s p e c i f i c  w i t h  t h e  d i v i s i o n ’ s  general ledger.  

d i f f e rences .  I used the  general ledger balances f o r  t h e  customer deposits f o r  

t he  f i v e  counties i n  Exh ib i t s  VI1 through X o f  t he  a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

I a l s o  reviewed the  notes r e l a t e d  t o  shor t - te rm debt.  I determined t h a t  

t he  amounts i n  MFR Schedule D - 4  f o r  shor t - te rm debt d i d  not  agree t o  t he  MFR 

Schedule D - 1 .  The company cor rec ted  t h i s  i n  t h e  rev ised f i l i n g  bu t  included 

an adjustment t o  i n t e r e s t  t h a t  removed i n t e r e s t  r e l a t e d  t o  acqu is i t i ons .  I 

used t h e  bank statements t o  c a l c u l a t e  an e f f e c t i v e  r a t e  f o r  shor t - te rm debt 

o f  5.18 percent and used t h e  13-month average balances from t h e  general 

ledger.  

I t r aced  long-term debt i n  MFR Schedule D - 5  t o  t h e  notes. I could not 

reconc i l e  i t  t o  the  lead schedules. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  a note paid  o f f  dur ing t h e  

year was l e f t  o f f  o f  MFR Schedule D - 5 .  I reca lcu la ted  MFR Schedule D-5  using 

a l l  notes and t h e  13-month average balances from t h e  general ledger.  The 

e f f e c t i v e  r a t e  i s  8.63 percent.  

The company used d i f f e r e n t  ra tes  o f  r e t u r n  f o r  equ i t y  f o r  each d i v i s i o n .  

The equ i t y  r a t i o  should be t h e  same f o r  a l l  companies so using t h e  formula 

should p rov ide  the  same r a t e  f o r  a l l  companies. The e q u i t y  r a t e  f o r  a l l  

companies was changed t o  10.914 percent based on t h e  Consummating Order PSC- 

02-1252-CO-WS, issued September 11, 2002 and Proposed Agency Ac t ion  Order PSC- 

02-0898-PAA-WS, issued J u l y  5, 2002. 

10 
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My ca lcu la ted  o v e r a l l  weighted cost o f  c a p i t a l  f o r  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  i s  

8 .42  percent.  I ca lcu la ted  t h e  weighted cost ra tes  f o r  t h e  f i v e  U t i l i t i e s ,  

I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a  counties using a p o r t i o n  o f  t h e  consol idated deferred t a x e s .  

These ra tes  are :  Marion - 8.39%; Orange - 8.29%; Pasco - 8.40%; P ine l l as  - 

8.38%; and Seminole - 8 .39%. I a lso  ca lcu la ted  t h e  weighted cost ra tes  for 

t h e  f i v e  U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F lo r i da  counties using the  d i r e c t  deferred taxes, 

by d i v i s i o n .  These ra tes  a r e :  Marion - 4.96%; Orange - 4.96%; Pasco - 5.22%; 

P ine l l as  - 4.93%; and Seminole - 5 .94%. The schedules c a l c u l a t i n g  these ra tes  

are attached as Exh ib i t  KLW-2. 

Q. 

A .  Aud i t  Disclosure No. 1 discusses Allowance f o r  Funds Used During 

Const ruc t ion .  Water Service Corp. c a p i t a l i z e d  i n t e r e s t  f o r  a few p r o j e c t s  

over  t h e  years. These costs are included i n  plant a l l oca ted  t o  t h e  

subs id ia r i es .  There i s  no approved AFUDC r a t e  f o r  Water Service Corp. 

However, t h e r e  are approved ra tes  f o r  Seminole, Orange, Pasco. Marion and 

P ine l l as  Counties. The c a p i t a l i z e d  ra tes  used a t  Water Service Corp. a r e  

higher than t h e  ra tes  approved for t h e  count ies.  The ra tes  range from 8.61 

percent t o  9 .01  percent. However, t h e  d i f f e rence  i s  immaterial and a f t e r  an 

a l l o c a t i o n  t o  each d i v i s i o n ,  t h e  amount would no t  be m a t e r i a l .  I performed 

no add i t i ona l  fo l low-up work. However, i f  t h e  company requested one r a t e  f o r  

t he  e n t i r e  company, t h i s  problem would be e l im ina ted .  

( 1  

Please review the  a u d i t  d isclosures i n  the a u d i t  r e p o r t .  

Aud i t  D i  s c l  osure No. 2 discusses Water Servi  ce Corp. a1 1 oca t i  on f a c t o r s .  

Water Service Corp. a l l oca tes  r a t e  base and expenses us ing  11 d i f f e r e n t  

a l l o c a t i o n  f a c t o r s .  Most o f  these fac to rs  are based on the  customer 

equivalent f a c t o r .  To determine customer equ iva len ts ,  t h e  company records 

- 1 3 -  
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s ing  

year 

e fami 

t h e  a 

equi va l  ents 

y equivalents f o r  each development as o f  t h e  end o f  June o f  t h e  

l oca t i on  i s  t o  take place. It then determines t h e  customer 

by tak ing  t h e  s i n g l e  family equivalents and ad jus t i ng  i t  t o  one 

h a l f  f o r  t h e  fo l l ow ing  reasons. 

1. The d i v i s i o n  has both water and wastewater. The wastewater i s  counted a t  

one h a l f .  

2 .  

a t  one quar te r .  

3 .  

h a l f .  

4. The wastewater company i s  c o l l e c t i o n  on ly .  The customer i s  counted a t  one 

h a l f .  

The company could no t  p rov ide  a formula o r  methodology f o r  determining t h e  

s i n g l e  fam i l y  equivalent number. The company i s  a l so  t h e  contract operator 

f o r  two water p lan ts  and th ree  wastewater p l a n t s .  According t o  a company 

representa t ive ,  no costs were ever a1 located t o  these operat ions.  

* I  

The customer i s  an a v a i l a b i l i t y  customer only .  The customer i s  counted 

The water company i s  d i s t r i b u t i o n  on ly .  The customer i s  counted a t  one 

I be l i eve  t h a t  t h e  lack  o f  a formal ized methodology for determining 

s i n g l e  f a m i l y  equivalents can cause inconsistency between d i v i s i o n s .  

According t o  a company representa t ive ,  t h e  company determines the  estimated 

ga l lons  a t  t h e  t ime o f  purchase and inpu ts  a number f o r  s i n g l e  family 

equivalents based on ga l l ons .  This may not be based on t h e  same number o f  

ga l lons  per s ing le  family as a d i f f e r e n t  person may use t h e  next year o r  year 

a f t e r .  The company d i d  n o t  s t a t e  how t h e  s i n g l e  f a c t o r  equivalent i s  adjusted 

f o r  new customers. I attempted t o  determine ga l l ons  o f  water purchased and 

pumped and ga l lons  o f  wastewater t rea ted  so t h a t  I could determine my own 
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calculation o f  equivalent residential connections (ERCs)  for each company. 

I planned on using these ERCs t o  prepare my own customer equivalent schedule 

and t o  compare i t  t o  the F lo r ida  allocations using customer equivalents. I f  

i t  was significantly different, almosfall 11 allocation factors would have 

t o  be redone. The company could not provide gallons o f  wastewater treated for 

states other t h a n  Florida. I t  claimed t h a t  operating reports were not  I 

available t o  provide the information. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  some small water p l a n t s  

d i d  not have usage reports. The report o f  number of customers t h a t  the 

company provided showed water customers and d i d  not break down wastewater 

number o f  customers by d i v i s i o n .  Therefore, I was unable t o  determine ERCs 

and unable t o  determine i f  the company’s computation is  reasonable. 1 believe 

t h a t  t h e  company should be required t o  provide  t o  the Commission the 

calculation based on ERCs using a method consistent between each division. 

The ERC calculation should be compared t o  the customer equivalent factors 

provided by the company t o  determine i f  the company allocation methodology i s  

reasonable. I f  n o t ,  the company shou ld  revise a l l  11 allocation factors so 

t h a t  the allocations o f  expenses and rate base can be reallocated. The 

allocation methodology also needs t o  allocate costs t o  the divisions t h a t  the 

company i s  acting as a contract operator and billing agent for .  

Q .  

A .  Yes, i t  does. 

Does this  conclude your testimony? 

-13- 
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BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q Have you prepared a summary of your testimony? 

have. The purpose o f  my testimony i s  t o  

ed exh ib i ts  and my testimony i n t o  the record. 

done t o  support my audi t  o f  the a f f i l i a t e  

U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc. and WSC Corp. ( s i c ) .  

MS. GERVASI : Thank you. Well 1 tender the witness 

for cross - exami nat i on. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr . Burgess. 

CROSS EXAM1 NATION 
BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Welch. 

A He1 l o .  

Q Am I correct  t ha t  i n  - - under regulatory philosophy, 

a l locat ions from a f f i l i a t e s  would bear pa r t i cu la r  scrut iny, 

more scrut iny perhaps than expenses incurred from arm's-length 

transactions? 

A That 's t rue.  

Q I s n ' t  there as well  a Publ ic Service Commission r u l e  

t h a t  bas i ca l l y  recognizes tha t  by requ i r ing  cer ta in  speci f ic  

items t o  be f i l e d  by companies wi th  regard t o  al locat ions when 

a company i s  i n  f o r  a r a t e  case? 

A Yes. 

Q You're f a m i l i a r  w i th  tha t  ru le?  You're f a m i l i a r  w i th  

most o f  the i tems tha t  are included i n  tha t?  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A Yes. 

Q And as pa r t  o f  tha t ,  i s  p a r t  o f  t h a t  addi t ional  

ed t o  the purpose - - o r  t h a t  i s  the purpose for 

you undertook? . 

scrutiny that  

the audi t  t h a t  

A Yes. 

Q With regard t o  tha t  audi t ,  I would l i k e  t o  ask you 

some spec i f i c  questions o f  your f indings, and most o f  what I 

have t o  ask i s  from Audit Disclosure Number 2. So i f  I could 

get you t o  r e f e r  - - do you have a copy o f  your audi t? 

A My box i s  over here. 

D i  sc l  osure 2? 

Audit Disclosure 2, yes, ma'am. Q 
A Uh- huh. 

Q Now, am I correct  t h a t  i n  a l l oca t i ng  i t s  expenses the 

company used, depending on the pa r t i cu la r  expense involved or 
expenditure involved, the company used 1 o f  11 d i f f e r e n t  

methods or some combination thereof; i s  t h a t  correct? 

A T h a t ' s  t rue .  

Q And am I correct  t ha t  the vast ma jor i t y  o f  the  

a l locat ions involved the customer equivalent factor;  i s  t h a t  

correct? 

A That 's t rue ,  as pa r t  o f  the a l locat ion.  

Q As pa r t  o f  the a l locat ion.  

Am I correct  as well  t h a t  the customer equivalent 

factor  i s  derived i n  some fashion or another from the single 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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family equivalents; i s  t ha t  correct? 

A That 's t rue .  

Q So the s ing le family equivalents - -  the measure o f  

the s ing le family equivalent i s  the lynchpin o f  a large amount 

D f  the allocated expenditures and expenses; i s  t h a t  correct? 

A True . 
Q Given tha t ,  when you began t h i s  audi t ,  d i d  you expect 

t o  f i n d  some documentation as t o  the ca lcu lat ion o f  the s ing le 

family equivalent? 

A I did. 

Q 

A I did.  

Q 

Did you seek t o  obtain t h a t  from the company? 

Were you able t o  ob ta in  documentation t o  t h a t  e f fec t?  

A I received an e-mail about the s ing le family 

equivalents. That was the only documentation I actual 

received about s ing le fami  1 y equivalents. 

Q 

A 

Q Thank you. 

A It's an e-mail from Steve Lubertozzi, and i t  

Can you t e l l  me the nature o f  t h a t  e-mail? 

If 1 can re fe r  t o  my work papers, I can. 

Y 

has 

s ingle family equivalents, and i t  has an example o f  how i t  was 

computed. 

had on f i l e  about how the single family equivalent was 

computed. 

I t  was supposed t o  be what the b i l l i n g  department 

Q When I look a t  your Audit Disclosure Number 2, i t  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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indicates t h a t  the company could not provide a formula or 

methodology f o r  determining the single family equivalent 

number. Should I understand then tha t  you d i d  not consider the 

e - m a i l  t h a t  you received t o  be s u f f i c i e n t  t o  meet a descr ipt ion 

o f  a formula o r  methodology f o r  determining the equivalent; i s  

that  correct? 

A That 's correct .  

Q And t h a t ' s  why i n  your recommendation you begin w i th  

the recommendation t h a t  they d i d  not have a formalized 

methodology for making t h i s  determination? 

A That 's correct .  

Q Now, as I understand i t , again, and some o f  t h i s  I ' 11 

need you t o  correct  me i f  I ' m  wrong, but as I understand i t  

from your disclosure, the estimates o f  what the s ing le family 

equivalents are are provided a t  the time o f  the purchase 

according t o  your d i  scl osure? 

A That 's what 1 was t o l d .  

Q Now, should tha t  be understood t o  be the time o f  the 

purchase o f  a pa r t i cu la r  system? 

A That was my understanding. 

Q So t h a t  when U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc. would purchase a system, 

as you understood it, they would ask tha t  system o r  the system 

operator what the number o f  s ing le family equivalents are? 

A I'm not sure i f  i t  was the operator or someone a t  the 

y know who was supposed t o  do it. d iv i s ion  l eve l .  I don ' t  real  
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Q So they would ask somebody, though, a t  the new 

:ompany, the newly purchased company what the s ing le family 

2quivalents were, but they d i d  not provide tha t  company, 

ibviously,  a formalized methodology for determining single 

family equivalents; i s  t ha t  correct? 

A I don' t  real ly know what they asked them t o  do. A l l  

E know i s  t ha t  I asked for backup f o r  the s ing le family 

q u i v a l e n t  calculat ions,  and I d i d  not receive i t  because I was 

to ld  they d i d  not have them. 

Q And i s  t ha t  what l ed  you t o  conclude tha t  one o f  the 

iroblems i s  tha t  one person might come up w i th  a s ing le family 

zquivalent t h a t ' s  based on something d i f f e r e n t  from what 

mother person might come up with? 

A That was my conclusion. 

Q So we have a s i t ua t i on  where the u t i l i t y  i s  

purchasing various subsidiar ies,  and i t  i s  seeking a central  

piece o f  information from the subsidiaries f o r  i t s  a l locat ion,  

but i t  does not have a formalized method for measuring t h i s .  

What about addi t ional  customers? What about when once a u n i t  

has been purchased and they have addi t ional  customers brought 

i n t o  the system? Do you know how those were deal t  wi th? 

I asked the same question, but I never got an answer. 
Okay. So we don ' t  know what i t  was based on and no 

A 

Q 
formalized method t o  begin wi th ,  and we don ' t  know how they 

deal t  w i th  new customers. I understand from tha t  then tha t  you 
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as the s t a f f  auditor thought i t  best t o  seek t o  calculate your 
own method using ERCs, and then examine whether the company's 

equivalents were reasonable in l i g h t  o f  t h a t ;  i s  t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A I had planned t o  do t h a t  ca lcu la t ion  before I found 

out t h a t  the company d i d  not have - -  
I see. So t h a t  was going t o  be your comparison a l l  Q 

a1 ong? 

A 

Q 
compan- 

Yes. 

And as I understand i t  from t h i s ,  t ha t  you asked the 

f o r  the information t h a t  you would need t o  calculate 

the ERCs; i s  tha t  correct? 

A Yes, I did.  

Q And as o f  the time o f  t h i s  aud i t  report ,  they d i d  not 

give you information t h a t  you needed t o  calculate the ERCs; i s  

t ha t  correct? 

A That 's correct .  

Q And one o f  the  central pieces o f  information tha t  you 

needed t o  calculate ERCs i s  the gal lons o f  wastewater t reated 

i n  the various states; i s  t ha t  correct? 

A That 's correct .  

Q And from t h i s ,  I understand they could not provide 

tha t?  

A 

Q But not a l l  states? 

A No. 

They provided me w i th  some o f  them. 
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i t  your understanding t h a t  various regul atory 

d require t h i s  k ind o f  informat ion t o  be kept f o r  

purposes o f  environmental impacts and t h a t  s o r t  o f  th ing? 

A F lor ida c e r t a i n l y  does,. but I wouldn't know about 

other agencies or other states. 

Q I s n ' t  i t  correct  as well  t h a t  a company's 

determination o f  customer equivalent f o r  the t e s t  year 

a l l oca t i on  i s  based on a year ending June ZOOl? 

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q And the t e s t  year i n  t h i s  r a t e  case, do you know - -  
can you confirm tha t  i t ' s  based on year-end December Z O O l ?  

A That 's correct .  

Q So even the data t h a t  was co l lected i n  the fashion 

tha t  we've discussed i s  one tha t  d i d  not incorporate addit ional 

customers t h a t  have come on - l i ne  - -  t h a t  would have come 

o n - l i n e  subsequent t o  June 2001; i s  t h a t  correct? 

A That 's correct .  

Q Are you aware o f  a number o f  customers tha t  had been 

added t o  the  system since June Z O O l ?  

A 

Q Okay. Thank you. 

A I don' t  t h ink  I have the number o f  customers. I have 

the new systems tha t  were added, but 1 don ' t  bel ieve I have the 

number o f  customers in here. I don ' t  t h i n k  I do. 

I need t o  look a t  my work papers f o r  t ha t .  

Q I f  i t  was a s ign i f i can t  number, would you th ink  tha t  
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ng tha t  should be considered f o r  a 

the reasonableness o f  the a1 loca t ion  f o r  the 

pa r t i cu la r  year i n  question? 

A I understand the u t i l i t y ' s  concept o f  using an 

average, which i s  what they did.  They assumed t h a t  June was an 

average because the systems coming on- 1 i n e  could have been 

before o r  a f t e r ,  and therefore, the systems t h a t  were incurr ing 

the expense were the ones tha t  probably incurred i t  - - or were 

i n  service as an average as opposed t o  a year-end. So I 

understood t h e i r  concept. I don ' t  have an opinion e i ther  way. 

Q Would i t  be reasonable f o r  me - - should I understand 

t h a t  based on a l l  o f  the reasons t h a t  we've discussed tha t  t ha t  

i s  why your conclusion in your audi t  disclosure i s  t h a t  you 

were unable t o  determine i f  the company's computation o f  

a1 1 ocat i  ons i s reasonabl e? 

A That 's correct .  

MR. BURGESS: Thank you. That 's  a l l  we have. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Mr . Friedman. 

CROSS EXAM I NATION 
BY MR. FRIEDMAN: 

Q Ms. Welch, does the Public Service Commission [lave 

any r u l e  t h a t  sets f o r t h  a spec i f i c  method o f  a l loca t ing  these 

type o f  expenses? 

A Not for water and wastewater. 

Q So you could probably t h i n k  o f  many d i f f e r e n t  ways 
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that would be reasonable t o  a l locate those expenses, couldn ' t  

you? 

A That 's t rue.  

Q Did U I F  provide you with a schedule o f  computer 

Iurchases during the t e s t  year and f o r  the two p r i o r  years? 

A Computer purchases? 

Q 

A Yes. I ' m  not sure t h a t  t h a t  happened - -  t h a t  

happen during the audi t ,  not during t h i s  audi t .  1 rece 
for other audi ts.  

A schedule showing the computer purchases. 

d i d  not 

ved i t  

Q That wasn't provided t o  you a f t e r  the audi t  i n  

connection w i t h  t h i s  case? 

A Not t o  me. 

Q Have you looked a t  t ha t  schedule? 

MR. BURGESS: Excuse me. I ' m  going t o  argue t h a t  i f  

we get i n t o  t h i s ,  t h i s  i s  i r re levan t  i f  i t ' s  something t h a t  has 

t o  do w i t h  some other case en t i re l y .  

anything t o  do w i t h  t h i s  case. She's t e s t i f i e d  and speci f ied 

tha t  i t  was not  i n  association w i th  the audi t  f o r  t h i s  case. 

I don ' t  t h i n k  i t  has 

I have an object ion on COMMISSIONER DEASON : 

re1 evancy. 

MR. FRIEDMAN : We1 1 , 

not.  

i t ' s  not re levant.  

I f  i t ' s  not  i n  t h i s  case, 

I j u s t  want 

e t  me - -  I'll agree i f  i t ' s  

then I agree w i t h  M r .  Burgess, 

t o  see i f  I can jog the 

witness's memory about which case she got i t  because she's 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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working on a l o t  o f  d i f f e r e n t  cases. And i f  I could j u s t  ask 

another question, and i f  she says no, then 1'17 withdraw any 

fu r ther  questions about tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I.' 
MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you 

BY MR. FRIEDMAN: 

f i  

1 give you t h a t  l a t i t ude .  

Q Ms. Welch, do you know Amanda Ross who works a t  the 

company? Do you - - are you f a m i l  i a r  w i t h  her? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you not r e c a l l  her g iv ing  you t h i s  schedule o f  

computer purchases i n  connection w i th  t h i s  case? 

A Not i n  connection w i th  t h i s  case, no. I received i t  

recent ly  when I was i n  Chicago working on a d i f f e r e n t  case. I 
d id  not receive i t  during the time I was doing t h i s  audi t .  

bel ieve it was f i l e d  w i t h  the Commission as a response maybe t o  

our audi t  

I 

Q I n  t h i s  case? 

A Probably, but, I mean, I d i d  not get it. I t  was 

ed w i t h  Tallahassee, and i t  wasn't audited - -  

Q I see. 

A - -  i n  t h i s  case. 

Q I ' m  sorry. So i f  something i s  f i l e d  i n  response t o  

an audi t ,  you never see it? 

I might have seen it, but I don ' t  bel ieve i t  was ever 

sent t o  our o f f i c e  a t  t h a t  time. We got the  l e t t e r  from the 

A 
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zompany t a l k i n g  about the audi t  but not what they f i l e d  i n  

response t o  give addi t ional  information. We d i d  not get tha t ,  

and we d i d  not audi t  i t  a t  t h a t  time. 

Q 

audit, the s t a f f  doesn't ever get t h a t  back t o  you and ask you 

to  address i t  or have an opinion or  anything about it? 

So when a company f i l e s  something i n  response t o  an 

A 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q Well, t h i s  may f i t  i n  t h a t  same category. Let me ask 

you i f  you recall UIF  providing you w i th  a schedule showing the 

four employees who h i red  i n  the t e s t  year by which the company 

used empl oyment agencies? 

I was asked some questions, but I d i d n ' t  get it, no. 
Is t ha t  t yp i ca l  that t h a t ' s  the way i t  happens? 

A The f i nde r ' s  fees, you mean. I f  t h a t  was f i l e d  as a 

response, I don' t  bel ieve i t ' s  i n  my work papers. I mean, I 

have things on the f i n d e r ' s  fees, but i f  i t  was f i l e d  as a 

response, i t ' s  not going t o  be i n  here. 
Same as we jus t  went through? Q 

A Uh- huh. 

Q In your audi t  - - you heard some witnesses t h i s  

morning t e s t i f y i n g  t h a t  they d i d  not bel ieve tha t  the 

nonregul ated business was i ncl uded i n  the a1 1 ocations. Were 

you here for t ha t  testimony? 1 can ' t  remember whether i t  was 

Ms. Dismukes or  Ms. DeRonne. 

A I ' v e  been i n  and out, so I'm sorry, y o u ' l l  have t o  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



636 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
12 

13 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

t e l l  me what you're r e f e r r i n g  to .  

Q You're f a m i l i a r  t h a t  there i s  some nonregulated 

business a c t i v i t i e s  a t  Water Service Corporation? 

A Biotech, i s  t h a t  what you're r e f e r r i n g  to?  

Q Yes, correct .  That 's exact ly  r i g h t .  

A Okay. 

Q I s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  a l locat ions were included f o r  

tha t?  

A There was an a l loca t ion  made t o  tha t ,  yes. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Okay. T h a t ' s  a l l  the questions I 

have. 

MR. BURGESS: Excuse me. M r .  Friedman characterized 

testimony o f  our witness, and I would say he mischaracterized 

it. So, you know, t o  the extent - -  

MR. FRIEDMAN: Then I apologize. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioners, questions? 

Redi rec t  . 
MS. GERVASI: No red i rec t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you, Ms. Welch. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

(Witness excused. 1 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Exhib i ts .  Exhib i t  19. 
I 
I MS. GERVASI: We would move Exh ib i t  19. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, show tha t  

Exh ib i t  19 i s admitted. 

(Exhib i t  19 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

MS. GERVASI : We would .next c a l l  Richard P. Redemann 

t o  the stand. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me k ind o f  pose a question 

a t  t h i s  po in t  t ha t  I posed before we concluded yesterday 

evening. We're s t i l l  on schedule t o  f i n i s h  t h i s  hearing today 

even i f  we take a lunch break; i s  t h a t  correct? 

Mr. Friedman, i s  t ha t  your opinion? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: I ' d  sure l i k e  t o  t r y  to .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So you th ink  we have the luxury 

o f  taking a lunch break? So I guess t h a t ' s  my question. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Steve, you got a l o t  for Frank? I 

mean, I guess tha t  would be - -  yeah, i t ' s  s t i l l  Steve. 

MR. REILLY: Yes, t h i s  Steve has reappeared. A f a i r  

amount f o r  Seidman, a l i t t l e  b i t  more f o r  

don ' t  see a problem w i th  today being conc 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. So 

we don ' t  conclude; i s  t h a t  - - 
MR. FRIEDMAN: I agree w i th  tha 

M r .  Redemann. I 

uded. 

we can blame you i f  

I .  

MR. REILLY: I f  I ' m  the cause o f  i t  - -  l e t  me say I 

w i l l  not take up between now and the end o f  the day. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t h ink  we're going t o  take a 

lunch recess a t  t h i s  time, and we w i l l  reconvene a t  1:15. 
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[ha t ' s  j u s t  a l i t t l e  less than an hour. 

(Lunch recess. 1 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: C a l l  the hearing back t o  order. 

S t a f f ,  you may c a l l  your next witness. 

MS. GERVASI : Thank you. And, Commi ss i  oner , maybe 

ie fore we even do tha t ,  e a r l i e r  dur ing the hearing today 

4r. Burgess mentioned tha t  the pa r t i es  and s t a f f  were a l l  

xmfe r r i ng  as t o  whether we needed t o  make ce r ta in  changes t o  

some o f  the  s t ipu la t ions  and t h a t  has happened, and everybody 

i s  i n  agreement t h a t  three o f  the s t ipu la t ions  ac tua l l y  need t o  

be changed. And I don ' t  know i f  you'd l i k e  t o  take tha t  up now 

3 r  a t  the  end o f  the hearing, whatever i s  your pleasure. We 

have d i s t r i bu ted  copies o f  the changes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, l e t ' s  do t h i s .  L e t ' s  go 

ahead, l e t  you describe i n  b r i e f  terms or, i f  applicable, s t a f f  

describe i n  b r i e f  terms what's being changed and why. And then 

depending on whether there are quest-ions o r  not, we may wish t o  

go ahead and take i t  up now, or we may wish t o  defer i t  u n t i l  

the end o f  the hearing. 

MS. GERVASI: Okay. Because o f  the fac t  t h a t  we have 

dropped S t ipu la t i on  Number 2, there 's  some adjustments tha t  

need t o  be made t o  some o f  the other s t ipu la t ions  and tha t  

includes S t ipu la t i on  Number 1. What has changed w i t h  respect 

t o  S t i pu la t i on  Number 1 i s  adjustments t o  r e f l e c t  p r i o r  

Commi s s i  on- ordered water and wastewater ra te  base adjustments. 
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-hat schedule f o r  the Summertree PPW system for p lan t ,  land, 

md accumul ated depreciation, those three columns, the numbers 

ihould be zero as opposed t o  the numbers t h a t  were shown 

r e v i o u s l y .  That 's on Page 63 o f  the prehearing order. 

And then the t a b l e  - -  the l a s t  tab le  o f  S t ipu la t ion  

iumber 1, the  Pasco-Summertree columns for average accumulated 

lepreci a t 1  on year - end and depreci a t i  on expense shoul d a1 so be 

iero. 
And then St ipu la t ion  Number 4, which appears on 

'age 65 o f  the prehearing order, should be dropped e n t i r e  

iecause there would be a double adjustment i f  we were t o  

that in .  

And then St ipu la t ion  Number 9, which appears on 

Y 

eave 

'age 67, should be revised e n t i r e l y  so t h a t  i t  should read the 

day i t  appears on Page 2 o f  the new handout t o  spell out what 

those adjustments are. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And a l l  par t ies  are i n  

agreement? 

MS. GERVASI: I believe so. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : M r  . Burgess? 

MR. BURGESS: Yes, we are. 
MR. FRIEDMAN: Yes, we are. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Commi ssioners, do you have any 

questions? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: No questions. I f  nobody else has 
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any questions, I can move acceptance. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Second. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Moved and seconded. A1 
favor say "aye. I' 

(Simultaneous a f f i rmat ive  responses.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Show t h a t  those changes 

s t ipu la t ions  are approved. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. 

RICHARD P. REDEMANN 

in 

t o  the 

was ca l l ed  as a witness on behalf o f  the S t a f f  of the F lor ida 

Pub1 i c  Service Commission and, having been duly  sworn, 

t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 
DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q M r .  Redemann, have you been sworn i n ?  

A Yes, I have. 

Q Would you please - - 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Excuse me. Just a moment. 

MS. GERVASI: Sure. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Should - - j us t  a procedural 

question. Should we i d e n t i f y  t h i s  as an e x h i b i t  since i t ' s  

ac tua l l y  no t  pa r t  o f  the prehearing order, o r  how should we do 

that? 

MS. GERVASI: I don ' t  know t h a t  i t ' s  necessary so 

long as i t  comes i n ,  but  t o  make i t  p e r f e c t l y  c lear ,  I suppose 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Me could, as long as i t  gets put i n t o  the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Just i n  an  abundance o f  

caution, l e t ' s  go ahead and do t h a t  so there 's  no question. 

This w i l l  be i d e n t i f i e d  as Exh ib i t  Number 20. 

(Exhib i t  20 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

COMMISSIONER DEASON : And as i ndi cated, a1 1 par t ies  

are i n  agreement, and there 's  no objection, so show tha t  

Exhibi t  Number 20 i s  admitted. 

MS. GERVASI: And maybe the t i t l e  could be, 

"St ipulat ions 1, 4, and 9." 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . 
MS. GERVASI : Thank you. 

(Exhib i t  20 admitted i n t o  the record.) 

BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q Would you please s ta te  your name and business address 

f o r  the record. 

A Richard P. Redemann, F1 or ida Pub1 i c Service 

Commi ss i  on, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Ta l  1 ahassee, F1 o r i  da 

32399. 

Q And d i d  you p r e f i l e  d i r e c t  testimony i n  t h i s  case 

consist ing o f  29 ( s i c )  pages? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Do you have any changes o r  corrections t o  make t o  

your testimony? 

A Yes, I have one correct ion.  
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Q If  I were t o  ask you the same questions as posed i n  

your testimony, would your answers be the  same today? 

Q 
A Yes. On Page 28 o f  my testimony, s t a r t i n g  

Line 21, my answer reads, "No." 

Could you please make i t  now? 

The next sentence a f t e r  the word "no" shou 

"For the Summertree system, there does not appear t o  

i n f  i 1 t r a t  i on/ i n f  1 ow probl em. I' 

Q And remove a l l  o f  the language i n  

subst i tu te  i t  wi th  what you just  read? 

A Yes, t ha t  i s  correct. 

Q Thank you. Do you have any f u r t h  

t o  your testimony? 

A No. 

tha t  

r ch 
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A Yes. 

Q Thank you. 

MS. GERVASI: May we please have M r .  Redemann's 

p r e f i l e d  testimony inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, i t  shal l  be 

so inserted. 

MS. GERVASI : Thank you. 

BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q Mr. Redemann, d i d  you also p r e f i l e  Exhibi ts 

RPR- 1 through RPR- IO? 
Yes, I did.  l A  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q Do you have any changes t o  make t o  any of your 

exhibi ts? 

A No, I do not. 

MS. GERVASI: May we please have those exhib i ts  

marked f o r  i den t i  f i  cation. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Composite Exhib i t  21. 

MS. GERVASI: Thank you. 

(Exhibi t  21 marked f o r  ident- i f icat ion.) 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF RICHARD, P ,  REDEMANN, P .  E .  

Q. Please s ta te  your name and business address. 

A .  

B lvd .  , Tal 1 ahassee, FL 32399 

Q. Please g ive  a b r i e f  desc r ip t i on  o f  your educational background and 

Richard P .  Redemann, F lo r i da  Publ ic Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak 

experi ence. 

A .  I received a B . S .  Degree i n  C i v i l  Engineering from t h e  Un ive rs i t y  o f  

W iscons in -P la t tev i l l e ,  P l a t t e v i l l e ,  W I ,  i n  May, 1984. From June, 1984, t o  

present I have worked f o r  t he  F lo r i da  Pub l ic  Serv ice  Commission. P r i o r  t o  my 

work a t  the Commission I worked 

dur ing  the  summers i n  1980 and 

1981, I worked f o r  an engineer 

1 have been employed by t h e  

fo r  the  W i  sconsi n Department o f  Transportat ion 

1982 through 1983. I n  May through November, 

ng t e s t i n g  l a b  i n  Appleton and Lacrosse, MI. 

F1 o r i  da Pub1 i c Service Commi s s i  on (FPSC o r  

Commission) for 19 years. A copy o f  my resume i s  attached. (EX - RPR-1) 

Q .  

A .  

posi ti on s i  nce 1990. 

What i s  your cu r ren t  p o s i t i o n  a t  the  Commission? 

I am a U t i l i t y  SystemslCommunications Engineer and have worked i n  t h i s  

Q .  Are you a Registered Professional Engineer? 

A .  

i n  1989. 

Q. What are your general r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  a t  t he  F l o r i d a  Public Service 

Commission? 

A .  I review, analyze, and make recommendations regarding the  engineering 

aspects of o r i g i n a l  , grandfather,  t r a n s f e r ,  and amendment c e r t i  f i c a t i  on cases, 

r a t e  cases, and overearnings cases, I have a lso  prepared and presented expert 

Yes, I became a Registered Professional Engineer i n  the  S ta te  o f  F lo r i da  
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test imony concerning q u a l i t y  o f  service and used and useful  issues before the 

Commission. 

Q .  

A .  I t e s t i f i e d  i n  Docket No. 860149-WU, (App l i ca t i on  o f  Sunnyland f o r  a 

r a t e  inc rease) .  I also f i l e d  testimony i n  Docket No. 940761-WS (Request for 

approval o f  special  serv ice  a v a i l a b i l i t y  con t rac t  w i t h  Lake 'Heron i n  Pasco 

County by Mad Hatter U t i l i t y ,  Inc.)  , Docket No. 850206-WS (App l i ca t i on  o f  

Useppa I s l a n d  U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc,. f o r  i n t e r i m  and permanent r a t e  increase i n  Lee 

County), Docket No. 860544-SU ( Inves t i ga t i on  o f  ra tes  o f  Rookery Bay U t i l i t y  

Company i n C o l l  i e r  County f o r  possible overearings) , and Docket No. 861441-WS 

( I n v e s t i g a t i o n  i n t o  the  earnings o f  Mangonia Park U t i l i t y  Company, I nc .  for 

1985). 

Q .  What i s  t he  purpose o f  your testimony i n  Docket No. 020071-WS? 

A .  The purpose o f  my testimony i s  t o  discuss and recommend the  appropriate 

methodology t o  be used f o r  determining the  amount o f  used and useful  p l a n t  and 

review o f  expenses f o r  the U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  o f  F l o r i d a  ( U I F  o r  u t i l i t y )  water 

and wastewater systems. 

Q .  What in fo rmat ion  have you r e l i e d  on i n  prepar ing your testimony? 

A .  I reviewed UIF's minimum f i l i n g  requirements (MFRs) f o r  the water and 

wastewater systems i n  t h i s  case (Docket No. 020071-WS), as we l l  as Commission 

orders i n  which a used and useful determination was made f o r  the U I F  systems 

and o ther  water u t i l i t i e s .  I conducted an inspec t ion  o f  t he  Seminole and 

Orange County systems on October 28-31, 2002, and November 1, 2002. I also 

r e v i  ewed several Ameri can Water Works Associ a t i  on (AWWA) pub1 i c a t i  ons re1 ated 

t o  water d i s t r i b u t i o n  system design and some o f  the  consumptive use permit  

How many cases have you t e s t i f i e d  i n  before the Commission? 

I t  

, 
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(CUP) and water conservation rules for the Water Management Districts (WMDs). 

Q .  Can  you expl a i  n your recommended, methodol ogy for determi n i  ng the amount 

o f  used and useful p l a n t  for small water systems? 

A .  Yes. I prepared EX - RPR-2 t o  summarize my recommended methodology and 

assumptions f o r  determining the amount of used and useful p l a n t  for water 

systems. There i s  no current rule on evaluating used and useful for water I 

systems. A1 though water systems are uniquely desi gned t o  meet the a n t i  ci pated 

demands for a particular development, I believe t h a t  the formulas and 

assumptions shown on EX - RPR-2 reflect a reasonable approach t o  determine the 

amount of used and ,useful p l a n t  for most water systems. The bases o f  the 

recommended formul as and assumpti ons are Commi ssi on practice and other ' 

, I 

general l y  accepted industry standards. 

Q .  

water system? 

A .  

What i s  the bas ic  formula for determining used and useful p l a n t '  for 

The sum o f  the u t i l i t y ' s  current demand on the ,system, reduced by 

excessive unaccounted for water, plus required f i r e  f l o w ,  plus an allowance 

for growth, i s  compared t o  the system capacity t o  determi ne the percentage o f  

p l a n t  t h a t  i s  used and useful. 

Q .  What are some o f  the basic assumptions inherent i n  your recommendation? 

A .  The used and useful formula I am recommending i s  for systems w i t h  

potential growth i n  the service terr i tory.  I assume t h a t  the wells for a 

given service territory are no t  oversized. I f  the wells or other system 

components are oversized, then prudence and economies o f  scale should be 

considered. However, i f  the u t i l i t y ' s  service terri tory i s  bu-i t out and 

there i s  no apparent potential f o r  expansion i n  the surrounding area, the 

-4- 
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system should be considered 100% used and u s e f u l .  

Q .  Has the  Commission previously found u t i l i t y  water systems t o  be 100% 

used and useful  i f  the u t i l i t y ’ s  serv ice  t e r r i t o r y  i s  b u i l t  ou t  and there  i s  

no apparent po ten t i a l  f o r  expansion i n  the surrounding area? 

A .  Yes. I n  Order No. PSC-98-0130-FOF-WS, issued January 26, 1998, i n  

Docket No. 970633-WS; i n  Order No. PSC-99-0243-FOF-WU, issued February 9 ,  

1999, i n  Docket No. 980726-WU; i n  Order No. PSC-O0-0807-PAA-WU, issued A p r i l  

25,  2000, i n  Docket No. 991290-WU: and i n  Order No. PSC-96-132O-FOF-WS, 

issued: October 30, 1996, i n  Docket No. 950495-WS. 

Q .  

A .  Yes. A l l  o f  the U I F  water serv ice  t e r r i t o r i e s  i n  Seminole, P i n e l l a s ,  

and Orange Counties and a l l  o f  the  water systems i n  Pasco County except 

I 1  

Are some o f  the  U I F  water service t e r r i t o r i e s  b u i l t  out? 

Summertree appear t o  be b u i l t  ou t .  Many o f  these subdiv is ions are 20 - 50 

years o l d  and no s i g n i f i c a n t  growth has occurred i n  these systems i n  years.  

Q .  Should the U I F  water systems i n  Seminole, P i  ne7 1 as ,  and Orange Counties 

and a l l  o f  the water systems i n  Pasco County except Summertree be considered 

100% used and useful  because the  serv ice  t e r r i t o r i e s  are b u i l t  out? 

A .  Yes. I t  does no t  appear t h a t  the  w e l l s  were oversized and there i s  no 

they should be apparent po ten t i  a1 f o r  expansion 

considered 100% used and u s e f u l .  

Q.  Has t h e  Commission previous 

systems? 

i n  those areas. Therefore 

y determined used and usefu f o r  those water 

A .  I n  the  l a s t  r a t e  case f o r  the  Seminole and Orange County systems 

and the  Orangewood system i n  Pasco County, Docket No. 940917-WS, a l l  o f  t h e  

systems were found t o  be 100% used and useful  except f o r  t he  Crescent Heights 

Yes. 
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water system t h a t  has now been taken o f f - l i n e  (Order No. PSC-95-0574-FOF-WS, 

issued May 9 ,  1995). The l a s t  r a t e  case f o r  the Lake Tarpon system i n  

Pine1 l a s  County was Docket No. 930826-WS. By Order No. PSC-94-1104-FOF-WS', 

issued September 7 ,  1994, i n  t h a t  docket, a p a r t i a l  s t i p u l a t i o n  o f  Order No. 

PSC-94-0739-FOF-WS, issued June 16, 1994, was approved f i n d i n g  the  Lake Tarpon 

water system 100% used and u s e f u l .  I do not be l i eve  t h a t  a r a t e  case order 

e x i s t s  for  the  Buena V i s t a  water system i n  Pasco County. However, t rans fe ' r  

Order No. PSC-O1-1655-PAA-WS, issued August 13, 2001, i n  Docket No. 000793-WS 

I 

i nd i ca tes  t h a t  the system was v i r t u a l l y  b u i l t  ou t  when i t  came under 

Commission j u r i s d i c t i o n  i n  J u l y ,  1972. 

Q .  

A. 

system i n  Marion County are not  b u i l t  o u t .  

Q .  

we1 l ?  

A .  For systems w i t h  on l y  one well, the  system should be considered 100% 

used and useful  unless i t  appears t h a t  t he  we l l  is  oversized. As w i t h  any 

used and useful  c a l c u l a t i o n ,  prudence and economies o f  scale are always 

cons? dered 

Q .  

used and useful  i n  other cases? 

A .  Yes. This method has been used by t h e  Commission i n  several dockets 

i nc lud ing  Docket No. 99129O-WU, by Order No. PSC-O0-0807-PAA-WU, issued A p r i l  

25, 2000 and i n  Docket No. 950495-WS. by Order No. PSC-96-132O-FOF-WS, issued 

October 30,  1996. 

Which o f  the  U I F  water systems are not  b u i l t  out? 

The Summertree water system i n  Pasco County and the Golden Hills water 
I 

How should used and usefu l  be ca lcu la ted  f o r  water systems w i t h  on ly  one 

I 

Has the  Commission found water u t i l i t i e s  w i t h  only one we l l  t o  be 100% 
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Q .  

t h a t  have more than one we17 and are no t  b u i l t  out? 

A .  For systems t h a t  have more than one we l l  and are n o t  b u i l t  o u t ,  

Commission p r a c t i c e  has been t o  remove‘the 1 argest we1 1 and base the capaci ty 

on the  remaining w e l l ( s ) .  This i s  known as the  system’s firm r e l i a b l e  

capac i t y .  The assumption i s  t h a t  the l a r g e s t  we l l  shou ld ’be  removed t o  

recognize t h a t  the  u t i l i t y  must be able t o  meet i t s  demand when one o f  the  

we l l s  is  ou t  o f  serv ice .  This i s  cons is ten t  w i t h  the  “Recommended Standards 

f o r  Water Works” 1997 Ed i t i on ,  pub1 ished by Heath Education Serv ices,  which 

i s  commonly r e f e r r e d  t o  as the Ten States Standards. 

Q .  Has t h e  Commission approved used and useful  ca l cu la t i ons  f o r  water 

systems based on firm r e l i a b l e  capacity? 

A .  

0656-PAA-WU, issued May 14, 2002, i n  Docket No. 992015-WU; i n  Order No. PSC- , 

96-132O-FOF-WS, issued October 30, 1996, i n  Docket No. 950495-WS; i n  Order 

No. PSC-93-0423-FOF-WS, issued March 22, 1993, i n  Docket No. 920199-WS; and 

i n  Order No. PSC-O2-1449-PAA-WS, issued October 21, 2002, i n  Docket No. 

How should f i  rm re1 i able capacity be determined f o r  those water systems 

I I  

Yes. This method has been used by the  Commission i n  Order N O .  PSC-02- 

011451-WS. 

Q .  

peak demand? 

A .  For 

example, most water u t i l i t i e s  experience a peak demand i n  t h e  morning when 

customers are f i r s t  waking up and again i n  t h e  l a t e  afternoon when customers 

are coming home from work and cooking the  evening meal. I f  storage capaci ty 

i s  avai 1 able,  the  u t i l i t y  can meet the peak demand periods by r e l y i n g  on water 

How does water storage capacity a f f e c t  t he  u t i l i t y ’ s  a b i l i t y  t o  meet 

The u t i l i t y  must be able t o  meet t h e  peak demands on the system. 
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stored i n  elevated or ground storage tanks, t h a t  are f i l led during o f f  peak 

hours. I f  the system does not have storage, then the u t i l i t y  must meet the 

peak demand periods from i t s  well capacity. However, most water u t i l i t i e s  do 

not  record water usage on an hourly basis;  they m a i n t a i n  records o f  daily 

water flows. 

Q .  

systems t h a t  have storage capacity? 

A .  For systems w i t h  ground or elevated storage, the firm reliable capacity 

should be based on the capacity o f  t h e  wel l ( s ) ,  w i t h  the largest removed from 

service, and w i t h  the remaining well(s) operating 12 hours per day.  The 

assumption is  t h a t  the wells should have some down time t o  allow the aquifer 

t o  recharge. I t  i s  environmentally responsible and prudent t o  rest  a well for 

12-hours per day so t h a t  the ground water can recharge. Excessive pumping has 

caused wells t o  draw a i r ,  sand and gravel i n t o  the water system, and has 

caused saltwater intrusion, l a n d  subsidence and wells tq collapse. The use 

How should the u t i l i t y ' s  firm reliable capacity be determined for water 

I 

o f  12 hours per day o f  pumping also reflects the general usage pattern o f  

customers. In. a d d i t i o n ,  usable storage shou d be included i n  the system 

capac'i t y  . A1 1 elevated storage capaci t y  i s  typical l y  usable, however, a 

portion of t h e  ground storage capacity i s  not usable because all of the water 

(approximately 10%)  cannot physically be pumped i n t o  the system. 

Q .  

capacity? 

A .  Yes. This method has been used by the Commission i n  numerous rate 

cases, i ncl udi ng Order No. PSC-O2-1449-PAA-WS, issued October 21, 2002, i n  

Docket No. 011451-WS; Order No. PSC-02-0656-PAA-WU, issued May 14. 2002, i n  

Has the Commission previously used a 12 hour day t o  determine well 
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Docket No. 992015-WU: Order No. PSC-01-1574-PAA-WS. issued J u l y  30, 2001, i n  

Docket No. 000584-WS; Order No. PSC-OO-1774-PAA-WU, issued September 27, 2000, 

i n  Docket No. 991627-MU; Order No. PSC-O1-2385-PAA-WU, issued December 10, 

2001 i n  Docket No. 010403-WU: and Order’ No. PSC-96-1320-FOF-WS, issued October 

30, 1996, i n  Docket No. 950495-WS. 

Q .  

t h a t  have storage capacity? 

A .  For systems w i t h  storage, the s i n g l e  maximum day f l ow  dur ing the t e s t  

year as r e f l e c t e d  in the u t i l i t y ’ s  DEP monthly operat ing repo r t s  should be 

used unless i t  appears t h a t  some’ extraordinary event occurred dur ing  the  

per iod,  such as a main break o r  a f i r e .  I f  such an anomaly i s  bel ieved t o  have 

occurred dur ing  the  t e s t  per iod ,  t he  average o f  t he  f i v e  highest days w i t h i n  

a 30 day pe r iod  dur ing  the  t e s t  year should be used. 

Q.  

systems t h a t  have l i t t l e  o r  no storage capaci ty? 

A .  For systems w i t h  l i t t l e  or no storage, the  firm r e l i a b l e  capaci ty should 

be based on t h e  ga l lons  per minute capaci ty o f  the  we1 1 ( s )  , w i t h  the 1 argest 

wel l  removed from serv ice .  Consistent w i t h  my previous testimony regarding 

firm r e l i a b l e  capac i ty ,  removing the  l a r g e s t  we l l  i s  cons is ten t  w i t h  the  

“Recommended Standards f o r  Water Works” o r  10  s ta tes  standards. 

Q .  

t h a t  have l i t t l e  o r  no storage capaci ty? 

A .  For systems w i t h  l i t t l e  o r  no storage, the  demand should be based on a 

peak hour i ns tead  o f  a peak day. Since u t i l i t i e s  do no t  have hour ly f low 

data, the peak hour demand should be estimated based on the  maximum day f low 

How should the u t i l i t y ’ s  cur ren t  demand be determined fok water systems 
s t  

How should the u t i l i t y ’ s  firm r e l i a b l e  capaci ty be determined for water , 

How should the  u t i l i t y ’ s  cu r ren t  demand be determined f o r  water systems 
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d i v ided  by the number o f  minutes i n  a day (,1440) to get an average f low r a t e  

per minute f o r  the maximum day and then m u l t i p l i e d  times 2 .  The assumption 

i s  t h a t  the  average gal lons per minute on the peak day does not r e f l e c t  the 

peak hour ly  demand and the re fo re ,  should be m u l t i p l i e d  by 2 t o  recognize t h a t  

the  u t i l i t y  must be able t o  meet the  peak hour demand. 

Q .  

peak hour f lows f o r  water systems? 

A .  The peaking fac to rs  are based on the American Kater Works Associat ion 

(AWWA) Manual o f  Water Supply Pract ices,  D i  s t r i  b u t i  on Network Analysis for 

Water U t i l i t i e s ,  M32. According t o  t h e  manual, r a t i o  o f  peak hour demand t o  

maximum day demand has been observed t o  vary from 1.3-2.O:l.O. (EX  _. RPR-3) 

Q .  

hour for water systems w i thout  storage capaci ty i n  other cases? 

A .  YeS. Th is  method has been used by the Commission i n  numerous ra te  

What is the basis f o r  m u l t i p l y i n g  the  maximum day f lows by 2 t o  estimate I 

I 

Has the Commission approved used and useful  ca l cu la t i ons  using the  peak 

cases. By Order No. PSC-96-132O-FOF-WS, issued on October, 30, 1996, i n  Docket 

No. 950495-WS, the Commi s s i  on approved used and useful ca lcu l  a t i  ons based on 

the  use o f  estimated peak hour f lows f o r  systems t h a t  d i d  n o t  have storage 

capaci ty.  A peaking f a c t o r  o f  2 was appl i e d  t o  the  maximum day demand t o  

estimate the  peak hour demand. Although t h a t  case was appealed t o  the  F i r s t  

D i s t r i c t  Court of Appeal on c e r t a i n  issues, t he  p a r t i e s  d i d  n o t  appeal the  use 

o f  a peak hour c a l c u l a t i o n  for systems wi thout  storage. Southern States 

U t i l i t i e s ,  I n c .  v .  FPSC, 714 So. Znd 1046 (lst DCA 1998). 

Q .  How should the u t i l i t y ’ s  cur ren t  demand be determined f o r  water systems 

t h a t  do no t  have adequate Department o f  Environmental Pro tec t ion  (DEP) monthly 

operating repor ts  (MORS) w i t h  a record o f  d a i l y  master metering readings? 
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A .  For systems t h a t  do no t  have adequate DEP MORS w i t h  a record o f  d a i l y  

master meter ing readings, the cur ren t  demand should be estimated based on a 

peak hour. The peak hour design c r i t e r i a  i s  1.1 ga l lons  per minute per 

equi va len t  r e s i  dent i  a1 connection (ERC) . The assumpti on i s t h a t  the system 

should be designed t o  provide a t  l e a s t  1.1 ga l lons  per minute o f  water f o r  

each ERC i n  a peak hour. This i s  consistent w i t h  the assumpti'ons o f  AWWA M32 

manual regarding average t o  peak hour f lows. 

Q .  Has the  Commi ss i  on approved used and useful  caf cu l  a t ions  usi  ng estimated 

peak hour demand o f  1.1 ga l lons  per minute per r e s i d e n t i a l  connection for 

other water systems t h a t  do no t  have a record o f  d a i l y  f lows? 

A .  Yes. This method has been used by the Commission i n  dockets such as 

Docket No. 020406-WU, by Order No. PSC-O3-O0O8-PAA-WUI i ssued January 2 ,  2003. 

Q .  Do you agree w i t h  the  conclusions i n  the  testimony o f  Mr. Frank Seidman 

on used and useful  for t he  water systems? I 

A. Yes. I genera l l y  agree w i t h  h i s  conclusions on used and useful  f o r  t he  

water systems. 

Q .  Do you agree w i t h  Mr. Frank Seidman's use o f  instantaneous f lows t o  

determi ne customer demand f o r  the  water systems? 

A .  No. M r .  Seidman used instantaneous f lows t o  represent the  customer 

demand f o r  a l l  o f  the  U I F  water systems, regardless o f  whether actual usage 

data was ava i l ab le .  Instantaneous f low i s  a design c r i t e r i a  tha t  i s  used t o  

estimate t h e  water capaci ty needed f o r  a development based on the  an t i c ipa ted  

number o f  customers. The instantaneous f l ow  requi rements per customer are 

assumed t o  be high f o r  a small customer base and taper o f f  f o r  a l a r g e r  

customer base. There i s 1 i m i  ted  i nformati on avai 1 ab1 e on i nstantaneous f l  ow 

, I  
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6 5 4  

c r i t e r i a .  Typical references for t h e  design o f  water systems inc lude the  

maximum day and peak hour. I be l ieve  t h a t  i f  water f low data i s  ava i l ab le ,  

used and useful  should be based on actual f lows using the formulas and 

assumptions I have prev ious ly  descri’bed. I f  actual f low data i s  no t  

ava i l ab le ,  I bel ieve t h a t  peak hour demand o f  1.1 gal lons per minute per 

r e s i d e n t i a l  connection should be used t o  determine used and useful  p l a n t  f o r  

small water systems w i t h  1 i t t l e  or no storage. 

Q .  Has the  Commission commented on the use o f  instantaneous demand i n  

determining used and useful  recent ly?  

A .  Yes. In  Order No. PSC-03-0647-PAA-WS, issued May 28, 2003, i n  Docket 

No. 020407-WS the Commission found t h a t  “ . . . w i thout  actual measurements f o r  

the  peak hour o r  minute demand, some type o f  es t imat ion  i s  appropr iate i n  

order t o  recognize the  u t i  1 i ty  ’ s  demand requi rements based on the  number o f  

customers dur ing  the t e s t  yea r .  While we f i n d  tha t  the water system i s  100% 

used and useful  , we disagree w i t h  the u t i  1 i t y  ’ s  method t o  ,determi ne the water 

I 

customer demand f a c t o r .  The u t - i l i  t y ’ s  instantaneous demand estimate was based 

on a 1965 pub l i ca t i on  by Joseph S .  Ameen, e n t i t l e d  Community Water Systems 

Source 5ook.” The order a lso  s ta tes ,  “We note t h a t  instantaneous demand t o  

determine the  amount o f  customer demand on a system wi thout  water storage i s  

n o t  commonly used. While maximum day and peak hour demand ca l cu la t i ons  are 

common i n  engineering design manuals f o r  b u i l d i n g  water systems, the  

p u b l i c a t i o n  referenced by the  u t i l i t y  i s  38 years o l d ,  and i s  n o t  commonly 

used today. We be l ieve  t h a t  t h i s  document does not necessar i l y  r e f l e c t  

cu r ren t  water usage pa t te rns  by the u t i l i t y ’ s  customers o r  t he  t rend  toward 

water conservati  on. ” 
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Q .  Have you compared Mr. Seidman’s methodology w i t h  the  formulas and 

assumptions you are recommending t o  determine used and useful  p l a n t  for  the 

water systems i n  t h i s  case? 

A .  I prepared EX - RPR-4. This t a b l e  shows the  number and s i z e  o f  

we l ls  f o r  t he  small UIF water systems (excluding the  Crescent Heights and 

Davis Shores systems i n  Orange County and Wis-Bar i n  Pasco County, where a l l  

water i s  purchased). The t a b l e  provides a comparison o f  t he  maximum day 

f lows, est imated peak hour demand based on a peaking fac to r  o f  2, design peak 

hour demand based on the number o f  connections, and Mr. Seidman’s proposed 

instantaneous demand cri t e r i  a .  

Q .  

and instantaneous demand c r i  t e r i  a? 

A .  I n  each instance, the  instantaneous demand c r i t e r i a  i s  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  

higher than the  estimated peak hour demand based on actual customer usage. 

Further,  i n most i nstances the instantaneous demand c r i  teri a i s s i  gni f i  can t l y  

higher than the  t o t a l  ava i lab le  we l l  capac i ty .  I f  the instantaneous demand I 

ac tua l l y  occurred, there  would be pressure problems i n  many o f  t h e  systems. 

Q. 

A.  No. I am n o t  aware o f  any pressure problems. 

Q .  

the capaci ty o f  t he  water systems? 

A .  No. 

Q. What do you conclude? 

A .  

actual demands o f  the customers. 

Yes. 

8 1  

How do the estimated peak hour f lows compare w i t h  the  design peak hour 

Are you aware o f  any pressure problems i n  the  water systems? 

Has the u t i l i t y  proposed adding any p ro  forma water p l a n t  t o  increase 

The instantaneous demand c r i t e r i a  does no t  appear t o  correlate w i t h  the 
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Q .  Based on your proposed assumptions and formul as, what i s  t he  appropriate 

used and useful  percentage f o r  the Summertree water system i n  Pasco County and 

t he  Golden H i  17s water system i n  Marion County? 

A .  The Summertree water system has Tour we1 1s and no storage capac i ty .  I f  

the  l a r g e s t  we l l  i s  removed, the  firm r e l i a b l e  capaci ty i s  720 gpm. The sum 

re1 

the 

re1 

o f  t he  peak hour demand of 460 gpm p lus  the required f i r e  f l ow  o f  1 , 0 0 0  gpm 

equals 1,460 gpm. which exceeds the f i  rm re1 i able capaci ty o f  720 gpm. The 

approximate 2% growth and 6 .2% excessi ve unaccounted f o r  water would have 

l i t t l e  e f f e c t  on the c a l c u l a t i o n .  Because the demand on t he  water system i s  

g rea ter  than the firm r e l i a b l e  capac i ty ,  the  Summertree water system should 

be considered 100% used and u s e f u l .  The Golden H i l l s  water system has two 

we l ls  and no storage capac i ty .  I f  t he  l a r g e s t  we l l  i s  removed, the  firm 

able  capaci ty is 330 gpm. The sum o f  the  peak hour demand o f  535 gpm and 

required f i r e  f low o f  500 gpm equals 1,035 gpm, which exceeds the  firm 

able capaci ty o f  535 gpm. The approximate 3% growth ,and 12.2% excessive 

unaccounted f o r  water would have l i t t l e  e f f e c t  on the  c a l c u l a t i o n .  Because 

the  demand on the water system i s  g rea ter  than the  f i r m  r e l i a b l e  capac i ty ,  the  

I 

Golden H i l l s  water system should be considered 100% used and u s e f u l .  

Q. Has the  Commission ever made a used and useful  determinat ion 

Summertree and Golden H i  11 s water systems? 

A .  Yes. I n  the l a s t  r a t e  case f o r  t he  Summertree water system 

County (p rev ious ly  known as Paradise Po in t  West), Docket No. 910020 

f o r  the  

n Pasco 

WS, the 

water system was found t o  be 100% used and useful  i n  Order No. 25821, issued 

February 27, 1992. The l a s t  r a t e  case f o r  t he  Golden H i l l s  system i n  Marion 

County was Docket No. 930826-WS. By Order No. PSC-94-1104-FOF-WS, issued 
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September 7 ,  1994, i n  t h a t  docket, a p a r t i a l  s t i p u l a t i o n  o f  Order No. PSC-94- 

0739 - FOF- WS 

system 100% 

Q .  What 

A .  The d 

issued June 16, 1994, was approved f i n d i n g  the  Golden H i l l s  

used and use fu l .  

s unaccounted f o r  water? . 

f ference between the amount o f  water produced (or purchased) and 

the amount s o l d  t o  customers o r  documented as being used for’ f i r e  f i g h t i n g ,  

t e s t i n g ,  o r  f l ush ing  or r e s u l t i n g  from documented l i n e  breaks i s  r e f e r r e d  t o  
I I  

as unaccounted f o r  water. Unaccounted f o r  water i s  t y p i c a l l y  the  r e s u l t  of 

unmetered usage, f a u l t y  meters, and leaks i n  t he  water system. 

Q .  Why i s n ’ t  the water used f o r  f i r e  f i g h t i n g ,  t e s t i n g ,  f l u s h i n g  or the 

amount o f  water l o s t  through l i n e  breaks considered t o  be unaccounted f o r  

water? 

A.  Some water i s  used by the  u t i l i t y  t o  f l u s h  i t s  d i s t r i b u t i o n  system, 

serv ice  l i n e s ,  mains, hydrants, and tanks t o  p roper ly  ma in ta in  the system. , 

Water l oss  can also occur when l i n e s  break dur ing  cons t ruc t ion .  The u t i l i t y  

should main ta in  a record o f  the amount o f  water used t o  ma in ta in  the  system 

or lost through l i n e  breaks. The f i r e  department should measure o r  est imate 

the amount o f  water used for f i r e f i g h t i n g  or t e s t i n g  and r e p o r t  the  usage t o  

the u t i l i t y .  I f  water used f o r  maintaining the  system o r  l o s t  through l i n e  

breaks i s  p roper ly  documented, then i t  should no t  be considered unaccounted 

for usage. 

Q. Why i s  unaccounted f o r  water a concern? 

A .  Unaccounted f o r  water i s  a concern f o r  two reasons. One, water i s  a 

l i m i t e d  na tu ra l  resource t h a t  must be conserved t o  assure adequate supply and 

water u t i l i t i e s  should be t a k i n g  reasonable steps t o  avoid losses through l i n e  
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leaks and other unaccounted f o r  losses: Two, the cos t  o f  excessive 

unaccounted f o r  water should no t  be borne by r a t e  payers. 

Q .  

Counties systems have unaccounted f o r ’  ha ter?  

A .  Yes. According t o  the  u t i  1 i t y  ’ s  Financi a1 , Rate and Engineer1 ng Minimum 

Fi’l i ng Requi rements, Schedule F -1 ,  the  fo l l ow ing  systems have unaccounted f o r  

water: 

I 

Do some of the u t i  1 i t y ’ s  Seminole, Orange, Marion, Pasco and P i  ne1 1 as 

I 

Semi no1 e County 

Weathersfield 10.2% 

L i  ttl e Weki va  13.0% 

Phi 11 i p s  16.8% 

Crystal  Lake 3.2% 

Ravenna P a r k  10.8% 

Bear Lake 5.6% 

Jansen 1.5% 

Oranqe County 

Crescent Heights 10.3% 

Davis Shores 2.1% 

Marion County 

Golden H i  1 Is/Crownwood 22.2% 

Pasco Countv 

Buena V i s t a  10.2% 

Orangewood 17.5% 

Summert ree 16.2% 

Wis-Bar 2.4% 
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6 5 9  

P i  ne1 1 as County 

Lake Tarpon 20.6% 

Q .  Should an adjustment be made for unaccounted f o r  water? 

A .  It i s  Commission p r a c t i c e  t o  al low 10% o f  the t o t a l  water produced o r  

purchased as acceptabl e unaccounted f o r  water. The chemical and e l  e c t r i  cal  

costs associated w i t h  unaccounted f o r  water i n  excess o f  '10% should be 

adjusted so t h a t  r a t e  payers do no t  bear those cos ts .  The Commission has a lso  

required u t i l i t i e s  t o  take co r rec t i ve  ac t i on  t o  reduce the  excessive 

unaccounted f o r  water,  

Q .  

water? 

A .  This has been a long-standing Commission p r a c t i c e .  I n  add i t i on ,  I 

r e v i  ewed several American Water Works Associ a t i  on (AWWA) publ i c a t i  ons and some 

o f  the  water management d i s t r ' i c t  ru les  r e l a t e d  t o  consumptive use permits and 

water conservation t h a t  seem t o  support 10% as a reasonable amount o f  

unaccounted f o r  water. The AWWA M8 Manual on Water D i s t r i b u t i o n  T ra in ing  

Course publ shed i n  1962 s ta tes  on page 11. "A  fair average o f  unaccounted f o r  

water might be 10-20% f o r  f u l l y  metered systems w i t h  good meter maintenance 

programs and average cond i t i ons  o f  se rv i ce . "  (EX - RPR-5) I n  a more recent 

p u b l i c a t i o n ,  page 31 o f  t he  AWWA M32 Manual on D i s t r i b u t i o n  Network Analysis 

for Water U t i  1 i t i e s  publ i shed i n 1989 s ta tes ,  "The percentage o f  unaccounted- 

for  water can vary w ide ly  from system t o  system. Values ranging from 4-30 

percent o f  the  t o t a l  accounted.-for consumption are found, a1 though 10-15 

percent may be more p reva len t .  The percentage can a1 so vary from year t o  year 

i n  the same system. The higher values genera l l y  are associated w i t h  o lder  

, I  

How was over 10% determined t o  be an excessive amount o f  unaccounted for 

, 
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systems, i n  which leakage, no meters o r  f a u l t y  meters are more common place 

than i n  newer systems. Systems operat ing a t  h igh  pressures usua l l y  w i l l  

experience a h igh l oss  percentage.” (EX - RPR-6) The S t .  Johns River Water 

Management D i s t r i c t  Rule 12.2.5 on Consumptive Use Permits (CUPS) and water 

conservation requires the  u t i l i t y  t o  perform a meter survey. I f  the  i n i t i a l  

unaccounted f o r  water i s  10% o r  g rea ter  t h e  u t i l i t y  may need t o  i n i t i a t e  a 

meter change-out program and must complete a eak de tec t ion  evaluat ion.  (EX- 

R P R - 7 )  The Southwest F lo r i da  Water Management D i s t r i c t  Consumptive Use Permit 

handbook requires water systems i n  the  Northern Tampa Bay Water Use Caution 

Area (Pasco and P ine l l as  County) t o  perform water aud i ts .  I f  t h e  annual 

I 

r epo r t  r e f l e c t s  a g rea ter  than 12% unaccounted water,  the  permit tee must 

complete a water aud i t  w i t h i n  90 days o f  submit ta l  o f  the  annual r e p o r t .  For 

water systems t h a t  are not  i n  a Water Use Caution Area (Marion County), 

app l i can ts  w i t h  unaccounted f o r  use grea ter  than 15% may be requ i red  t o  

address the  reduction o f  such use through b e t t e r  accounting o r  reduct ion o f  

unmetered uses o f  system losses. 

Q .  Should an adjustment be made f o r  unaccounted f o r  water f o r  these 

systems? 

A.  f o r  those water systems t h a t  have over 10% unaccounted for water, i f  the  

u t i l i t y  has performed a water aud i t  and i s  i n  the  process o f  reducing the  

amount o f  water l oss ,  no adjustment i s  needed because the cos t  t he  company 

w i l l  i n c u r  t o  co r rec t  t h e  problem w i  11 l i k e l y  exceed the  expenses t h a t  would 

be removed. Also, f o r  those systems t h a t  a re  s l i g h t l y  over 10% unaccounted 

f o r  water, t he  adjustment on such small amounts o f  unaccounted f o r  water would 

be immater ia l .  For those water systems w i t h  unaccounted f o r  water i n  excess 

(EX - RPR-8) 
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o f  10% and the  u t i l i t y  has no t  taken steps t o  reduce the  water l o s s ,  a 

reduct ion i n  chemical and e l e c t r i c a l  expense should be made. I n  add i t i on ,  the 

u t i l i t y  should i nves t i ga te  the source o f  the water loss  and reduce the amount 

o f  unaccounted f o r  water, i f  i t  has n o t  done so already. I t  i s  important t o  

reduce the  amount o f  unaccounted for water because water i s  a l i m i t e d  resource 

t h a t  s h o d  d be protected. 

Q .  Which systems have over 10% unaccounted f o r  water? 

A .  For t h e  systems i n  Seminole County o f  Weathersf ield (10.2%), and Ravenna 

Park (10 .8%) ,  t he  Crescent Heights system i n  Orange County (10.3%), and the 

Buena V i s t a  system i n  Pasco County (10.2%), which have over 10% unaccounted 

f o r  water, s t a f f  bel ieves tha t  unaccounted f o r  water i s  reasonable. In  

add i t i on ,  t h e  adjustment on such small amounts o f  unaccounted for water would 

be immater ia l .  S t a f f  bel ieves t h a t  on l y  L i t t l e  Wekiva (13.0%) and' P h i l l i p s  

(16.8%) i n Semi no1 e County, Go1 den H i  7 1 s/Crownwood (22.2%) i n M a r i  on County, 

Orangewood (17 * 5 % ) ,  Summertree (16.2%) i n  Pasco County, and Lake Tarpon 

(20.6%) i n P i  ne1 1 as County have excessi ve unaccounted f o r  water, 

Q .  

w i t h  more than 10% unaccounted f o r  water? 

A .  Yes. I n  response t o  S t a f f  I n te r roga to ry  No. 69 and S t a f f ' s  Production 

o f  Document Request No. 5 ,  the  u t i l i t y  provided a copy o f  a water a u d i t  and 

I 1  

, 

Has t h e  u t i l i t y  addressed the unaccounted f o r  water for those systems 

a l e t t e r  dated January 24, 2003 from Mr. David Hanna, S ta te  Water C i r c u i t  

Rider f o r  t he  F lo r i da  Rural Water Associat ion t o  Mr. Sco 

l e t t e r ,  Mr . Hanna made s p e c i f i c  recommendations f o r  several 

For example, he recommended t h a t  the u t i l i t y  change out the  

t o  be IO years old or  o lde r  and repai r main leaks.  The u t  

. ty  Haws. In  the 

o f  those systems. 

meters determined 

l i t y  i s  c u r r e n t l y  
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6 6 2  

developing a meter change ou t  program f o r  the  L i t t l e  Wekiva system which' 1s 

expected t o  be completed by September, 2003, a t  the  recommendation o f  t he  

F l o r i d a  Rural Water Associat ion.  A main leak  a t  t he  P h i l l i p s  system has bee'n 

repa i red  and the master meter i s  belng scheduled for replacement. The 

P h i l l i p s  system customers are b i l l e d  bi-monthly and on ly  one b i l l  has been 

sent s ince the  repa i r  was completed. When the  r e s u l t s  o f  the  nex t  b i l l i n g  are 

ava i lab le ,  the u t i l i t y  w i l l  be able t o  b e t t e r  quan t i f y  the r e l a t i o n s h i p  

between pumped and unaccounted f o r  water. 

Q .  

A. The e l e c t r i c a l  and chemical expenses f o r  systems w i t h  unaccounted for 

What adjustments should be made f o r  unaccounted f o r  water? 

water i n  excess o f  10% should be reduced. For the Golden Hi l lsKrownwood 

water system, a reduct ion o f  $140.42 ($1,150 x .122 = $140.42) should be made 

t o  Account No. 618 Chemicals and a reduc t ion  o f  $1,325.03 ($10,852 x ,122 = 

$1,325.03) should be made t o  Account No. 615 Purchased Power. The u t i l i t y  

combined a l l  chemical and e l e c t r i c a l  expenses f o r  i t s  water systems i n  Pasco 

County. Therefore, an adjustment f o r  unaccounted f o r  water should be based 

on the  sum o f  the t o t a l  water pumped less  the  t o t a l  gal lons accounted for i n  

Pasco County. Since the  Wis-Bar system purchases water and does not use any 

chemicals or e l e c t r i c i t y  t o  repump the  water, i t  would no t  have any chemical 

o r  purchased power cos ts .  The t o t a l  unaccounted f o r  water f o r  the  Pasco 

County water systems i s  14.49%. Therefore, a reduc t ion  o f  $210.99 ($4,699 x 

.0449 = $210.99) should be made t o  Account No. 618 Chemicals and a reduct ion 

o f  $699.90 ($15,588 x .0449 = $699.90) should be made t o  Account No. 615 

Purchased Power f o r  excessive unaccounted f o r  water. For t h e  Lake Tarpon 

water system, the t o t a l  unaccounted for water was 20.63%. Therefore, a 
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6 6 3  

reduc t ion  o f  $22.32 ($210 x .IO63 = $22.32) should be made t o  Account No. 618 

Chemicals and a reduct ion o f  $271.81 ($2,557 x A063 = $271.81) should be made 

t o  Account No. 615 Purchased Power f o r  excessive unaccounted f o r  water. The 

ca l cu l  a t ions  are detai  l e d  i n  EX - RPR-9. 

Q .  

water d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems? 

A .  Yes. I agree w i t h  the  u t i l i t y ’ s  proposal t h a t  a l l  o f  i t s  water 

d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems be considered 100% used and u s e f u l .  A l l  o f  the  water 

systems are b u i l t - o u t .  w i t h  the  exception o f  Summertree i n  Pasco County and 

Golden H i l l s  i n  Marion County. The Summertree water d i s t r i b u t i o n  system i s  

f u l l y  con t r ibu ted  and there fore  a used and useful  adjustment i s  no t  necessary. 

The Golden H i l l s  water d i s t r i b u t i o n  system should be considered 100% used and 

useful  based on the exi  s t i  ng connections, p lus  an a1 1 owance f o r  growth. 

Q.  Have you looked a t  t he  u t i l i t y ’ s  used and useful  ca l cu la t i ons  f o r  i t s  , 

wastewater systems? 

A .  

t h a t  p l a n t  i s  the Crownwood p l a n t  i n  Marion County. 

Q .  Did the  u t i l i t y  use the  proper used and useful  methodology f o r  the  

Crownwood wastewater treatment p l  ant? 

A .  Yes. The u t i l i t y  proposed a 68.65% used and useful  allowance f o r  the 

Crownwood wastewater treatment p l a n t  and I agree w i t h  t h a t  c a l c u l a t i o n .  The 

u t i l i t y ’ s  ca l cu la t i ons  appear t o  be cons is ten t  w i t h  Rule 25-30.432, F lo r i da  

Admin is t ra t i ve  Code. 

Q .  

wastewater c o l l e c t i o n  systems? 

Do you agree w i t h  the u t i l i t y ’ s  used and useful  c a l c u l a t i o n s  f o r  i t s  

, I  

Yes. The u t i  l i  t y  c u r r e n t l y  has only one wastewater treatment p l a n t ,  and 

Do you agree w i t h  the  u t i l i t y ’ s  used and usefu l  c a l c u l a t i o n s  f o r  the 
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A .  Yes. The wastewater serv ice  areas are bui 1 t - o u t ,  w i t h  the  exception o f  

Summertree i n  Pasco County. The systems t h a t  are bui 1 t - o u t  are 100% used and 

use fu l .  I n  the l a s t  rate case order f o r  Summertree, t he  Commission found t h a t  

the  wastewater i nterconnecti  on (master 1 i f t  s t a t i o n  and f o rce  main) was 100% 

used and useful  and the  c o l l e c t i o n  l i n e s  were cont r ibu ted  and the re fo re ,  a 

used and useful  adjustment was no t  necessary. 

Q .  Has the Commission prev ious ly  determined used and useful  f o r  the 

wastewater col  l e c t i o n  systems? 

A .  

Q .  Does the u t i l i t y  have i n f i l t r a t i o n l i n f l o w  problems i n  any o f  t he  

wastewater c o l l  e c t i  on systems? 

A.  Yes. The u t i l i t y  has an i n f i l t r a t i o n / i n f l o w  problem i n  the  Ravenna 

Park/Li nco7 n Heights wastewater system i n Semi no1 e County. 

Q.  What causes i n f i  1 t r a t i  on / i  n f l  ow problems i n a wastewater c o l l  e c t i o n  

sys tems? 

A .  I n f i  1 t r a t i  on resu l  t s  from groundwater en te r i  ng a wastewater c o l l  e c t i  on 

system through broken o r  de fec t i ve  p ipe  and j o i n t s .  I n f l o w  r e s u l t s  from 

water en ter ing  a wastewater c o l l e c t i o n  system through manholes and l i f t  

s ta t i ons  . 

Q .  

Yes. The Commission determined t h a t  they were 100% used and u s e f u l .  

1 

How d i d  you determine t h a t  i n f i l t r a t i o n / i n f l o w  was a problem f o r  the  

Ravenna Park/Li ncoln Heights wastewater c o l l e c t i o n  system? 

A .  The t o t a l  amount o f  water so ld  was compared t o  the  amount o f  wastewate 

t rea ted .  For the seven bi-monthly b i l l i n g  cycles i n  the  t e s t  year, the t o t a  

water sold t o  the r e s i d e n t i a l  customers was 21.205528 m i l l i o n  gal lons (mg) 

and the  t o t a l  water so ld  t o  the general serv ice  customers was 3.145380 mg 
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6 6 5  

The annual i zed amount f o r  12 months would be 20.647469 mg. The Commission has 

recognlzed t h a t  no t  a l l  water i s  returned as wastewater. The Commission 

t y p i c a l l y  assumes t h a t  80% o f  t he  water purchased by r e s i d e n t i a l  customers i s  

returned as wastewater and 96% o f  the water purchased by general serv ice  

customers i s  returned as wastewater. I n  S t a f f ’ s  I n te r roga to r ies  Nos. 25 and 

26, Mr . Lubertozzi responded t h a t  these percentages a fe  reasonabl e. 

Therefore, t h e  water returned as wastewater would be expected t o  be 16.920644 

mg f o r  t he  t e s t  year ,  In t he  F inanc ia l ,  Rate and Engineering Minimum F i l i n g  

Requirements - Seminole County - Ravenna Park - Page 182, Schedule F -2  shows 

t h a t  the  t o t a l  wastewater t rea ted  was 31.155 mg f o r  t he  t e s t  year.  Therefore, 

i t  appears t h a t  approximately 184.1242% o f  t he  customers ’ water purchased was 

returned as wastewater,. I would expect no more than 100% from t h i s  

es t imat ion .  

Q .  

system . 

A .  The Ravenna Park/Lincoln Heights wastewater collection system i s  made 

up p r i m a r i l y  o f  v i t r i f i e d  c lay  pipes ( V C P )  , which are more b r i t t l e  and the  

cons t ruc t ion  j o i n t s  are n o t  as t i g h t  when compared t o  more modern pipes. 

Also, as explained by Mr. Steven M .  Lubertozzi  i n  response t o  S t a f f ’ s  

I n te r roga to ry  No. 54, t he  Ravenna Park system was dedicated t o  pub l i c  serv ice  

on March 5 ,  1959. 

Q .  

o f  i n f  i 1 trati on/ i n f  1 ow? 

A .  Based on the Water P o l l u t i o n  Control Federation Manual o f  Prac t ice  No. 

9 ,  Design and Construct ion,  t he  allowance for  i n f i l t r a t i o n  should be 500 

, I  

Please describe the  Ravenna Park/Li ncol n Heights wastewater c o l l e c t i o n  , 

What do you be l i eve  i s  t he  appropriate method f o r  es t imat ing  the amount 
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gpdl inch-diameter lmi le f o r  a17 p pes. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  T recommend t h a t  an 

add i t i ona l  allowance be added f o r  i n f l o w .  Mr. Lubertozzi agreed t h a t  these 

numbers are reasonable i n  response t o  Staff's In te r rogatory  No. 27. 

Q .  Based on your proposed methodology, d i d  the  u t i l i t y  est imate the  amount 

o f  i n f i  1 t r a t i , o n  i n  the  Ravenna Park/Li ncol n Heights wastewater co l  l e c t i  on 

, 

system? I 

A .  I n  response t o  S t a f f  I n te r roga to ry  No. 65, Mr. Orr responded t h a t  

there  are 6,068 1 i near f e e t  o f  8 - i  nch d i  ameter VCP co7 l e c t i  on mains along w i t h  

an add i t i ona l  2,400 t o  5,000 f e e t  o f  serv ice  l a t e r a l s .  I n  response t o  S t a f f  

Yes. 

I n te r roga to ry  No. 66, Mr . Orr d1 so responded t h a t  the i n f i  1 trati on a1 1 owance 

from the  c o l l e c t i o n  mains i s  about 4,559 gpd or 1,664,035 gal lons per year and 

adding the  length o f  serv ice  l a t e r a l s  i n  the system could increase the  

allowance t o  8,300 gpd o r  3,030,000 ga l lons  per year .  

Q .  

o f  i n f l o w  i n the Ravenna Park/Li ncol n Hejghts wastewater , co l l  e c t i o n  system? 

A .  In  response t o  S t a f f  I n te r roga to ry  No. 67,  Mr. Orr responded t h a t  

f o r  t he  per iod  o f  October 2001 t o  September 2002, t he  water so ld  t o  wastewater 

customers was equal t o  20.775 mg. Therefore, t he  i n f l o w  allowance based upon 

10% o f  the  water so ld  would be 2.0775 mg. While the  per iod  o f  October 2001 

t o  September 2002 i s  n o t  t he  t e s t  yea r ,  s t a f f  bel ieves t h a t  t h i s  i s  a 

reasonable estimate f o r  t he  t e s t  year,  because the  customers l i v e  there  year 

round. 

Q .  What i s  the  appropr iate amount o f  water returned from the  customers as 

wastewater, p lus  an allowance f o r  i n f i l t r a t i o n  and i n f l o w  f o r  t he  Ravenna 

Park/Li ncoln Heights system f o r  the t e s t  year? 

Based on your proposed methodology, d i d  the  u t i l i t y  est imate the  amount 

Yes. 
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A .  The estimated amount o f  water t he  customers returned as wastewater was 

16.920644 mg. I n  add i t i on ,  3.030 mg should be allowed f o r  i n f i l t r a t i o n  and 

2 .0775 mg should be allowed f o r  i n f l o w .  f o r  a t o t a l  o f  22.028164 mg f o r  the 

t e s t  year.  

Q .  

Park /L i  ncol n Heights system? 

A .  According t o  Mr. Lubertozzi , i n  response t o  S t a f f ’ s  I n te r roga to ry  No. 

21, the  City o f  Sanford charges a base charge o f  $469.32 and a usage charge 

o f  $4.13/1000 ga l lons .  Based on f l o w s  o f  22.028164 mg, the  cos t  would be 

$96,608 fo r  the t e s t  year .  

Q .  

f o r  t he  Ravenna Park/Li ncol n Hei ghts system? 

A .  

Expense t o  remove the  c o s t  o f  excessive i n f i l t r a t i o n l i n f l o w  f o r  Ravenna , 

P a r k L i n c o l n  Heights. According t o  the Aud i t  Work Papers - Page (43-15)/2~2, 

the 12 month average f o r  purchased wastewater t reatment f o r  Ravenna 

Park lL inco ln  Heights i s  $142,086. Therefore, t he  cos t  o f  t r e a t i n g  the  

excessive i n f i l t r a t i o n / i n f l o w  o f  $45.478 should be removed. 

Q .  How should the  u t i l i t y ’ s  costs associated w i t h  c a l i b r a t i n g  the meter, 

disposing o f  the volume o f  l i q u i d  w i t h i n  the  aera t ion  bays, c l a r i f i e r ,  

d iges ter .  and cleaning water t h a t  was sent through the  meter be treated? 

A .  According t o  Mr. Orr, i n  response t o  S t a f f  I n t e r r o g a t o r y  No. 68, the  

u t i  1 i ty  estimates t h a t  827,000 gal Ions was u t i  1 i zed f o r  s t a r t - u p  purposes, 

i nc l  udi ng c a l  i b r a t i  on o f  the meter and c l  eani ng and d ra i  n i  ng o f  t h e  wastewater 

p l a n t  tanks.  Mr. Orr reported t h a t  the  cos t  was $3,416 (827.000 ga l lons  x 

What i s  the appropr iate purchased wastewater expense f o r  t h e  Ravenna 

I I  

Should an adjustment be made t o  Account No. 710 Purchased Sewage Expense 

Yes. An adjustment should be made t o  Account No. 710 Purchased Sewage 
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$4.13/1000 gallons = $3,416) and recommended t h a t  t h i s  cos t  be t rea ted  as 

s t a r t u p  cos t  t o  be amortized over 5 years as a non-recurr ing expense o r  

c a p i t a l i z e d  as p a r t  o f  the p r o j e c t  c o s t .  I agree t h a t  the  cos t  should be 

amortized over 5 years f o r  an annual cos t  o f  $683.20. 

Q .  Have your reviewed the  testimony o f  Mr. Ted t .  Biddy, P.E./P.L.S. on 

beha l f  o f  Pub i c  Counsel? 

A .  Yes. I w i l l  be p rov id ing  comments on Mr. Biddy's testimony r e l a t e d  t o  

f i r e  f low,  storage, used and u s e f u l ,  unaccounted f o r  water, and 

i n f i l t r a t i o n / i n f l o w  i n t o  the  wastewater system. 

Q .  

A .  

Do you agree w i t h  Mr. Biddy's p o s i t i o n  on the  allowance f o r  f i r e  f low? 

No. The Commission has cons is ten t l y  recognized the need f o r  f i r e  f l o w  

p ro tec t i on  and considers i t  i n  i t s  determinat ion o f  used and u s e f u l .  While 

f i r e s  hopefu l l y  do no t  occur f requent ly ,  I be l ieve  t h a t  i t  i s  important t o  

al low the  u t i l i t y  t o  inc lude f i r e  f low i n  i t s  used and useful  c a l c u l a t i o n  i f  

there  i s  a l oca l  requirement t o  provide f i r e  f low and f i r e  hydrants e x i s t  i n  

the serv ice  area. This is  cons is ten t  w i t h  Order No. PSC-96-132O-fOF-WS, 

issued October 30, 1996, i n  Docket No. 950495-WS i n  which the  Commission found 

t h a t , '  while the  Commission does no t  t e s t  f i r e  hydrants o r  requ i re  p roo f  t h a t  

hydrants are func t iona l  or capable o f  t he  f lows requested, an investment i n  

p l  ant s houl d be a1 1 owed. 

Q .  

storage tanks separately? 

A .  No. Used and useful  should only be evaluated on a component b a s i s  when 

some p o r t i o n  o f  the system i s  oversized r e l a t i v e  t o  the  s i z e  o f  other 

components. The storage capac i ty  f o r  any o f  the  systems does not appear t o  

Do you agree w i t h  Mr . Biddy's  p o s i t i o n  on evaluat ing used and useful  for 

-26- 



6 6 9  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

be oversized, there fore  there  i s  no need t o  evaluate used and useful  f o r  t he  

storage tanks separately i n  t h i s  case. The AWWA and t h e  Ten State Standards 

recommend general guide1 ines f o r  storage capaci ty;  however, these are general 

gu ide l i nes .  F lo r i da  has frequent hurr icanes and f loods  which can cause power 

outages f o r  an extended per iod  o f  t ime or w e l l  contamination. The only source 

o f  water would be the  amount i n  the ground o r  elevated storage tanks. The 

Commission has recognized t h a t  one f u l l  day o f  storage may be'nkeded f o r  a 

system. See Order No. PSC-97-0847-FOF-WS, i ssued Ju l y  15, 1997, i n  Docket No. 

960329-WS. 

Q .  Do you agree w i t h  Mr. Biddy's p o s i t i o n  t h a t  used and useful  should be 

based on pumping we l ls  f o r  a 24 hour per iod  f o r  a small water system w i t h  

l i t t l e  o r  no storage capaci ty? 

A .  No. The proper method, as I discussed e a r l i e r ,  i s  t o  determine the we l l  

capaci ty based on pumping 12 hours t o  p roper ly  manage the  aqu i fe r .  According 

t o  t he  AWWA Manual M21: 

I t  i s  commonly assumed t h a t  one obtains water from a w e l l ,  

bu t  nothing could be f u r t h e r  from the  t r u t h .  A we l l  i s  a means 

o f  access t o  a water-bearing formation, and i t  serves t h e  same 

purpose as a s t r a w  i n  conducting f l u i d  from a glass t o  your mouth. 

A we l l  t y p i c a l l y  includes a pump, which moves water from the  

aqu i fe r  t o  a d i s t r i b u t i o n  system f o r  d e l i v e r y  t o  the  w a t e r  user.  

To move water from a format ion i n t o  a 

w e l l ,  a g r a v i t a t i o n a l  f o rce  must be created. The gallonage f i rst 

pumped from a we l l  removes water i n  storage from the  we l l  bore, 

then removes w a t e r  from storage i n  the  a q u i f e r . .  . . 

Cone o f  depression. 
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, '  
See EX - R P R - 1 0 .  

Q .  

on a 24-hour basis? 

A .  No. Water demand i s  no t  cons is tent  i n  a 24-hour per iod.  T y p i c a l l y ,  

there  i s  a peak i n  t h e  morning around 6 AM, around noon, and around 6 PM. 

There us general ly very l i t t l e  demand on t h e  system between 1O:OO PM and 6 AM 

( 8  hours) ,  

Q .  Is t he re  a n  inconsistency w i t h  respect t o  Mr. Biddy's test imony 

regarding pumping a we l l  f o r  24 hours and t h e  equa l iza t ion  storage o f  20 t o  

25% o f  t h e  average d a i l y  f l o w ?  

A .  As I j u s t  discussed. t h e  w a t e r  systems have peak demand periods and 

water i s  minimal ly used dur ing  the  n i g h t .  The test imony does not  e x p l a i n  

where t h e  water.  when pumped f o r  24 hours, would be stored, so t h a t  i t  could 

be used dur ing  the peak per iods o f  t he  day. I n  order t o  f u l l y  u t i l i z e  t h e  

we17 t h a t  i s  pumped f o r  24 hours t h e  storage amount would heed t o  be about 113 

t o  1 / 2  o f  t h e  capaci ty  o f  t h e  we l l  t imes 24 hours t o  a l low t h e  u t i l i t y  t o  

ob ta in  100% used and usefu l  f o r  t he  well and  storage system. 

Q .  Do you agree w i t h  Mr. Biddy 's  p o s i t i o n  regarding i n f i l t r a t i o n  and i n f l o w  

for  t h e  Summertree, Weathersf ie ld.  and Golden H i l l s  wastewater c o l l e c t i o n  

systems? 

Do you agree w i t h  Mr. Biddy t h a t  t h e  f l o w  o f  water i s  steady and equal 

d rcw 
-fhn_Cll.mmnrtree~ sy% -Mp.---B.j-ddy---- -fa-+] ed- - - to  - - 1 nc-l-ude- -t-he 

s ~ ~ ~ , ~ ~ A - ~ ~ ~  r ;cys~w-t ,  .-+km c i ~ s  ~.\oi- a p p c d ~  -cO bc W I  

A .  No. 
inC; ~ t . r c ~ , t i o n / i d : ) o i &  p r ~ b k ~  

wastewa.tw- 3 - 1  ow--from - t h e  commer-ci a1 ~ cus-Wmers--- o f - - ~ ~ ~ f f e e ~ . ~ 1 . a ~ ~ - s - e - ~ ~ - - .  

w k i - & - w ~ ~ a - t e - l - y - - e q u  a-1 - - ~ o - - - - t - ~ ~ ~ - ~ ~ ~ ~ - - ~ f ~  w--f-r-e&e--~es;i-$eM 

c~+xmws.  For the  Weathersf ie ld system, t h e  t o t a l  wastewater t r e a t e d  o f  
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90.956 mg repor ted by Mr.  Biddy does n o t  agree w i t h  Schedul'e F-2  o f  t h e  

u t i l i t y ' s  MRFs which shows t h a t  the t o t a l  wastewater t rea ted  was 72.208 mg for 

t h e  t e s t  year .  Fo r  t h e  Crownwood 

system, the  i n f i l t r a t i o n / i n f l o w  reported o f  1.43% i s  not  m a t e r i a l .  

Q .  

A .  No. I do n o t .  

There i s  no f l ow  meter a t  Weathersf ie ld.  

Do you have anything f u r t h e r  t o  add? 

11 

-29- 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

672 

BY MS. GERVASI: 

Q 
A Yes, I have. 

Q Please give tha t  now. 

A 

Have you prepared a summary o f  your testimony? 

The purpose o f  my testimony i s  t o  discuss and 

recommend the appropriate methodology t o  be used f o r  

determining the amount o f  used and useful p lan t ;  also t o  review 

the expenses o f  U t i l i t i e s ,  Inc.  o f  F lo r i da ' s  water and 

wastewater systems i n Marion, Orange, Pasco, P i  ne1 1 as, and 

Semi no1 e Counties . 
MS. GERVASI: Thank you. We w i l l  tender the witness 

f o r  cross-examination. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr . Rei 11 y. 

MR. REILLY: Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. REILLY: 

Q M r .  Redemann, you're a c i v i l  engineer and a 

registered professional engineer; correct? 

A That i s  correct .  

Q Have you ever designed any water and wastewater 

system? 

A I ' v e  designed components o f  water and wastewater 

systems. 

Q 

A During my col lege years, and also I have reviewed 

And when d i d  you do tha t?  
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many water and wastewater system designs a t  the Commission. 

Q I n  doing t h i s  work during col lege, how many years ago 

was tha t?  

A About 20 years. 

Q And obviously you were doing t h a t  i n  an assistance of 

some professional engineer who would sign and seal those 

designs, I presume? 

A As pa r t  o f  the engineering t ra in ing ,  yes, there 's  

usual ly a professional engineer, you know, assigned t o  review 

your work. 

Q 

ago, d i d  they r e s u l t  i n  systems actual 1 y being constructed? 

A I bel ieve i n  a few o f  the courses they were - -  we 

I am a registered professional engineer. 

The designs tha t  you involved yoursel f  i n  20 years 

used - -  the  class designed d i f f e r e n t  components. 

reca l l  exact ly  what we designed, but we designed d i f f e r e n t  

components, I bel i eve. 

I don ' t  

Q These were j u s t  hypothetical or actual rea l  world 

designs f o r  a c l i e n t ?  

A I bel ieve the ins t ruc to r  used the designs f o r  a 

c l i e n t  i n  some cases. 

Q 

A W i  sconsi n. 

Q 

And what s ta te  are we t a l k i n g  about? 

Have you ever submitted any designs t o  the  s tate o f  

F lor ida or any other agency? 

A Yes. 
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Q 
A 

louse. 

Q 

And when d i d  t h i s  happen? 

Recently, when I designed my cu lver t  system a t  my 

Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  the DEP r u l e  c r i t e r i a  f o r  

sizing of various components o f  water systems? 

A Generally, yes. 

Q Could you describe your understanding o f  what the DEP 

nequi rements are f o r  water supply and we1 1 s, pumping? 

We1 1, you need t o  - - we1 1, there 's  many reference 

nater ia ls  t h a t  are used i n  the design, and you need t o  base 

your components on the d i f f e r e n t  reference mater ia ls t h a t  

they've l i s t e d ,  you know, f o r  the recommended sizes and s t u f f  

for design. 

A 

Q How about the Ten States Standards? Is t h a t  p r e t t y  

nuch the - -  we had testimony e a r l i e r  t h a t  t h a t ' s  so r t  o f  the 

gospel 

3-i f f e r e n t  than tha t?  

Is t ha t  your understanding, o r  i s  your understanding 

used 

requ 

A No, t h a t ' s  one o f  many d i f f e r e n t  reference materials 

i n  the design o f  water systems. 

Q 

rements are for source o f  supply? 

A Yes. There are components i n  there t h a t  require 

Do you know what the Ten States Standards 

d i f f e r e n t  - -  or they have recommended sizes f o r  the source o f  

SUPPl Y 
Q Cou d you t e l l  me what those two basic formulas are? 
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A I be7ieve they ' re  f o r  the engineer t o  use, and they 

l i s t ,  you know, the minimum requirements t h a t  the Department o f  

Environmental Protection would requi r e  for these systems. 

Q And i f  you don ' t  meet these minimum requirements, can 

you expect your permit request t o  be denied? 

A Yes. I f  the minimum requirements are not met, the 

DEP w i l l  deny your permit o r  - - we l l ,  I guess they w i l l  send 

675 

A 

Q 

I don ' t  r e c a l l  what they are r i g h t  now. 

Do you r e c a l l  what the Ten States Standards 

requirement i s  f o r  water treatment p lant ,  and i s  i t  the same as 

for water source? 

A I don ' t  r e c a l l  . 
Q Are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  Chapter 62-555.330, Flor ida 

Administrat ive Code? 

A Generally. 

Q Is t h i s  not the por t ion  o f  the code tha t  sets f o r t h  

the DEP ru les  f o r  water system designs by referencing other 

publ icat ions? 

A Yes There's d i  f f e ren t  publ i c a t i  ons recommended i n  

the design o f  systems. 

Q 

A 

And t h i s  i s  the very r u l e  t h a t  references them? 

We1 1, I don ' t  have the r u l e  i n  f r o n t  o f  me, so I 

don ' t have the numbers memorized. 

Q Okay. Do you know whether these design ru les are 

mandatory o r  optional? 
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you a l e t t e r  t e l l i n g  you you need t o  f i x  your permit t o  comply 

w i th  our standards. 

Q So would your answer t o  my question be tha t  there are 

mandatory requi rements? 

A I believe you could use a l te rna t i ve  methods, you 

know, t h a t  are not ac tua l l y  l i s t e d  i n  there as long as those 

methods complied w i t h  the requirements by the Department o f  

Environmental Protection. 

Q I have - - and you don ' t  have i t  i n  f ron t  o f  you, but 

i n  f r o n t  of me, and they use the word shal l  

techni cal pub1 i cations . Subject t o  check, 

t h  t h a t  1 anguage? 

I have 62 - 555.330 

be appl i ed, these 

would you agree w 

A Yes. 

Q Is the recommended standards f o r  Water Works commonly 

known as the Ten States Standards, which we've ta lked a l o t  

about during t h i s  hearing? Is i t  one o f  the publications c i t e d  

i n  t h i s  ru le?  

A Yes, I bel ieve i t ' s  l i s t e d  as Number 3. 

Q Do you know i f  these Ten S ta tes  Standards and the 

design guide1 ines there in  are used by FDEP i n  reviewing 

submittal approval s for permi t t ing o f  water systems? 

A 

Q 

I ' m  sure they are. 

Are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  Section 3.2.1.1 o f  the Ten 

States Standards as i t  re1 ates t o  groundwater source capacity? 

A I ' v e  reviewed i t  a while ago. I don ' t  remember 
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exactly wha t  i t  says. 

Q And i f  I asked you - - okay. So you could not quote 

vJhat t h a t  standard i s  today? 

A No 
Q Okay. Are you familiar enough w i t h  this standard t o  

know whether there's anything i n  the standard or the rule t h a t  

requires groundwater source capacity t o  be based on either 
peaked hourly or instantaneous flows t o  the system? 

A Well, the f i r s t  book listed water treatment p l a n t  

design i n  the listed standards. 
hour and peak day references. 

In t h a t  book there i s  maximum 

Q I'm trying t o  focus your attention on the Ten States 
Standards as i t  relates t o  source o f  supply, not  treatment. So 

my question t o  you, is there anything i n  this Ten States 
Standards as i t  relates t o  source o f  supply t h a t  would require 
either a peakly hour - -  a peaked hour or instantaneous flow 

requi rement? 
A I d o n ' t  believe the Ten States Standards has t h a t  

information i n  i t ,  bu t  other design books do. 

Q What i s  the FDEP rule for s iz ing  water treatment 
p lan ts?  Do you know? 

A 

Q 
A Well, I believe you do. 

Q 

I d o n ' t  know. You have the rule i n  front o f  you. 
How do you know t h a t ?  

I just read the rule concerning source o f  supply, not 
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lrater treatment. Is there - -  are you fam 

ihe FDEP standard? 

A 

Counse 

Q 
Pub1 i c 
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l i a r  w i th  the ru le ,  

A Well, I ' ve  read through i t  a number o f  times a while 

390, yes. 

Q Subject t o  check, would i t  surpr ise you t h a t  the DEP 

standard i s  t h a t  you would look a t  the max day f low plus other 

jemands? 

A 

Q 

That 's probably what i t  says, yes. 

And i n  context o f  our PSC proceedings, t h a t  i s  

h i s t o r i c a l l y  meant tha t  we're by s ta tu te  adding the f ive-day 

maximum day - -  excuse me, the f i v e  - -  wel l ,  we use the f i v e  max 

days instead o f  the max day, but we do include f i r e  f low plus 

f i v e  years growth minus excess - -  not  - -  yeah, excess 

unaccounted f o r  water, those three factors. Do you want me t o  

restate tha t?  

A Yes. 

Q I ' d  l i k e  t o  restate i t  myself. That the  standard i s  

context o f  the PSC, we 

growth, and we also 

i s  t h a t  correct? 

on. We the Public 

? Is t ha t  what you're saying? 

No. I t h ink  t h a t ' s  been the pract ice here a t  the 

Service Commission, has i t  not? 

A Repeat the question. I ' m  not  fo l lowing you. 

max day flows plus other uses. I n  the 

add a f i r e  flow, we look a t  f i v e  years 

subtract excess unaccounted for water ; 

I don ' t  understand the quest 
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Q Is i t  not true t h a t  the practice a t  the Public 
Service Commission i n  evaluating - - determining a used and 

useful f o r  a water treatment p l a n t  evaluates max day flow plus  

other uses, and those other uses .include f i re  flow, f i v e  years 
growth b u t  subtracting any excess unaccounted for water? 

A Yes. The Commission has used t h a t  formula. They 
have also used some peak gal lon per minute formulas i n  

cal cul a t i  ng used and useful . 
Q Are you familiar w i t h  the changing water use patterns 

and the trend towards water conservation i n  F1 orida? 
A Generally, yes. 

Q I sn ' t  i t  a fact t h a t  water usage has substantially 
decreased i n  Florida as a result o f  these factors? 

A I d o n ' t  know substantially. I t  has decreased I would 

say, yes. 

Q Did you examine the current water usage for these 17 

systems , water systems i n  t h i  s case? 
A On Exhib i t  RPR-3,  I l i s t  - -  or l e t ' s  see. 

Exhib i t  RPR-4, I l i s t  the peak demands o f  the system. 

Q Would it surprise you t o  know t h a t  such usages range 
from about 67 gallons per day per ERC t o  just over - -  now, I'm 

t a lk ing  about average da i ly  flow o f  67 gallons per day per ERC 

t o  just over 300 gallons per ERC w i t h  the average being about 

211 gal lons per day per ERC? 

A I have not made t h a t  calculation, so I d o n ' t  know, 
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but i t ' s  possible. 

Q 
t e s t  i mony? 

Okay. May I have you re fe r  t o  your Page 4 o f  your 

A Yes. 

Q Here you s ta te  - - I th ink  we're on Line 21. You say 

tha t  you assume t h a t  the wel ls i n  these systems are not 

oversized; i s  t ha t  correct? 

A That i s  correct .  

Q And could you share w i th  us the basis for that .  

assumption or  what ca lcu la t ion  you made? 

A Yes. Let me r e f e r  you t o  Exh ib i t  RPR-4.  On 

Exh ib i t  R P R - 4  many o f  these systems, if you look a t  the design 

peak hour, come p r e t t y  close t o  the firm r e l i a b l e  capacity o f  

the system. In addit ion, most o f  these wel ls  are r e l a t i v e l y  

small , less than 500 gal lons per minute. 

Q Would i t  surpr ise you t o  know t h a t  8 o f  the 17 

systems have groundwater source capac-i t y  greater - - great1 y i n  

excess o f  the  FDEP required capacities? 

A I f  you're looking on a 24-hour basis on these small 

systems, I recommend the gal lon per minute basis i n  ca lcu lat ing 

the used and useful.  

4 I understand t h a t ,  but under the FDEP standard. 

A Well, i n  the Ten States Standards, correct ,  they 

don ' t  have a peak hour, but  i n  the water treatment p lan t  design 

book the re ' s  references t o  peak hour. I n  addi t ion,  they 
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-eference the American Water Works Association which i s  an 

industry standard, i n  my opinion, and t h a t  you could use the 

leak hour numbers i n  those - -  i n  evaluating the systems. 

Well, when you calculated your used and useful Q 
iercentages f o r  these water systems, you used a peak f low f o r  

the demand equal t o  two times the maximum d a i l y  f low; i s  t h a t  

zorrect? 

A Yes, I did.  

Q And you also added f i r e  f low as a f low ra te  as 

ipposed t o  a pa r t i cu la r  quant i ty  o f  flow? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q And then you fu r ther  added f i v e  years growth factor  

and allowed f o r  a 10 percent unaccounted f o r  water? 

A Well, I only  ac tua l l y  evaluated two o f  the systems 

because they ' re  growing and the other systems I considered t o  

be bu- i l t  out and concluded tha t  they were 100 percent used and 

useful 

Q When determ 

requi rement , d i d  you 

whether they required 

ning whether the re ' s  a f i r e  f low 

ook t o  the loca l  au thor i t ies  t o  determine 

a f i r e  f low or not? 

A I based i t  on M r .  Seidman's - - i n  the MFRs and a1 so 

I ' m  aware o f  j u s t  general f i r e  requirements i n  cer ta in  

counties. 

Q And i t ' s  your understanding t h a t  cer ta in  counties 

have a f i r e  f low requirement and others do not? 
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A Yes. 

Q And f o r  those ju r i sd i c t i ons  t h a t  have a f i r e  flow 

-equi rement, i s  i t  your understanding t h a t  tha t  requirement 

jpp l ies only t o  new systems, or i s  there any attempt t o  

mforce - -  t o  r e t r o f i t  an ex i s t i ng  system t o  meet some f i r e  

flow requi rement? 

A I n  some s i tuat ions,  i f  you rebu i l d  some of  the 

service area, they require you t o  have the new f i r e  f low 

pequi rement . 

Q Repeat tha t .  I ' m  sorry. 

A I n  some o f  the systems i f  you rebu i l d  the system or 

zhange t h e i r  usage o f  the 1 and use, i f  you - - f o r  example, i f  

you had a res ident ia l  home, then converted i t  t o  commercial, 

you may have t o  go up t o  the higher f i r e  f low requirement. 

Q I ' m  t a l  k ing about a water system now as opposed t o  a 

par t i cu la r  - - not a f i r e  requirement f o r  a commercial bu i ld ing  

such as a spr ink ler  system. 

I ' m  t a l k i n g  about a water system providing f i r e  hydrants and 

s u f f i c i e n t  f low t o  meet some f i r e  requirement, f i r e  f low 

requirement. 

r e t r o f i t t i n g  o f  ex i s t i ng  systems t o  meet a f i r e  f low 

requirement when i t  does not - - when i t  d i d  not cur ren t ly  meet 

that  requi rement? 

Is t h a t  what you're t a l k i n g  about? 

Do you know o f  any j u r i s d i c t i o n  tha t  requires a 

A Yes. We j u s t  had a case i n  Pasco County where the 

system d id not meet the f i r e  f low, and I guess they refurbished 
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;he commercial area. I guess i t  was a mall .  And the u t i l i t y  

lecided t h a t  they d i d  not want t o  meet the f i re  flow, b u t  the 
:ounty f ire department insisted tha t  they had t o  meet the fire 
flow requirement. 
serving the area because the u t i l i t y  couldn't provide the fire 
r1 ow. 

So i t  ended up actually Pasco County started 

Q So i n  t h a t  case - -  okay. B u t  even i n  t h a t  specific 
instance of providing fire flow t o  some shopping small, you're 
lo t  aware o f  any instance where a jurisdiction requires a 
system t o  retrofit t o  provide fire f low when they do not 
mrent ly  provide i t?  

A No. 

Q Explain why you're using these fire flow volumes or 
rates as opposed t o  a discrete two-hour f i re  flow quant i ty .  

A The u t i l i t y  on these small systems only have 
generally wells, and the wells, since they don ' t  have ground 
storage and high service pumping, the wells have t o  meet the 
fire flow demand along w i t h  the residential demand. 

Q B u t  historically hasn't f i re  f l ow  requirement and 

f i r e  f low allowance been stated i n  terms of so much flow o f  

dater for a period o f  - -  for a time period o f  two hours so i t  

always would produce some sort o f  a quantity? 

I mean, t o  give you an example, the gallons per 
minute requi rement of any parti cul ar juri sdi ction can change 
from 500 gal 1 ons per minute t o  750 gal 1 ons per minute or a 
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thousand gal lons per minute; i s  t h a t  correct? That can change 

from j u r i s d i c t i o n  t o  j u r i  s d i c t i  on? 

A Yes. 

Q However, i s  i t  - - i n  your experience, i n  your many 

years o f  experience a t  the PSC, hasn' t  the durat ion o f  t ha t  

pa r t i cu la r  f low always been two hours as a standard i n  the 

indust ry  f o r  f i r e  flow? 

A Sometimes two, sometimes four hours, i t  j u s t  depends. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

But i t ' s  always f o r  some d iscrete time? 

And the reason f o r  t h a t  i s  the allowance f o r  f i r e  

f low does not  contempl ate a 24- hour f i r e  but a f i r e  incident 

t h a t  l a s t s  f o r  a cer ta in  length o f  time. 

A Yes. 

Q And so l e t ' s  consider the used and useful 

consequences o f  using what you are proposing versus what - -  l e t  

me ask you t h i s .  S t r i ke  tha t .  

Did we agree tha t  h i s t o r i c a l l y  the Commission i n  the 

past has used a volume requirement? 

eva 

gal 

two 

A No, the Commission has used both. Sometimes they've 

uated on a ga l lon per day, and they've also evaluated on a 

on per minute basis. 

Q Can you give me any cases, you know, beyond one or 

years from today tha t  the Commission was adopting t h i s  

gallons per minute f low ra te  versus a volume requirement? 
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used and 

the 

t i f f e r e n t  r a t e  cases tha t  we had, and i n  some systems they used 

the gal lon per minute and some systems they used the gal lon per 
Jay ca lcu la t ion  when there was s u f f i c i e n t  storage. 

Q 
A No. I can ' t  reca l l  them r i g h t  now, but looking over 

the l a s t  f i v e  years, there probably were a couple dozen cases, 

)ut 1 don ' t  r e c a l l  what they are r i g h t  now. 

Did you give me any case? 

Q Isn't i t  not t rue,  though, t h a t  i n  case a f t e r  case 

3f ter  case over l i t e r a l l y  decades t h a t  f i r e  f low allowances 

lave been granted by t h i s  Commission and t h a t  those f i r e  flow 

3llowances were expressed i n  terms o f  so much gallons per 

ninute times two hours; i s  t ha t  correct  o r  not? 

A Not always, no. When you don ' t  have s u f f i c i e n t  

storage, you need t o  consider t h a t  the wel l  has t o  provide the 

f i r e  f l ow .  

Q But how long does i t  have t o  provide it? Twenty-four 

hours o r  2 hours? 

A Well, w i th  a well  you c a n ' t  save up the water or pump 

it i n t o  a ground storage tank where i t  can be used l a t e r .  The 

well has t o  meet the f i r e  flow when the f i r e  i s  needed. 

Q 1 understand, but  l e t ' s  say we have a case l i k e  you 

say. And there 's  no storage and a l l  we have i s  the  wel ls  and 

high service pumps. And now we're doing a used and useful 
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analysis o f  that ,  we1 1 s and pumping, because we have no 

storage. Nevertheless, we determine what the gal lons per 

ninute requirement o f  the f i r e  incident i s ,  and then we put on 

that used and useful ca lcu lat ion .a demand on those pumps t o  

produce t h a t  quant i ty  o f  water f o r  a cer ta in  duration. Why 

~ o u l  d t h a t  change? 

A I f  you have ground storage and high service pumps, 

you can do tha t ,  but  i f  you only have a we l l ,  l e t ' s  say a 500 

gal lon per minute we l l ,  and there 's  500 gal lons per minute f i r e  

flow required, the wel l  has t o  produce 

It c a n ' t  pump t o  a ground storage tank 

reasonabl y s i  zed t o  use. 

Q Depending on how we go w i l l  t. 

the water f o r  the f i r e .  

i f  there i s n ' t  one 

ave a tremendous e f f e c t  

on the used and useful calculat ion;  i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Repeat your question. 

Q Depending on whether we go w i th  a f low r a t e  per 

minute versus an actual volume requirement has a vast impact on 
the used and useful calculat ion? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q 

point .  

as a thousand gallons per minute, i f  we l i m i t  t h a t  requirement 

f o r  two hours, t ha t  would create a volume requirement o f  

120,000 gal lons of t o t a l  f low; i s ' t h a t  correct? 

And i f  we can go through j u s t  an example t o  make the 

If the gal lons per minute requirement is  even as h* gh 

A Repeat your question. 
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Q I ' m  g iv ing  you an example o f  the tremendous impact o f  

what we're t a l k i n g  about, whether i t ' s  going t o  be a volume o f  

f low versus a r a t e  o f  f low. 

I f  we al low a ce r ta in  volume o f  f low f o r  f i r e  f low 

requi rement and under our scenario i f the requi rement per 

minute i s  the same f o r  both examples, 1,000 gal lons per minute, 

but we l i m i t  t ha t  r a t e  f o r  a two-hour period, what i s  the t o t a l  

f i r e  f low allowance under t h a t  scenario? 

A We1 1, the 1,000 gallons per minute times 2 hours 

times 60 minutes per hour. 

Q Correct. And t h a t  produces a t o t a l  f i r e  f low 

a1 1 owance o f  120,000 gal 1 ons. 
A That sounds correct .  

Q Okay. Now, i f  we approach i t  from the way tha t  you 

are now suggesting, what would be the f i r e  f low equivalent 

requirement? You would have t o  mu1 ti p l y  a thousand gal 1 ons per 
a higher used and ies 60 times 24, would you not, f o r  

cul at ion? 

I don't understand your question. 

Well, i f  we convert the 120,000 ga lon  per day f low 

tha t  we j u s t  ar r ived a t  and calculate t h a t  down i n t o  a gallons 

per minute f igure,  subject t o  check, would tha t  not create an 

83.33 gal lons per minute rate? 

A 

minute. 

Well, the f i r e  required i s  a thousand gallons per 
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Q Would there not be a 1,200 percent di f ference i n  the 

f i r e  f low allowance i f  we use the f i r e  f low r a t e  tha t  you're 

re fe r r i ng  without l i m i t i n g  i t  i n  any way t o  the durat ion o f  

t ha t  requirement; i s  t ha t  true? . 

A I don' t  know. I haven't made t h a t  calculat ion.  

Q Could we do i t  real  quickly? How do you t rans late 

the gal lons per day requirement t h a t  we said ex is ts  and 

t rans late tha t  down i n t o  the f low t h a t ' s  required t o  produce 

tha t  number o f  gal lons i n  tha t  day? 

A I t ' s  1,000 gal lons per minute for two hours. 

Q Right. And we said t h a t ' s  120,000 gal lons t o t a l .  

A Yes. 

Q But I'm saying I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  compare - -  they are 

apples and oranges, but I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  quant i fy  f o r  the 

Commission what the used and useful impact i s  o f  approaching 

f i r e  f l ow  i n  the manner tha t  you are recommending today. 

And i s  i t  not f a i r  t o  t rans la te  t h i s  120,000 gal lons 

per day i n t o  something tha t  can be re la ted  t o  the thousand 

gal lons per minute by making i t  83.33 gal lons per minute? 

A No. The f i r e  requirement i s  1,000 gallons per 

minute. That 's what i s  required. You can ' t  r e a l l y  d iv ide tha t  

over a 24-hour period. That when the f i r e  department goes t o  

put out the f i r e ,  they want a thousand gal lons per minute 

e i ther  i n  the middle o f  the n ight  or dur ing the peak hour. 

They don ' t  want 83 gal lons per minute over a 24-hour period, I 
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jon ' t bel i eve. 

Q But the question s t i l l  remains the same. And I'll go 

Dn i n  a minute. What i s  the e f f e c t  on the used and usefulness 

D f  these components i f  you use what you are proposing? Is i t  

not about a 1,200 percent di f ference i n  the impact? 

A It would be higher. I don ' t  understand your 

c a l  cul a t i  on. 

MR. REILLY: Could we w a i t  for one - -  l e t  me t a l k  t o  

my consul t a n t  for one second. 

( O f f  the record. ) 

BY MR. REILLY: 

Q Subject t o  check, a mathematical computation, could 

i t  be by a factor  by 12, a d i f ference, by not l im i t i ng  i t  t o  

the 2 hours? 

A Well, i f  i t ' s  for 2 hours and d iv ide  i t  by 24, i t  

would be times 12. Yeah, I t h ink  t h a t  would be correct .  

Q A factor o f  12. Thank you. 

Should peak flows i n  a system be furnished by storage 

and pumping? 

A The peak flows have t o  be furnished w i th  whatever you 

have. I f  you have only  a well system, then you have t o  serve 

the peak flows w i th  the we l l .  If  you have ground storage and 

high service pumps, you can serve the  peak flows w i th  the high 

service pumps i n  the ground storage tank. 

Q The question i s  - -  wel l ,  the question might be, wel l ,  
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what i s  the most economical and engineeringly sound way t o  meet 

peak demand? 

A Well , i t ' s  usual ly p r e t t y  inexpensive t o  put i n  a 

well  and a high service - -  and a hydro-pneumatic tank. 

According t o  the design books, once you reach about a thousand 

customers, then i t  may be more economical t o  put i n  a ground 

storage and high service pumping. 

Q Does insurance r a t i n g  agencies such as Insurance 

Services O f f i ce  recognize f i r e  f low from systems operating on 

hydro-pneumatic tanks? 

A I don ' t  know. 

Q Could I re fe r  you t o  Page 5, Lines 13 and 18 o f  your 

testimony? My question i s ,  what do you mean in your testimony 

when you say the system appears t o  be b u i l t  out? And then on 

Page 6 you say i t ' s  v i r t u a l l y  b u i l t  out. 

A Well, i n  evaluating the systems t o  determine i f  they 

'were b u i l t  out, I f i r s t  looked a t  the previous orders, which 

I ' v e  l i s t e d  i n  my testimony. 

see i f  they had any addit ional t e r r i t o r y  being added during the 
f i e l d  inspection. I looked t o  see i f  there were houses on more 

than one l o t s ,  and some houses had three or four l o t s .  Some 

were vacant l o t s  - -  o r  vacant houses. Some houses were f o r  

sale. Some houses have wells. Some houses have sept ic  tanks. 

I looked a t  the c e r t i f i c a t e s  t o  

I d i d  make the mathematical ca lcu lat ion versus taking 

the number o f  l o t s  versus the number customers, and a f t e r  I 
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analyzed a l l  the data, I determined t h a t  the systems were b u i l t  

out. 

Q 
A 

Q 
A 

Q 
record? 

A 

Q 

Now, you say you d i d  do a l o t - t o - l o t  analysis? 

On some o f  the systems .I counted the l o t s ,  yes. 

And which were those systems? 

The systems i n  Orange and Seminole Counties. 

And are any o f  these calculat ions or analysis i n  the 

No. 

And what was the r e s u l t  o f  these - -  you say i n  

Orange, i n  which counties? 

A Orange and Seminole. 

Q 

A Well, I d o n ' t  r e c a l l .  

Q 

Was t h i s  j u s t  the w a t e r  systems o r  wastewater? 

And do you r e c a l l  which systems you d i d  t h i s  

l o t - t o - l o t  analysis i n  those two counties? 

A Well, I d i d  i t  f o r  the systems i n  Orange 

Counties. 

Q A l l  the systems? 

A I t h ink  so. 

Q And the resu l t s  o f  

cou 

and Seminole 

hese 1 o t  - t o -  1 o t  coun LS were what, 

t ha t  i t  was 100 percent used and useful ,  90 percent? 

A I don ' t  r e c a l l .  They were p r e t t y  high. And then 

l i k e  I said, when I considered tha t ,  you know, some l o t s  

d n ' t  be b u i l t  on and tha t  there were very few vacant l o t s  
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there, I concluded t h a t  the systems were b u i l t  out. 

Q Could you def ine "p re t t y  high" f o r  me? 
A I th ink  somewhere i n  the high 90s. 

the numbers. 

Q Could i t  be i n  the 80s? 

A I don ' t  r e c a l l .  

Q I mean, i t ' s  possible? 

A I t ' s  possible. 

I don ' t  reca 1 

Q And tha t  d i d n ' t  g ive r i s e  t o  any concern o f  i t  being 

b u i l t  out o r  not i f  i t  was i n  the 80s? 

A No. Most o f  these systems have very l i t t l e  growth. 

Q So it was r e a l l y  more the lack o f  growth than the 

1 o t  - t o -  l o t  analysis t h a t  f ina l  l y  persuaded you? 

A 

Q 

Well, also the age o f  the systems. 

Did you also examine the maps t h a t  were provided both 

i n i t i a l l y  and l a t e r ?  

A Yes. 

Q 
A 

Q Define "current maps." That means the amended maps? 

A The l a t e s t ,  yes. 

4 The la tes t .  

And d i d  you do an analysis from those maps? 

I t h ink  I used the current maps. 

Would i t  surpr ise you t o  know t h a t  10 o f  the 17 

systems s t i  11 have pos i t i ve  annual growth? 

A I believe I ' v e  heard tha t  before, yes. 
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Q 
A No. 

Q 

And tha t  wouldn't  surprise you? 

If a water system w i t h  only one wel l  i s  deemed 

LOO percent used and useful f o r  source o f  supply and pumping 

jnd treatment, does t h i s  automatical ly mean tha t  the 

j i s t r i b u t i o n  system for t h i s  system, though not b u i l t  out, 

should be considered 100 percent used and useful? 

I t  would depend on the system. 

Explain how i t  would depend. 

A 

Q 

A Well, i t  would depend, l i k e  I said, on a l l  the 

j i f f e r e n t  factors t h a t  I ' v e  j u s t  explained: The growth and the 

l ens i t y  and the number o f  avai lable l o t s .  

Q Can we get spec i f i c  and j u s t  look a t  a few o f  these 

systems t h a t  were deemed 100 percent used and useful as f a r  as 

source o f  supply and treatment, but according t o  our 

ca lcu lat ion i t  was i n  the  low 80s t h a t  - -  the  d i s t r i b u t i o n  

system according t o  our understanding o f  the l o t  count, could 

d e  j u s t  look a t  your - - do you have your resu l t s  o f  your 

analysis w i th  you? 

A I don' t  bel ieve so. 

Q Do you have any understanding, s i t t i n g  where you are, 

about the L i t t l e  Wekiva system which was deemed 100 percent 

used and useful as f a r  as water  treatment and source o f  supply, 

but according t o  our l o t  count analysis, i t  was 83.6 percent 

used and useful on the  d i s t r i b u t i o n  system? 
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A Well, I took a drive through the service area, and I 

d i d n ' t  see t h a t  many empty lots, so I considered i t  100 percent 
used and useful. 

Q Did t h a t  have more influence on you t h a n  looking a t  
the maps suppl ied by the u t i  1 i ty? 

A Yeah, because there's some, you know, houses for sale 
and some houses w i t h  - - on more t h a n  one l o t  and some people 
probably w i t h  their own wells. There probably a lso  were some 
areas t h a t ,  you know, couldn't be developed i n  there. 
see a l o t  o f  vacant lots.  So I considered the systems t o  be 
100 percent used and useful. 

I d i d n ' t  

Q So when you're making your recommendation t o  the 
Commission as t o  whether the d is t r ibu t ion  system should be used 
and useful or not ,  you ' l l  just drive around the neighborhood 
and get a feeling as t o  whether i t ' s  f u l l y  occupied or not? 

A I base i t  on the MFR filings, the maps, and a number 
o f  different things.  

Q Well, now, according t o  the maps, though, Little 
Wekiva was 83.6 percent; Park Ridge, 82.8 percent; Phillips, 
82.5 percent. B u t  you went and drove around the community and 

then had a feeling t h a t  t h a t  needed t o  - -  your overall 
assessment would just call i t  100 percent? 

A Well , I recall the Park Ridge. There's one huge 
commercial area t h a t  was vacant ,  bu t  I d o n ' t  know how many ERCs 

you guys counted i t  for ,  and I d i d n ' t  see any - - there was very 
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few vacant l o t s  i n  Park Ridge. The age o f  the system, I th-ink 

i t ' s  about 50 years old.  So I concluded i t  was 100 percent 

used and useful .  

Q Was th-is one o f  the systems you d i d  the l o t  count 

met hod? 

A 

Q 

A I don ' t  r e c a l l .  

Q 

That would be one o f  them. 

What was the r e s u l t  o f  t h a t  count? 

But whatever i t  was, i t  wasn't enough t o  o f f se t  your 

impression tha t  you got when you inspected the area? 

A 

useful .  

Q 

Right. I considered i t  t o  be 100 percent used and 

Would not a community t h a t ' s  80 percent, 

80-something, 82, 83, 84 percent b u i l t  out, appear t o  be 

l a rge ly  b u i l t  out, and yet  i t ' s  s t i l l  some distance away from 

being t o t a l l y  b u i l t  out, i s  i t  not? 

A We1 1, i t  depends on the system. 
Q L e t ' s  take these systems we're t a l k i n g  about. L i t t l e  

Wekiva. 

A L i t t l e  Wekiva, they have 61 customers. The best 1 

can r e c a l l ,  there are very few empty lots. The system has been 

i n  the ground f o r ,  you know, an extended period o f  time. 

don ' t  remember exactly. 

age of the system. And the system has already been considered 

100 percent used and useful i n  the past by the Commission. And 

I 

I t h ink  on our exh ib i t  we i d e n t i f y  the 
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the system has not had any change i n ,  you know, probably about 

$0 or 50 years. 

my t e r r i t o r y .  And so I concluded i t  was 100 percent used and 

Jseful . 
Q 

I t ' s  the same system. They haven't added on 

Now, you j u s t  added another factor  i n  there and tha t  

i s  p r i o r  Commission determinations. That 's just  another factor 

that  might cause you j u s t  t o  not be worried about the l o t  count 

method current ly? 

A It needs t o  be taken i n t o  consideration. 

Q What i s  your opinion about the deference you should 

give t o  a prior determination o f  the Commission i n  your 

recommendation? 

A Well, i n  my recommendation, I stated t h a t  previously 

the Commission considered these systems t o  be 100 percent used 

and useful .  

Q 

A 1 considered it. 

Q How? 

A 

Q 

And what e f f e c t  d i d  t h a t  have on your recommendation? 

As pa r t  o f  the t o t a l  analysis o f  the system. 

I f  the Commission - - do you bel ieve t h a t  the l o t  

count method i s  a leg i t imate basis - -  a current evaluation o f  

the l o t  count method i s  a basis t o  set  aside a p r i o r  Commission 

determination as the used and usefulness o f  a d i s t r i b u t i o n  and 

col 1 e c t i  on system? 

A No. These are o l d  l i t t l e  systems, and most o f  
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;hese - -  you know, the l i n e s  i n  these systems do not  meet the 

Ten States Standards, so I also considered tha t .  They're 

me- inch - and- a - ha1 f , two- inch , you know, two- and - a - ha1 f - i nch 

l ines.  And so when I considered . tha t  also, you know, I believe 

;hese systems are 100 percent used and useful .  

Q Is t h a t  a no? 

A Repeat your question. 

Q Is a current counting using the l o t  count method a 

i as i s  upon which t o  set aside an ear l  i e r  higher used and useful 

fetermination i n  a Commission order? 

A 

Q Well, i n  your opinion, i s  i t  a basis from you as t o  

I t h ink  t h a t ' s  a legal question. 

nake from an engineering recommendation t h a t  i f  engineering 

dent out t o  a system and d i d  a current l o t  count method tha t  

turned out t o  be lower than what was determined i n  a p r i o r  

:ommission order, what i s  your view as a s t a f f  engineer o f  t ha t  

l o t  - - what i s  your view o f  what the resu l t s  o f  t h a t  l o t  count 

nethod should be i n  se t t i ng  aside an e a r l i e r  decision o f  the 

Commi ss i  on? 

A Well, for these systems I don ' t  bel ieve t h a t  they 

dould apply. 

that  t he re ' s  many l o t s  and we d i d  t h a t  l o t  count and 

considered, you know, the l ines ,  the vacant l o t s ,  the customers 

t h a t  are on more than one l o t  and are on sept ic tanks, i f  I 

d i d n ' t  be l ieve i t  was 100 percent used and useful,  I would 

But i f  I would go out t o  a system and concluded 

I FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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submit t ha t  recommendation t o  the Commission. 

Q Okay. Le t  my t r y  again. I n  t h i s  case again and 

again the Commission i n  p r i o r  orders determined tha t  these 

d i s t r i b u t i o n  systems were 100 percent used and useful ;  i s  t ha t  

correct? 

A That i s  correct .  

Q And my question t o  you i s  i f  i n  t h i s  docket you went 

out and d i d  a l o t  count check and found out t ha t  t ha t  system 

was ac tua l l y  80 percent used and useful applying the o t  count 

method, i s  t ha t  a basis t o  set aside the e a r l i e r  determination 

by the Commission, i n  your mind? 

A No. 

MR. REILLY: I have an exh ib i t  t o  pass out t ha t  I'd 
l i k e  t o  use as a cross-examination exh ib i t .  

Th is  exh ib i t  I ' d  l i k e  t o  have i d e n t i f i e d  f o r  

cross-examination purposes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It w i l l  be i d e n t i f i e d  

Exhib i t  22. 

(Exhib i t  22 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

BY MR. REILLY: 

Q What i s  being handed out i s  j u s t  one page 0' 

3s 

a 
178-page order. 
again and again by t h i s  witness as a basis f o r  many o f  the 

recommendations tha t  have been made. 

PSC-96-1320-FOF-WS. That 's the f i n a l  order i n  the Southern 

I t ' s  an order tha t  i s  re fer red t o  again and 

It i s  the 
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States case. And I ' v e  attempted t o  - -  I picked t h i s  page 

iecause i t  - -  i t ' s  the language I was able t o  f i n d  t h a t  speaks 

i f  the e f f i cacy  o f  these p r i o r  ru l i ngs  and the various reasons 

that the Commission would consider se t t i ng  aside a p r i o r  

jetermination. 

And i f  I could d i r e c t  your a t tent ion,  bas ica l ly ,  I 

guess, t o  the second f u l l  paragraph. 
j i  f fe ren t  reasons why they - - why the Commission would not and 

i n  other circumstances why they might and why they would 

2onsider se t t i ng  aside e a r l i e r  determinations. And one o f  

the - -  we l l ,  i n  the f i r s t  instance, i t  says t h a t  we f i n d  tha t  

the leve l  o f  used and useful p lan t  determined i n  an e a r l i e r  

iroceeding shal l  not be decreased i f  used and useful p lan t  i s  

IOW less because of a decl ine i n  demand. So t h a t ' s  one reason 

they said they would not set aside a p r i o r  determination. But 

after t ha t ,  there are several reasons they said they would. 

4nd one o f  those reasons i f  I ' d  have you read it, i t  would be 

the - -  I guess i t ' s  the t h i r d  sentence. 

for me? 

I t  goes on t o  explain the 

If you could read tha t  

A Which i s  the - -  

Q This i s  the t h i r d  sentence i n  the second f u l l  

laragraph from the top. 

A Is i t  " In  addi t ion"? 

Q Yes, t h a t ' s  correct .  

A The order says what i t  says. It says, " I n  addit ion, 
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n t h i s  proceeding, we f i n d  i t  appropriate t o  authorize a 

tecreased level  o f  used and useful p lan t  i f  tha t  i s  indicated 

;hrough the appl icat ion o f  the l o t s  connected-to- 

iethodology f o r  transmission, d i s t r i b u t i o n  and co 

I i nes, whi ch methodol ogy we have herei n adopted. 'I 

Q Now, I read t h i s  - -  my understanding o f  

o ts  a v a i  1 ab1 e 

1 e c t i  on 

t h i  s sentence 

i s  t ha t  i n  the Southern States case they readopted and 

-eaffirmed t h e i r  use o f  the l o t  count method, and t h a t  t h i s  was 

me o f  the several factors  tha t  could be looked a t  t o  se t  aside 

3 higher used and useful determination made i n  a p r i o r  order. 

[ s  t h a t  a f a i r  characterization o f  t h i s  sentence? 

A 

Q 

A No, because I ' ve  considered these systems t o  be 

That appears t o  be what i t  says. 

And ye t  you do not share t h i s  view. 

100 percent used and useful. 

Q 

A That 's correct .  

For the reasons previously stated. 

(Transcript continues i n  sequence w i th  Volume 6 . )  
1 1 1 - -  
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